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VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the Twentieth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of VEEDA CLINICAL
RESEARCH LIMITED will be held on Friday 13" December, 2024 at 1100 hours at the Corporate
Office of the Company situated at Satyamev Corporate, Near Shalin Bunglows, Corporate Road,
Prahladnagar, Ahmedabad - 380015, Gujarat to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1) To receive, consider and adopt the;

a. Audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March,2024
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b. Audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31*
March, 2024 together with the report of Auditors thereon.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. S. N. Vinaya Babu (DIN: 01373832), who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. S. N. Vinaya Babu (DIN: 01373832), who retires by rotation, be and is hereby
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3) To appoint a director in place of Mr. Apurva Shah (DIN: 00378260), who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Apurva Shah (DIN: 00378260), who retires by rotation, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4) To approve the increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Nitin Deshmukh (DIN: 00060743), the
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 read with Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or
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re-enactment thereof), applicable clauses of the Articles of Association of the Company, consent of
the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to pay a remuneration or fees of INR 2.08 lakh per month
inclusive of all benefits (Rupees Two Lakh Eight Thousand Only) plus GST if any applicable and
subject to deduction of applicable taxes to Mr. Nitin Jagannath Deshmukh (DIN: 00060743), Non-
Executive Independent Director of Company toward rendering of the professional services w.e.f. 1st
October, 2024 and approve the draft agreement to be entered by Company for same;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Mahesh Bhalgat, Managing Director or Mr. Nirmal Bhatia,
Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer of the Company, be and are hereby individually and
severally authorized to represent, sign / e-sign, e-file all e-forms to the Registrar of Companies, RBI
FIRMS portal registration, any government body, semi government body/authority, Corporations,
Institutes, joint venture agreement, technical agreement and all related forms, letters, share
certificates, etc. and to do the necessary acts, deeds, negotiate, approve, authorize, empower, give
power of attorney to any officer of the Company, nominate any officer/person of the Company to do
s0, sign any forms, letters, agreements, etc. and do all such acts as may be necessary to appear before
and represent the Company with all statutory bodies as required.”

To approve the increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Rakesh Bhartia (DIN: 00877865), the
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 read with Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof), applicable clauses of the Articles of Association of the Company, consent of
the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to pay a remuneration or fees of INR 2.08 lakh per month
inclusive of all benefits (Rupees Two Lakh Eight Thousand Only) plus GST if any applicable and
subject to deduction of applicable taxes to Mr. Rakesh Bhartia (DIN: 00877865), Non-Executive
Independent Director of Company toward rendering of the professional services w.e.f. 1st October,
2024 and approve the draft agreement to be entered by Company for same;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Mahesh Bhalgat, Managing Director or Mr. Nirmal Bhatia,
Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer of the Company, be and are hereby individually and
severally authorized to represent, sign / e-sign, e-file all e-forms to the Registrar of Companies, RBI
FIRMS portal registration, any government body, semi government body/authority, Corporations,
Institutes, joint venture agreement, technical agreement and all related forms, letters, share
certificates, etc. and to do the necessary acts, deeds, negotiate, approve, authorize, empower, give
power of attorney to any officer of the Company, nominate any officer/person of the Company to do
so0, sign any forms, letters, agreements, etc. and do all such acts as may be necessary to appear before
and represent the Company with all statutory bodies as required.”
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Registered Office:

Shivalik Plaza — A, Near I.1.M.
Ambawadi, Ahmedabad 380015
Date: 25" October, 2024
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By order of the Board
For, Veeda Clinical Research Ltd.
(Nirmal Bhatia)

._.h.\_jl _,.-L:I |F:.. o i !',_
Company Secretary
MN: 12551
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NOTES:

e The Board of Directors by circular resolution passed on 5 September, 2024 had resolved
to approve the application for extension of timeline for holding of an Annual General
Meeting of the Company as per the provisions of Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013
and applied to the Registrar of Companies (ROC), Gujarat by filing necessary form for
extension of timeline. The Registrar of Companies, Gujarat vide their office letter dated
10" September, 2024 approved the request and considered the extension of 1 month and
0 days for holding of an Annual General Meeting.

Taking note of the above shorter extension granted by the Hon’ble Registrar of
Companies and non-finalization of the Annual Accounts of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023-24 the Board of Director again by circular resolution passed on 28"
September, 2024 had resolved to approve further application for extension of additional
timeline for holding of an Annual General Meeting of the Company as per the provision
of Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applied again to the Registrar of Companies
(ROCQ),, Gujarat by filing necessary form for extension of timeline. The Registrar of
Companies, Gujarat vide their office letter dated 4™ October,2024 approved the request
and considered the extension of 1 months 15 days for holding of an Annual General
Meeting.

e A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY, THE PROXIES,
DULY SIGNED AND COMPLETED, TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

e "Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Act, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent
of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. Proxies
submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc. must be supported by an appropriate
resolution / authorization, as applicable”

e The proxy form MGT-11, has been attached to this notice.

e The instrument appointing proxy / proxies in order to be effective, should be deposited at the
registered office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.
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e Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual
General Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a
duly certified copy of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney together with their specimen
signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

e The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AGM is annexed and forms part
of the Notice.

e All documents referred to in this Notice shall be made available for inspection by the Members
at the registered office of the Company during business hours except Saturday, Sunday and
National Holiday from the date hereof up to the date of this AGM.

By order of the Board
For, Veeda Clinical Research Ltd.
(Nirmal Bhatia)

M A Bl A
Company Secretary
MN: 12551
Registered Office:
Shivalik Plaza — A, Near L.I.M.
Ambawadi, Ahmedabad 380015
Date: 25" October, 2024
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS (EXPLANATORY STATEMENT)
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEM NO. 4 and 5:

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh and Mr. Rakesh Bhartia both are an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company since st July, 2021. Mr. Nitin Deshmukh also holds the position of Chairman on the Board
of the Company. Apart from holding the crucial position at the Board, both directors also hold the
Chairmanship and Membership of different statutory / other Committees of the Company. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at their meeting held on 6th July, 2021
recommended to the Board, the remuneration of INR 1.25 lakh per month inclusive of all benefits
(Rupees One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand only) plus GST if any applicable and subject to deduction
of applicable taxes i.e. INR 15 lakh (rupees Fifteen Lakh) per year. The same was approved by the
Board at their meeting held on 16th July, 2021 and subsequently approved by the Shareholders at their
extra ordinary general meeting held on 20th July, 2021.

Considering the knowledge, experience and expertise they brought to the Company in the form of
leadership, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on 24™ October, 2024
recommended to the Board to increase the remuneration payable to both the directors by INR 10 lakh
per year for each of them and thereby finalizing the total payable remuneration of INR 2.08 lakh per
month inclusive of all benefits (Rupees Two Lakh Eight Thousand Only) plus GST if any applicable
and subject to deduction of applicable taxes. i.e. INR 24.96 lakh (Rupees Twenty Four lakh Ninety Six
Thousand Only) per year each to both directors. The said recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was subsequently approved by the Board at their meeting held on 25
October, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions,
ifany, of the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of shareholders through special resolution is necessary
for approving the remuneration payable to the Independent Directors of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 4 and 5 for your approval.

Except Mr. Nitin Deshmukh and Mr. Rakesh Bhartia, none of the Directors or key managerial
personnel of the Company or their relatives, are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution as set out at Item No. 4 and 5 of this Notice.

skokskok
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Venue of the Meeting: Veeda Clinical Research Limited

CIN: U73100GJ2004PLC044023
Satyamev Corporate,

Near Shalin Bunglows,
Corporate Road, Prahlad Nagar,
Ahmedabad — 380015

Gujarat

Date & Time: Friday 13™ December, 2024 at 1100 hours

I

I

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING HALL

Joint Shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the Meeting.

Registered Folio No./DP ID & Client ID:
Name of Member:

Address of the Member:

Type of shares held:

No of shares held:

certify that [ am the registered Shareholder / proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company.

/ We hereby record my / our presence at the Twenticth Annual General Meeting of the Company at the

corporate office of the Company on Friday 13™ December, 2024 at 1100 hours.

Name of the Member:
Signature:

Name of the Proxy holder:
Signature:

NOTE:

1.

A Member/Proxy holder attending the Meeting should bring copy of the Notice for reference at the
Meeting.

Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.

Please complete the Folio No./ DP ID No., Client ID No. and name of the Member/Proxy holder, sign this
Attendance Slip and hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.
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[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Veeda Clinical Research Limited
CIN: U73100GJ2004PLC044023

Registered Folio No./DP ID & Client ID:

Name of Member:

Registered Address of the Member:

Email Id:

Type of shares held:

No of shares held:

I/ We, being the Member(s) of

shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Twentieth Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday 13™ December, 2024 at 1100 hours and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as indicated below:

a. Audited financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended on 31%* March, 2024
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon; and

Sr. No. Resolutions Consent
ORDINARY BUSINESS For Against
1 To receive, consider and adopt the;
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b. Audited consolidated financial statements of the

Company for the financial year ended on 31
March, 2024 together with the report of Auditors
thereon.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. S. N. Vinaya
Babu (DIN: 01373832), who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Apurva Shah
(DIN: 00378260), who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment

SPECIAL B

USINESS

4

To approve the increase in remuneration payable to
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh (DIN: 00060743), the
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of
the Company

To approve the increase in remuneration payable to
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia (DIN: 00877865), the Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company

Signed this day of 2024

Signature of Member Signature of Proxy
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Route Map to the venue of AGM:
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Corporate Office: Phone Number

Veeda Clinical Research Limited +91 79677 73000

Satyamev Corporate,

Near Shalin Bunglows, Email Address

Corporate Road, info@veedacr.com

Prahlad Nagar, investor.relations@veedacr.com

Ahmedabad — 380015

okokskok

VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED
CIN: U73100GJ2004PLC044023
Registered Office: Shivalik Plaza — A, 2" Floor, Opp. Ahmedabad Management Association,
Ambawadi, Ahmedabad — 380015, Gujarat. Tel No.: +91 79677 73000
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To,

The Members,

VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED
Ahmedabad

Your directors are pleased to present the 20" Annual Report on the business performance and operations
of your Company together with the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report for the
financial year ended 31 March, 2024. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiary
has been referred to whenever required.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with
rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“the Accounts Rules”). The standalone and
consolidated financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 is
summarized below:

(INR in millions

PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Revenue of Operations 2,754.48 2,961.53 3887.77 4,095.78
Other Income 175.61 91.47 192.13 106.32
Profit before Interest, Depreciation, 455.20 635.62 714.51 1140.54
Amortization & Tax

Interest and Financial charges 58.73 (53.32) 148.35 (138.82)
Depreciation 350.21 (211.32) 533.57 (380.25)
Share of profit / (loss) from joint venture - - - (26.67)
and associate (net of tax)

Exceptional Items - - - -
Profit/(Loss) before taxes 46.26 370.98 32.59 594.80
Current Tax 37.71 (126.14) (97.98) (192.79)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (9.69) (0.12) 8.19 2.93
Deferred Tax (12.34) 14.80 53.62 19.29
Profit / (Loss) for the Year 30.58 259.52 (3.58) 424.23

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

e Standalone:

During the current period, your company has total revenue of INR 2,754.48 million as against the
Rs. 2961.53 million in the previous year. The Company has profit of INR 30.58 million as
compared to profit of Rs. 259.52 million in previous year. The company will continue to pursue
expansion in domestic market and international market by utilizing the resources effectively.

e Consolidated:
During the current period, your company has total revenue of INR 3887.77 million as against the
Rs. 4,095.78 million in the previous year. The Company has profit/(loss) of INR (3.58) million as



compared to profit of Rs. 424.23 million in previous year. In the near future, the Company expects
to achieve more growth.

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources for the future growth of the Company, the directors do not
recommend dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31 March, 2024.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has reserve of INR NIL million (on standalone basis) as at the end of Financial Year.
The directors do not recommend any amount to be transferred to any reserve.

MAJOR EVENT OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR INCLUDING CHANGES IN SHARE
CAPITAL

» Acquisition of Additional Stake in Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private
Limited
Pursuant to the Investment Agreement dated July 7, 2021 along with its amendments entered
into between the Company, Promoter of the Subsidiary Company and the Subsidiary Company,
the Company had acquired Equity shares of the Subsidiary Company. The details of the same
are provided as below:

Sr. Particulars Board / Share Total % of
No. Shareholder’s | Acquired Shares Shares
approval after Acquired
Acquisition
At the beginning of the year 64,21,306 87%
1 | Investment through Board 2,95,385 67,16,691 91%
subscription of 2,95,385 approval:
fully paid-up new Equity | 18/07/2023

Shares of Face Value of
Rs. 10/- each for
consideration of Rs.
23,50,00,000 of M/s.
Bioneeds India Private
Limited.

» Raising of fund through Preferential issue
During the financial year under review, the Company had resolved to raise INR 1060 million
from the identified investors by way of preferential allotment on a private placement basis.

Date of Board Resolution 12/05/2023

Date of Shareholder Resolution 05/06/2023

Number of Equity Shares Offered 28,86,552 equity shares

Face value of shares

Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of INR 2/- each

Number of shareholders to whom the shares
were issued

4 |nvestors

Total amount of offer

INR 1,05,99,99,625.44/-

Number of Shares issued and allotted

28,86,552*

Number of shareholders to whom the shares
were issued

4




Total amount raised through private | INR 1,05,99,99,625.44/-
placement

*Pursuant to the offer, all the shareholders except one have subscribed fully, to whom the
allotment was made on 18" July, 2023, whereas the remaining portion of that one shareholder
has subscribed afterward to whom the allotment was made on 21% December, 2023.

The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023;

+ Resolved to acquire the remaining 50% shares from M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc. thereby
making Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited as wholly owned subsidiary and

The Board at their meeting held on 18" July, 2023;

+«+ Resolved to approve purchase of Bio-Pharma division of the Subsidiary Company i.e.
Bioneeds India Private Limited.

+ Resolved to approve purchase of business from the Joint Venture Company i.e. Ingenuity
Biosciences Private Limited.

Incorporation of Wholly Owned Subsidiary

The Board at their meeting held on 21st December, 2023 approved the incorporation of Wholly
Owned Subsidiary in Ireland with name of Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited by
subscribing 1 Ordinary Shares of 1 Euro.

Subscribing Further Shares of Wholly Owned Subsidiary i.e Veeda Clinical Research
Ireland Limited

During the year under review, the Company resolved to subscribe additional 13,000,000
Ordinary Shares of 1 Euro pursuant to the Board Meeting Dated 22" February, 2024

Acquisition of Equity Shares of Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited

Pursuant to the Share Purchase agreement dated 19" February, 2024, along with its amendments
entered into between the company, Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited (a wholly Owned
subsidiary Company), Mr. Georgious Kouvatseas, Mr. Leonidas Kostagiolas, Okeanos limited
(Seller) and Mr. loannis Orfanidis (Seller Guarantor), the company had acquired Equity shares
of Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited. The detail of the same are provided as under:

Sr Particular Board/ Type of Shares % of
No Shareholder’s Shares acquired acquisition
approval
1 | Investment through Board Ordinary 196 32.70%
acquisition of 196 approval: Shares and Ordinary
Ordinary Shares and 98 | 22/02/2024 C Ordinary | Shares and
C Ordinary Shares of Shares 98 C
face value of Rs. 0.01 | Shareholder’s Ordinary
Euro each against the approval: Shares
consideration of issue | 04/03/2024
of 36,32,310 equity
shares of the company
for an  aggregate




consideration of INR

152,80,04,200/-
2 | Investment through Board Ordinary 404 67.30%
Wholly Owned approval: Shares and Ordinary
Subsidiary in Health | 21/12/2023 C Ordinary | Sharesand
Data Specialists Ireland Shares 202 C
Limited — Ireland by Ordinary
Subscribing 404 Shares

Ordinary Shares and
202 C Ordinary Shares
of Face Value of Rs.
0.01 Euro each for
consideration of
35,000,000 Euro

» Amendment of Article of Association
During the year under review, the company has altered the Articles of Association as per the
details mentioned below;

Sr no | Board/ Shareholder’s approval Rational for Amendment
1 Board approval: 18/07/2023 To align the rights and obligations of
Shareholder’s approval: 10/08/2023 identified investors existing in the
agreement with Article of Association
2 Board approval: 18/03/2024 To incorporate relevant provisions of
Shareholder’s approval: 26/03/2024 agreement existing pursuant to acquisition

of shares of Health Data Specialists
Ireland Limited- Ireland

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

The Company being unlisted Company, Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year
under review in compliance with the provision of regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

Your directors have presented the Company’s State of Affairs and the future growth projections in form
of Annexure-A to this report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.
DISCLOSURE ON DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors in the meeting dated 18" July, 2023, the Company
acquired additional stake of 4% in Bioneeds India Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) as per detail
below:
e Subscription of 2,95,385 new equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited by making
investment of INR 23,50,00,000



As on the date of this report, the company owns 91.00 % of shareholding of M/s. Bioneeds India Private
Limited.

The Company had also obtained a Certificate for Downstream Investment from Chartered Accountant
certifying that;

mo Ow»

The company has obtained necessary approvals of Board for such downstream investment;
Downstream investments made within foreign equity levels permitted;

All the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant FEMA regulations have been
complied with;

Investments made by the company within the caps as specified in the FDI policy;

The investment is in compliance with Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and
Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 and Foreign Exchange Management
(Transfer or issue of security by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017,

The Investment Agreement/ Shareholder Agreement between the investor and the investee
company is in compliance with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or issue
of security by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017, as amended from time to time.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN MARCH 31, 2024 AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of report, except as stated below;

» The Company has invested in Equity shares and Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of

Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary), the details regarding the
same are below:

Sr. No. | Approval of Board/ Description of the issue
Shareholder
1 Board Subscribing 6,00,000 Euro equity shares of face value of 1 Euro
approval: for cash consideration

13/06/2024

2 Board Subscribing 27,000,000 Euro equity shares of face value of 1
approval: Euro in following manner:

26/07/2024 e 17,000,000 Euro subscribed for the consideration other
than cash, being the transfer of 17,000,000 Euro equity
shares of Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited-
Ireland (Step Down Subsidiary)

e 10,000,000 Euro subscribed for the cash consideration
3 Board Acquire 12,999,999 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
approval: of 1 Euro for the consideration other than cash, being issue of

26/07/2024 shares of 27,77,649 equity shares of the company

> Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Purchase Agreement Dated 19" February, 2024

between Company, Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary), Mr.
Georgios Kouvatseas, Mr. Leonidas Kostagiolas, Okeanos Limited (Sellers), and Mr. loannis
Orfanidis (Seller Guarantor), and the achievement of Uplift 1 condition, the company has issued
shares on a preferential basis; the details regarding the same are below.



Sr. No. Approval of Board/ Description of the issue
Shareholder
1 Board 27,77,649 Equity shares issued against the consideration of
approval: acquisition of 1,29,99,999 Compulsorily Convertible
26/07/2024 Preference Shares (CCPS) of 1 Euro of Veeda Clinical
Research Ireland Limited (wholly owned subsidiary) for an
Shareholder’s aggregate consideration of INR 116,84,73,800
approval:
20/08/2024

» In order to list the company’s equity shares on one or more recognized stock exchanges and enable
the shareholder to have a formal market place for dealing with the company’s equity shares, the
Board at their meeting held on 26" July, 2024, and the shareholder at their meeting held on 20%
August, 2024, have resolved to approve the initial public offer of equity shares of the company
through a fresh issue and offer for sale of equity shares.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
have influence to the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

SHARE CAPITAL

e Authorized Share Capital:
As on 31% March, 2024, the authorized share capital of the company was Rs. 36,44,06,800/-
comprising of 18,22,03,400 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each

e Paid-up Share Capital:
During the year, Company has allotted 1,01,05,860 equity shares of face value of Rs.2/- each, the
relevant details are given below;

Sr No Date of allotment No of Shares allotted Issue price
1 12-05-2023 35,86,998 367.22
2 18-07-2023 15,24,970 367.22
3 21-12-2023 13,61,582 367.22
4 26-03-2024 36,32,310 SWAP

As a result of allotment during the year, the paid-up share capital of the company as on 31% March,
2024 stood increased to 12,59,99,692/- divided into 6,29,99,846 fully paid-up equity shares of face
value of Rs. 2/- each.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

100% of the Company’s paid-up Equity Share Capital is in dematerialized form as on 31% March, 2024.
The company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent is M/s. Link Intime India Pvt Ltd, based at Mumbai,
Maharashtra.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems in place and has reasonable assurance on
authorizing, recording and reporting transactions of its operations in all material respects and in



providing protection and safeguard against misuse or loss of assets of the Company. The Company has
in place, well documented procedures covering critical financial and operational functions
commensurate with the size and complexities of the organization. Some of the salient features of the
internal control system in place are: -

1. Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

2. Preparation of annual budget for operation and service functions and monitoring the same with actual
performance at regular intervals.

3. Ensuring that assets are properly recorded and procedures have been put in place to safeguard against
any loss or unauthorized use or disposal.

In addition, the Company uses the services of an external audit firm (acting as Internal Auditor) to
periodically review various aspects of the internal control system to ensure that such controls are
operating in the way expected and whether any modification is required.

The Company’s internal financial controls are deployed through an internally evolved framework that
addresses material risks in the Company’s operations and financial reporting objectives, through a
combination of Entity Level Controls (including Enterprise Risk Management, Legal Compliance
Framework and Anti-fraud Mechanisms such as an Ethics Framework, Code of Conduct, Whistle
Blower Policy, Anti Money Laundering Policy, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy, etc.), Process
Controls, Information Technology based controls, period end financial reporting and closing controls
and Internal Audit.

DEPOSITS

There was no outstanding deposit within the meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Act read with rules
made thereunder at the end of the financial year 2023-2024 or the previous financial years. Your
company did not accept any deposit during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
i) Details of Loans

During the financial year under review, the Company has provided the loan as below:

Sr. | Details of Loan Name of Borrower | Purpose for which | Principal Amount
No. the proceeds from | Amount | outstanding
Loan is proposed (INR) in as on 31%
to be utilized by millions March
the recipient 2024
1 Loan to Joint Ingenuity Biosciences To meet the 29.5 0
Venture Private Limited business
Company requirement

*(During the year, an amount of INR 17.5 million was given as loan to the Ingenuity Biosciences Private
Limited. However, pursuant to its non-recoverability, the outstanding amount of loan of INR 50.00
million was written off by the Company during the year)



ii) Details of Investments

During the financial year under review, the Company made the investments as below:

Sr. Details of Name of Investee Purpose for which the Principal
No. Investment proceeds from Amount (INR)
investment is in millions
proposed to be utilized
by the recipient
1 | Investment in | Bioneeds India Private | For Capital Expenditure 235.00
Equity Shares of | Limited
subsidiary
Company
2 | Investment in | Veeda Clinical Research | For  fulfillment  of 1,180.53
Equity Shares of | Ireland Limited commercial terms of
Wholly Owned share purchase
subsidiary agreement executed
Company between the company,
Veeda Clinical Research
Ireland Limited (Wholly
Owned Subsidiary), Mr.
Georgios  Kouvatseas,
Mr. Leonidas
Kostagiolas, Okeanos
Limited (Proposed
seller) and Mr. loannis
Orfanidis (Seller
Guarantor)
3 | Investment in | Health Data Specialists | Not  applicable  as 1,545.42
Equity Shares of | (Holdings) Limited, | Investment was made
step-down Ireland through acquisition of
subsidiary equity shares through
purchase from selling
shareholders (i.e Mr.
Georgios  Kouvatseas,
Mr. Leonidas
Kostagiolas, Okeanos
Limited)
4 | Investment in Joint | Ingenuity Biosciences | Acquisition of 3.5
Venture Company | Private Limited additional 50% shares

iii) Details of Guarantee

During the financial year under review, the Company has provided the guarantee as below:




Sr. Details of Name of Party for Purpose of Principal | Amount of
No. Guarantee whom Guarantee Guarantee Amount | Guarantee
provided (INR) in | outstanding
millions as on 31%
March
2024
1 Guarantee to | Veeda Clinical | For securing the loan | 4,546.98 4,546.98
Investec ~ Bank | Research Ireland | or financial
PLC and Siemens | Limited arrangement
Bank GmbH /
Lenders
2 Guarantee to Mr. | Veeda Clinical | To Secure payment | 6,053.61 6,053.61
Georgios Research Ireland | obligation of Veeda
Kouvatseas, Mr. | Limited Clinical  Research
Leonidas Ireland (Wholly
Kostagiolas  and Owned Subsidiary)
M/s. Okeanos as per the Deed of
Limited (ie. the Guarantee executed
Shareholders  of between company,
Step Down Mr. Georgios
Subsidiary Kouvatseas, M.
Leonidas Kostagiolas
and M/s. Okeanos
Limited (Seller of
step down subsidiary)

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND LLPS

At the beginning of the financial year, The Company has two subsidiary and one joint venture company,
the relevant details are given below;

Sr. No. Name of Company Relation % of Holding
1 | Bioneeds India Private Limited Subsidiary 91%
2 | Amthera Life Science Private Limited Step-Down Subsidiary 91%
3 | Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited* Subsidiary 100%

*At the beginning of the Financial Year, M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited was a Joint Venture
Company. However, Veeda had terminated the joint venture agreement with Somru Bioscience Inc. and
purchased the entire business (including all remaining 50% shareholding from Somru Bioscience Inc.) of
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited and thereby making it a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company.

Further, apart from above, Veeda has incorporated a foreign based wholly owned subsidiary Company in
Ireland named “Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited”.

Sr. Name of Company Relation % of Holding
No.

1 | Veeda Clinical Research Ireland | Subsidiary | 100% shares owned by Veeda Clinical
Limited (Ireland) research Limited




Further, the Company had entered into “Share Purchase Agreement” with Veeda Clinical Research
Ireland Limited, Mr. Georgios Kouvatseas, Mr. Leonidas Kostagiolas and M/s. Okeanos Limited and Mr.
loannis Orfanidis.

By entering into the above agreement, the Company had acquired M/s. Health Data Specialists (Holdings)
Limited, Ireland and indirectly all its subsidiaries too.

Below is the list of Subsidiaries;

Sr. Name of Company Relation % of Holding
No.
1 | Health Data Specialists |  Subsidiary | 32.70% shares owned by Veeda Clinical
(Holdings) Limited, (Ireland) Research Limited and 67.30% shares
owned by Veeda Clinical Research
Ireland Limited
2 | Health Data Specialists Ireland | Subsidiary | 100% shares owned by Health Data
Limited (Ireland) Specialists (Holdings) Limited, Ireland
3 | Health Data Specialists Single Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
Member S.A. (Greece) Subsidiary | Specialists (Holdings) Limited, Ireland
4 | Health Data Specialists S.R.L. Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
(Italy) Subsidiary | Specialists Ireland Limited
5 | Health Data Specialists USA Inc. Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
(USA) Subsidiary | Specialists Ireland Limited
6 | Health Data Specialists Australia Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
Pty Ltd. (Australia) Subsidiary | Specialists Ireland Limited
7 | Health Data Specialists B.V. Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
(Netherlands) Subsidiary | Specialists Ireland Limited
8 | HeaDS research GmbH Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
(Germany) Subsidiary | Specialists Ireland Limited
9 | Heads Research AG Stepdown | 100% shares owned by Health Data
(Switzerland) Subsidiary | Specialists Ireland Limited

The company has also acquired 32.70% stake in Health Data Specialists (Holdings) Limited-
Ireland directly and a 67.30% stake through a wholly owned subsidiary (Veeda Clinical Research
Ireland Limited).

Pursuant to Rule 5 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the salient features
of the financial statement of the Company’s subsidiary/ joint ventures/ associate companies of the
company, bringing out the highlights of their performance, appear in Form AOC-1 at the Annexure-B to
this report.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

During the year, there were no amount required to transfer into Investors Education Protection Fund.
PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

There are no such proceedings or appeals pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during
the year and at the end of the financial year even up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
1. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL



Below are the changes in the Directors during the financial year under review;

Sr. Name of Director Activity Date of Designation
No. undertaken Activity
1 Ms. Aparajita Jethy | Resignation 26/09/2023 | -

Ahuja

2 Mr. Chirag Sachdev | Appointment 26/09/2023 | Additional Director

Regularization | 20/10/2023 | Non-Executive ~ Nominee

Director
3 Dr. Kavita Singh Resignation 03/01/2024 | -
4 Mr. Binoy Gardi Appointment 03/01/2024 | Additional Director
Regularization | 12/01/2024 | Whole Time Director
5 Mr. Manu Sahni Resignation 22/02/2024 | -

2. RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. S. N. Vinaya Babu (DIN: 01373832) and Mr. Apurva Shah (DIN:
00378260), Non-executive Directors who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and are eligible, offers, offers themselves for their re-appointment. The board recommends
their re-appointment for the consideration of the Members of the company at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

3. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

At the end of the financial year, there are four Key Managerial Personnel on the Board, the relevant
details are as below;

Sr. Name of Key Managerial Designation
No. Personnel
1 Mr. Binoy Gardi Whole-Time Director cum Vice Chairman
2 Mr. Ajay Tandon* Managing Director
3 Dr. Mahesh Bhalgat** Group Chief Executive Officer
4 Mr. Nirmal Bhatia Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

* Mr. Ajay Tandon has resigned from the post of Managing Director and appointed as a Chief
Executive Officer w.e.f. 09.05.2024
** Dr. Mahesh Bhalgat has been appointed as a Managing Director w.e.f. 09.05.2024

4. PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP
During the year under review, except those disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements, the non-
executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.

» Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board of the Company is composed of individuals from diverse fields. The Board of the
Company is composed of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

As on 31st March, 2024, the strength of the Board of Directors of the Company was Eleven
Directors comprising of Two Executive Directors, Three Independent Directors, Three Non-
Executive Non-Independent Directors and Three Nominee Directors.



MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

>

>

Board Meeting & Shareholder Meeting

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and
strategy apart from other Board business. The notice of Board Meeting is given well in advance
to all the Directors. The Agenda of the Board/ Committee meetings is circulated to all the
Directors as per the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Agenda
for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at
the meetings to enable the Directors to take an informed decision.

During the financial year under review, 9 (Nine) Board meetings were held, the gap between
the two Board Meetings was in compliance with the provisions of the Act. The Details of
presence of Directors at the Board Meeting and General Meeting during the financial year ended
31% March, 2024 are given below:

Type of Meeting | Date of Meeting Directors Present
Board 12/05/2023 All the Directors present except Ms. Jeanne Hecht
Board 18/07/2023 All the Directors present except Dr. Kavita Singh
Board 05/09/2023 All the Directors present
Board 28/10/2023 All the Directors present except Mr. Rakesh
Bhartia and Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu
Board 21/12/2023 All the Directors present except Dr. Kavita Singh
Board 03/01/2024 All the Directors present except Mr. Rakesh
Bhartia, Mr. Manu Sahni, Ms. Jeanne Hecht
Board 22/02/2024 All the Directors present except Mr. Apurva Shah
and Ms. Jeanne Hecht
Board 18/03/2024 All the Directors present except Ms. Jeanne Hecht
Board 29/03/2024 All the Directors present except Mr. Rakesh
Bhartia, Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu and Mr. Jagannath
Samavedam
EGM 05/06/2023
EGM 10/08/2023
AGM 20/10/2023 Five Nominated Member’s representatives
EGM 12/01/2024 attended the Meeting, No Directors were present
EGM 04/03/2024
EGM 26/03/2024

In view of urgency of the certain businesses, the Board and Committees had passed a circular
resolution on different dates in accordance with Section 175 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5 of Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2016.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
comprising of Mr. Rakesh Bhartia, Mr. Nitin Deshmukh and Mr. Chirag Sachdev.

Mr. Rakesh Bhartia, the Independent Director, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chirag Sachdev on account of the resignation of Mr. Manu Sahni occupied the position of
member of the Audit Committee on 22" February, 2024.



During the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024, total 8 (Eight)  meetings of the
members of the Audit Committee were held. The details of presence of Member at the Meeting
during the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 are given below:

Date of Meeting Members Present
12/05/2023 All the Committee Members were present
18/07/2023 All the Committee Members were present
05/09/2023 All the Committee Members were present
13/10/2023 All the Committee Members were present except Mr. Nitin
Deshmukh
18/12/2023 All the Committee Members were present
21/02/2024 All the Committee Members were present
18/03/2024 All the Committee Members were present
28/03/2024 All the Committee Members were present

> Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 comprising of Mr. Rakesh Bhartia, Mr. Nitin Deshmukh and Mr. Vivek
Chhachhi.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Chairperson of the
Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed as a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee. In accordance
with the same rule, the position of chairmanship of Mr. Nitin Deshmukh was replaced by Mr.
Rakesh Bhartia.

During the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024, total 2 (Two)  meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held. The details of presence of Member at the
Meeting during the financial year ended on 31°% March, 2024 are given below:

Date of Meeting Members Present
31/07/2023 All the Committee Members were present
03/01/2024 All the Committee Members were present

» Stakeholder Relationship Committee
The Company has voluntarily constituted the Stakeholder Relationship Committee in terms of
the provision of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising of Mr. Nitin Deshmukh,
Mr. Ajay Tandon and Mr. Chirag Sachdev.

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Stakeholder Relationship
Committee.

On account of Resignation of Dr. Kavita Singh, Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja and Mr. Manu Sahni,
the composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee was re-constituted during the year.

No meetings of the Committee were held during the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024.

» Corporate Social Responsibility Committee



The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in terms of the provision of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 comprising of Mr. Apurva Shah, Mr. Nitin Deshmukh and Mr. Kiran
Marthak.

Mr. Apurva Shah, Non-Executive Director, is the chairman of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee.

On account of Resignation of Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja and Dr. Kavita Singh, the composition
of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted during the year.

During the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024, total 2 (Two)  meetings of the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held. The details of presence of Member at
the Meeting during the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 are given below:

Date of Meeting Members Present
09/09/2023 All the Committee Members were present
25/11/2023 All the Committee Members were present except Dr. Kiran Marthak

IPO Committee

The Company has constituted the IPO Committee comprising Mr. Chirag Sachdev, Mr. Vivek
Chhachhi, Mr. Apurva Shah, Mr. Nitin Deshmukh

Mr. Chirag Sachdev, Nominee Director is a Chairman of the Committee.

During the year under review, no IPO Committee meeting was held.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, your directors confirm that —

a)

b)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 111 to the Act have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
on that date;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.



DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The company had received a declaration from all the Independent Director of the company confirming
that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the
conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Listing regulations and are independent of
the management.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances that may affect the status of
independent Director of the Company and the Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and
experience (including proficiency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder)
of all Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent
Directors of the Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEE, AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder and as provided in Schedule 1V of the Act,
the formal annual evaluation is not applicable to the Company.

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has on the recommendation of the NRC, framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“NRC
Policy”) for selection, appointment and remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management employees and other matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Act. The remuneration
paid to the Directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the company.

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is applicable to all the directors, Key managerial Personnel and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company.

The Policy provides guidance on:
e Selection and Nomination of Directors to the Board of the Company;
o Appointment of the Senior Management Personnel of the Company; and
e Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management personnel.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a robust Risk Management Policy. The Company through Board and Audit Committee
oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact assessment, effective
implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting. Risk Management forms an integral part of the
Company’s planning process.

There are no risks, which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM



The Code of Business Conduct of Company requires directors, officers and employees to observe high
standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As
employees and representatives of the Company, they must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling
their responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Company has a Whistle
Blower Policy to enable persons who observe unethical practices (whether or not a violation of law), to
approach the Whistle Blower Custodian without revealing their identity, if they choose to do so. This
Policy governs reporting and investigation of allegations that are in breach of the Code of Business
Conduct.

The Company has established a program named “MD Connect Program” which facilitates newly
recruited employees to get connected with the Managing Director of the Company. The main aim of
such a program is to make the newly recruited employees aware of the principles and value system of
the Company. Moreover, the employee is made aware of the whistle blowing policy and its importance
in the organization.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRAGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2024 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis
and had no conflict with the interest of the Company. The particulars of every contract or arrangements
entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto are
disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 as Annexure-C.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and framed a CSR
Policy. The primary function of the Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in formulating a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and review its implementation and progress from time to
time.

The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities is annexed herewith as Annexure-D.

Further, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company has certified that CSR spends of the company for
the financial year 2023-2024 has been utilized for the purpose and in the manner approved by the Board.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Company has not taken any loan from banks or financial institutions during the year under review
and hence, the difference in valuation is not applicable.

EMPLOYEE

Veeda continues to maintain its focus on attracting, hiring, training and inducting top Industry talent.
On the hiring front, the Company recruited exceptional talent from pharmacy colleges and trained the
fresh talent.

The focus is on optimized training duration, exhaustive coverage of all foundational skills, greater
emphasis and stress on knowledge application, continuous monitoring of trainee performance and
exposure to project environment through real-life Training Lab.



Like every year, Veeda celebrated diversity within the Company and strengthened it further by hosting
an array of activities to propagate fun, bonding and celebration at work.

Veeda, as a Company, constantly enables and encourages the employees to be empowered, happy and
enthusiastic about work. The Company’s total rewards program is based on principles of equality and
is designed to support its culture of high performance and innovation.

AUDITORS
» STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No.
324982E/E300003) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in 18" Annual
General Meeting of the Company dated 17th June 2022 for the period of 5 (five) years i.e. till
the conclusion of 23" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year under review does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer except with respect to the qualification or adverse
remarks provided in Annexure 1 i.e. Companies (Auditor's Report) order (CARO) Reports to
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone and Consolidated financial statement of the
Company. The reply against the observations raised by the Auditor given in Annexure-G.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.
» INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. M/s. Pradip R. Shah & Co., (Firm Registration No.
108048W), Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad was appointed as an Internal Auditor of the
company for the financial year 2023-24.

» SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The board of directors at their meeting held on 5" September, 2023 has appointed M/s. Tushar
Vora & Associates, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries (COP 1745), Ahmedabad to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The reply against the observations
raised by the Auditor given in Annexure-G.

» SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form No MR-3 for the Financial Year 2023-24
is annexed herewith as Annexure-E to this Report. The Secretarial Auditor has not reported
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in his report.

» COST AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT

Provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company during the financial year under
review.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, Annual Return for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024, in prescribed Form No. MGT-7
is available on the website of the Company at https://www.veedacr.com/financial-reporting.



https://www.veedacr.com/financial-reporting

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The requirement of Corporate Governance Certificate is not applicable to the Company since it is not a
listed Company.

Nevertheless, Governance at Veeda Clinical Research Ltd. (Veeda) encompasses structures, practices
and processes adopted in every sphere of the Company’s operations to provide long-term value to its
stakeholders through ethical and transparent business standards. The Company has a definite Value
System established which includes Humility, Honesty and integrity, Openness, Excellence, Innovation,
and Nurturing individual growth. These values are the core elements of governance at Veeda. The
Company, as a responsible corporate citizen, believes that the spirit of Corporate Governance stretches
beyond statutory acquiescence to meet the ethical, legal, economic and social responsibilities and is
centric to stakeholder trust and confidence. While the letter of the law is paramount in all its activities,
the spirit in which it is followed, keeps in view the interests of the stakeholders, viz, shareholders,
clients, employees, suppliers, society and regulatory bodies.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD

During the year under review, company has complied with all the applicable provisions of Secretarial
Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretary of India.

INSURANCE

The Company’s all clinical facilities are adequately insured against all major risks. The company has
also taken Director’s and Officers’ Liability Policy to provide coverage against the liabilities arising on
them, which includes all Directors of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time is given in the Annexure-F forming part of this
report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct (COBC) provides broad directions as well as specific
guidelines for all business transactions. The emphasis is on human rights, prevention of fraudulent and
corrupt practices, avoidance of conflict of interest, prevention of Sexual Harassment and unyielding
integrity at all times.

Veeda is committed to the provision of a workplace, free of Sexual Harassment (“SH”) and to provide
a redressal mechanism for all complaints of SH without fear or threat of reprisals in any form or manner
whatsoever. The work place in context of SH is not restricted to the office but includes extended work
areas such as Client’s place, work related travel, cafeterias and Company sponsored events, to name a
few.

It is confirmed that the Company has duly complied with applicable provisions and has a policy in
relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 including the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the
said Act.



CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER

The Corporate Identity Number (CIN), allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, is U73100GJ2004PLC044023 and the Company’s Registration Number is 044023.

The Company’s Master Data and details of the compliance filings by the Company with the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, may be viewed by the members and other stakeholders at

www.mca.gov.in (MCA21eServices) using the above mentioned CIN.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

Pursuant to Sub Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, below are the details of top 10 employees of the Company, receiving remuneration more
than 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs only) per annum and / or Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees

Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month.
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2 | *Ajay Tandon . 1,49,99,996 | Permanent 55 NIL NIL 29
jay Director B.E. 019 CITI
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Kumar President 1,10,00,000 | Permanent | PhD 54 | Nostrum | NIL NIL 27
Goswami 2023 Remedies

* Mr. Ajay Tandon resigned from the post of Managing Director and appointed as a Chief Executive
Officer w.e.f. 09.05.2024

** Dr. Mahesh Bhalgat was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer on 03.01.2024. Dr. Mahesh Bhalgat
is currently designated as a Managing Director w.e.f. 09.05.2024

***Dr. Sailendra Kumar Goswami was resigned w.e.f. 04.03.2024

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND RELATED
DISCLOSURES

A) Details of median ratio of the remuneration of each director pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your
Company.

B) Details of every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be provided upon request.
C) No director of the Company who is a Managing Director or whole-time director is in receipt of any
commission from the Company.

D) The requirement of the “Corporate Governance” is not applicable to the Company. However, the
Company is complying with most of the requirements.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has provided share-based incentive scheme to its employees. The relevant details of the
scheme and the grant of shares are as below.

According to the ESOP Scheme 2019, the employee selected by the committee from time to time will
be entitled to Stock Option based on their annual performance, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed
vesting conditions described in the scheme. The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the
exercise period) of options granted is 4 years. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,89,970
Options granted during the year 1,06,207
Options vested till year end 9,27,774
Options exercised during the year 0
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option 0
during the year




Options exercised during the year 0
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option

during the year ) 0
E::rmns lapsed |:I|.H=_l=:| resignation of the employees during the 2 05.083
Exercise price per share 0
Variation of terms of options NA
Money realized by exercise of options 1]
Total number of options in force 11,91,094

Employee wise details of options gmu'-lud to:

Key managerial personnel

1. Nirmal Bhatia — 13,616 options

Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any
one year of option amounting to five percent or more of
options granted during that year

1. Hiren Mehta — 6,808 Options

2. Pranav Dalal — 10,893 Options

3. Gaurav Tinani — 6,808 Options

4. Nirmal Bhatia - 13,616 Options
5. Sailendra Goswami — 27,232
Options

6. Sanjib Banerjee — 10,893 Options
7. Sivakumar Vaidyanathan ~
10,893 Options

8. Mirav Shah — 10,893 Options

ldentified employees who were granted option, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued
capital of the Company at the time of grant

MNone
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Annexure-A

Introduction

Since its inception in 2004, Veeda Clinical Research has come a long way by transitioning itself from
a clinical research organization to a broad based and integrated contract research organization. The
comprehensive strengths in the business areas, namely — preclinical, clinical and exclusive service
offerings for biosimilars and biologics — allows us to broaden our scope of reaching out to a much
larger client base, whose specific needs are catered by our entities. With our comprehensive portfolio
of drug development services and our continuing investment in infrastructure, people and process to
build new capabilities relevant to our clients, we believe that we are very well positioned to be preferred
partners for global small and emerging biotech companies for their novel drug development programs.

We have expanded our business in Greece through the acquisition of Health Data Specialists (Holding)
Limited-Ireland. Health Data Specialists (Holding) Limited-Ireland operates globally with presence
across Europe, North America and Australia. The Company specializes in treating multiple myeloma
and has experience emerging MoA that exihibit promise, including modalities based on antibodies and
cell therapy.

With acquisition of Bioneeds, we have gained comprehensive pre-clinical research capabilities, across
two facilities in Bangalore, which include GLP accredited animal vivariums, chemistry, biopharma,
and analytical laboratories, to support preclinical drug development solutions. Ingenuity Biosciences,
expands our capabilities in biosimilars and offers complete bioassay services and kits for biosimilars
development, based on technology transferred from or co-developed with Somru. Collectively across
Ingenuity and Bioneeds, we now offer end-to-end modular technical services, encompassing both pre-
clinical and clinical development of biosimilars addressing global regulatory requirements.

India’s promising Contract Research Services Market

The ever-growing Contract Research Services market in India has come a long way in establishing the
credentials of being a globally accepted service-oriented industry that delivers promise of quality,
compliance and timeliness in its research deliverables. Amongst the rising cost of R&D in the drug
development journey, India is now a global destination for pharma companies with the availability of
right scientific talent, use of technology in clinical trials and expertise in cracking of research code of
drugs across different therapeutic areas.

The research-focused services, offered by Contract Research Organizations (CROs), encompass all
phases of the drug development lifecycle, from compound selection, discovery, preclinical (pre-human
in-vitro and in-vivo) research, clinical (in-human) testing, as well as post-approval functions such as
commercialization, safety assessment, monitoring, and consulting, among other services.



Exhibit: Drug Development Life Cycle: Timeline for New Drug Approvals, as per US FDA
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Veeda manages the entire drug development process of pharma companies and given the global scale
and therapeutic expertise, like many Indian CROs, Veeda too can do so more cost effectively and with
a shorter time-to-market than in-house research and development departments at pharmaceutical
companies.

Post pandemic, CROs are consolidating their operations by resorting to M&A activities to gain access
to specific service portfolios, such as preclinical development and bio-analytical testing. Veeda Group
comprising of Veeda Clinical Research, Bioneeds and Health Data Specialists (Holdings) Limited-
Ireland has re-engineered its resources to cater and tap the increasing demand of research from the
drug development companies in North America, Europe and Southeast Asia. With quicker time-to-
market models, Indian CROs including Veeda are now positioning itself as end-to-end solution
providers making their services more cost effective, time saving and offering services across the value
chain.

There has been a growing trend of adapting technology in the research services sector. Veeda, amongst
leading players in the Indian contract research space, has taken strides in following the growing trend
with focus on improving efficiency, offering faster and reliable services.

Indian CRO market captures about 3% of the global market share by value, is expected to grow with
a CAGR of about 12% till 2026. The recent favourable changes in the Indian regulatory landscape for
the CRO industry, higher acceptability of India as an outsourcing destination by the global
pharmaceutical companies and favorable demographics in terms of cost, technical skills and diversity
of volunteers required for trials are driving the Indian CRO market.

The cost of carrying out clinical trials in India is nearly 40-70% less when compared to other
counterparts in Europe or the U.S. This along with skill sets and ease of doing business, is fueling the
market growth of Indian CROs.
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In addition to this, the Indian CROs offer:

1. Extensive scientific competence to service a global clientele ensuring high customer centricity
and satisfaction

2. Successful track record of stringent compliance culture

3. Technology driven CRO solutions and enhance operating efficiencies and compliance
management

4. Skilled personnel and experienced professional management with focus on continuous
professional development

Pharmaceutical R&D spend on the rise: The Indian CRO market witnessed growth owing to
increasing number of clinical trials amidst an increasing demand for effective and novel vaccines to
curb the SARS-CoV?2 virus. Many biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies are noted to have
made long-term agreements, collaborations, and partnerships with Indian CROs.

As per a recent market research report, the global pharmaceutical R&D spend is estimated to grow at
a CAGR of 3.6% by 2026. The market research analysis also reflects that the R&D spend by top 20
and other large players form the largest segment of the pie (7%) by 2026; however, small and mid-
sized pharmaceutical companies will drive the spending at a CAGR of 6.1%. This gives many
opportunities to Indian CROs to grab a major pie of global R&D outsourced work from big-sized
companies as well as small and mid-sized pharmaceutical companies.



For research outsourced to Indian CROs, the higher rate is observed in clinical trials and toxicology
drug value chain. Due to the different technical difficulties at each stage (i.e., preclinical and clinical
trials), the outsourcing rate varies at all stages with a low rate of outsourcing observed during early
stages of research and development and a higher rate during the clinical trial phase due to more work
on process standardization.

Trends in the CRO Services Market: Higher investment in CROs combined with rising adoption of

1.

The Preclinical segment is expected to witness lucrative growth on account of a rise in the
demand for pharmacokinetic services to support toxicology tests for IND-enabling studies. The
relevance of toxicology testing, bioanalysis and DMPK testing are crucial and important stages
of the drug development process. Driven by increased outsourcing of preclinical research by
small-to-mid segment pharmaceutical companies, Indian preclinical CROs are in commanding
position to cash-on this exciting opportunity.

The global generic drug industry is witnessing rising number of losses of patent and
exclusivity of innovator drugs, which in-turn is propelling the Bioavailability and
Bioequivalence (BA/BE) studies for Indian CROs. India is a preferred destination for BA/ BE
studies due to its current CRO infrastructure, emergence and growth of the biosimilars industry,
increased demand for complex generics, availability of healthy volunteers to participate in the
BA/ BE studies, cost-efficiency, changing regulatory landscape and evolving clinical trials
evaluation standards in the country.
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The generic drug market value is projected to reach USD 517 billion in the next five years,
expanding at a CAGR of 4.9%. There is a significant growth opportunity for standalone
bioanalytical services, which can be capitalized by Indian CROs through expansion and growth
of bio-analytical capabilities. Indian CROs like Veeda Clinical Research is already working on
strengthening its capacities in offering BA/BE studies, particularly in the areas of complex
studies involving complex molecules and areas such as inhalation studies, glucose clamp and
dermatology. Indian CROs have a definite chance of leveraging this growth opportunity in the
generic drug industry.



3. Increasing focus on Biosimilars Industry: Indian CROs have made rapid strides in offering
niche services to ever-growing biosimilar industry, which has advantage of patent losses of key
biologics. As per market research estimates, while the global market for biosimilars is
estimated to grow at a CAGR of 17.3% with, a market size of ~ USD 79.2 billion in 2026, the
biosimilars market in India is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 34%, increasing to ~ USD 2.54
billion in 2026.

India continues to have the attributes that should progressively enhance the scale of clinical trials in
the country to support the global development of novel medicines and therapies. The aspects that have
changed significantly over the recent years, and is reflecting in the growth in global clinical trials that
include India, are:

- The New Drugs and Clinical Trial Rules of 2019 have provided clarity on key concern areas
such as a) regulatory approval processes and timelines; b) ethics committee operations and
oversight responsibilities; and c) sponsor compensation liabilities in case of Serious Adverse
Events observed in the trial participants. Moreover, there is continuing focus by the regulator
to streamline systems and procedures to facilitate clinical trials with data integrity and quality
aligned with global standards.

- The network and quality of investigator sites have evolved quite significantly with well-trained
and equipped trial professionals and infrastructure conducting trials in compliance with ICH
GCP standards and successfully qualifying under global regulatory inspections. The network
has been developed by an increasing base of high quality Indian CROs in collaboration with
the major pharmaceutical companies operating in India.

- The increased agility, maturity and quality of the entire Indian clinical trial ecosystem has been
very well demonstrated through the successful and rapid conduct of large scale COVID related
clinical trials that were globally accepted.

The ecosystem is continuing to expand and develop further, which should underline continuing
relevance and participation of India in global clinical trials.

Veeda is poised to benefit from multiple factors such as the growing need of pharmaceutical and
biopharmaceutical companies to minimize their time and cost and to also augment their efficiency and
expertise in launching new formulations in the market. By building on core strengths around preclinical
services, augmenting bioanalytical research capabilities, and focusing on niche services for biosimilar
industry, Indian CROs including Veeda has a very bright future prospect of aligning itself to the
research needs of global companies.

Business Proposition: Adding Value to Pharmaceutical Research

With the broad overview and analysis, outlined above, it is imperative to highlight Veeda’s approach
and efforts towards achieving business objectives. Being part of growing organization and a leading
player in the Indian research services sector, Veeda believes in

1. Matching client expectations:
a. The Vision and Mission statements embodies our focus on being increasingly relevant to
our clients and being their preferred partners.



b.

Our management and business development teams are actively engaging with the industry
as well as our clients to understand the direction of research and the service gaps with our
clients, which channelize our capability development.

Veeda has very broad set of accreditations to be relevant for most requirements, strong
quality credentials that we work diligently to maintain including regular quality reviews,
human resource training and investment in technology to deploy controls, oversight and
operating efficiencies.

Veeda’s unwavering focus on client and project prioritization to meet required execution
timelines as per client program requirements. Our growing focus on leveraging technology
has played a crucial role in achieving operational efficiencies and reducing delivery
timelines with the desired quality standards.

2. Client Service and Ownership:

a.

We have a strong focus on driving client centricity as the way of working and have been
through an organization wide dissemination of this ethos. We are reinforcing this
frequently right from the induction of a colleague through their growth in our organization.
We progressively review our various client experience touch points, on a prioritized basis,
to enhance client experience with us and track performance based on client feedback with
these touch points.

Based on a semi-annual Client Satisfaction survey, undertaken by us, we rate ourselves on
key client parameters, which include Comfort and confidence, scientific knowledge &
clinical research expertise, Quality of Research Deliverables, Ease of Doing Business, and
Client Centricity & Responsiveness. We are encouraged by the strong improvement in
these scores, which reflect continuing progress in our client experience initiatives.

The criticality of continuing acceptability of study data generated in Veeda’s facilities by
global regulatory agencies and our pharmaceutical clients is a testament of our progress.
Our continuing success in this key aspect also results in high ownership satisfaction and
reinforcement.

We have an active marketing program to create awareness about our capabilities and value
proposition. We have a very active client-calling program where senior management and
business development colleagues periodically meet client seniors to apprise them of
developments in our organization, build rapport and accessibility for comfort and
confidence and solicit feedback on how we could become more relevant to them in line
with their own business objectives.

Improving Operational Efficiency:

(a) Veeda Clinical Research is a scientific research focused, service organization, which is

significantly reliant on high quality human resources. The ability to drive higher
productivity and value add per resource through scientific and operational excellence is
key to long term sustainability.

(b) Veeda operates in a highly competitive environment and notwithstanding the current value

proposition; we need to continuously drive operating efficiency for better delivery
timelines, quality standards and operating costs so that we keep enhancing our value



proposition to our clients and our financial performance for supporting our long-term
growth objectives.

(c) We have baselined our productivity metrics for our key operating departments and are
tracking improvements as we drive operational initiatives. We are rapidly deploying
technology platforms to digitize and automate processes, which will drive operating
efficiencies and quality controls with better human resource productivity. As we digitize,
we are reviewing our operating procedures to simplify them to serve the same objectives
of ease of operations, efficiency and quality outcomes.

Veeda is transitioning from being a clinical research organization into a broad based and
integrated contract research organization. We see significant growth for preclinical and clinical
research services over the medium to long term. With our comprehensive portfolio of drug
development services and our continuing investment in infrastructure, people and process to
build new capabilities relevant to our clients, we believe that we are very well positioned to be
preferred partners for innovative pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical clients globally for
their critical drug development programs.

Veeda: Growth trajectory and the way forward

Since inception in 2004, Veeda Clinical Research understands the nuances of drug development across
all major therapeutic areas and is equipped with the experience and resources to support pharmaceutical
and biotechnology company’s asset from early planning through trial completion to submission.

Veeda Clinical Research has taken strides and is making consistent efforts towards offering services
to a broader set of clients by consolidating its business and adopting to new technology. Over the past
several years, Veeda has differentiated itself by delivering innovative, flexible, high-quality, customer-
driven solutions to become the leading CRO in India and has a track record for conducting specialized,
complex, clinical trial projects. There are several factors, which we feel, are growth drivers for us in
the near future. With a focus on enhancing services to existing clients as well as eying more business
from Europe and North America, it is important for Veeda to understand specific needs and
requirements of its clients.

The topmost priority for Veeda is to implement and execute plans to scale up not just business services,
but also leverage the use of technology to enhance and scale up our efficiency to deliver better
outcomes. Veeda continues to invest in new capability development to offer a more comprehensive
portfolio of services for drug development. Keeping in view, the above narration of Indian CRO
industry, Veeda is looking forward to:

1. Increase presence across regulated markets in the US and the EU

We are targeting small and medium-sized generic pharmaceutical companies in US and the EU
based on our capabilities in complex studies, successful record of accomplishment in
regulatory inspections and the cost advantage of conducting clinical trials in India, which is
nearly half the cost of conducting a clinical trial in a developed country. Further, as part of our
business plan, Veeda is aiming to bundle and cross sell preclinical services through Bioneeds



and biosimilars services, to existing as well as new clients in these markets. In the US and EU
market, we are also exploring our tie ups with local medium-sized US and EU CROs, with a
view to work on the Indian phase of the global trials, being conducted by these CROs. We
intend to pursue strategic alliances in these key markets to capitalize on the resultant favorable
outsourcing trends.

Increased focus on pre-clinical services to facilitate innovator drug development and
discovery

Innovator and novel generic pharmaceutical companies have been consistently investing in
developing new drugs thereby supporting large-scale drug discovery activities. Niche
innovator companies, who outsource drug discovery and pre-clinical studies to CROs, file
many novel new drug applications.

According to a recent market research estimate, the pharmaceutical companies have the
potential to increase their revenue by saving an average of 20 to 30 weeks of the drug
development time, by outsourcing the research and development activities to the CROs. The
drug discovery and preclinical research segment is expected to witness a 7% growth over the
next five years, driven by increased outsourcing of early-stage activities by small-to-mid
segment pharmaceutical companies. To capitalize on the opportunity arising, we are looking
forward to position Health Data Specialists (Holding) Limited-Ireland - a full-service Global
Contract Research Organization (CRO) dedicated to the conduct of clinical trials across various
therapy areas, with deep therapeutic expertise in Hemato-Oncology trials. With Heads , we
intend to offer a wide range of pre-clinical services globally and thereby increase our
capabilities. Bioneeds - a preclinical CRO providing discovery, development and regulatory
services - to the pharmaceutical industry. Bioneeds provides research, analytical, and
development solutions to drug sponsors from the discovery through development stages. With
Bioneeds, we intend to offer a wide range of pre-clinical services complemented by our early
phase clinical services to innovator pharmaceutical companies in order to provide them with
comprehensive drug development support. We see significant opportunity to service the
innovation ecosystem in India. We intend to leverage the market opportunities in India, build
our credibility in the domestic CRO market, and further extend these services to global clients
in our key markets. We believe that the synergies arising from integrating the products and
services offered by our different business units, coupled with our infrastructure, technology
products and services, extensive expertise and experience will differentiate us from our
competitors.

Expand and consolidate market presence in Biosimilars

The Biosimilar industry in India is expected to grow due to large patent cliff that is expected
in the next five years. Further, this growth it also attributed to lower cost of development of
biosimilars in India, where the cost to develop a biosimilar in the EU or the US is estimated
between USD 100 million to USD 200 million, in India it costs approximately between USD
10 million to USD 20 million (Source: Industry Analysis and Report by Frost & Sullivan). This
is due to several factors, including the lower cost of recruiting patients, lower labor and service
fees, as well as less stringent regulatory approval criteria. To meet this growing market
opportunity in biosimilars, we have positioned ourselves to provide specific services tailored



to biosimilar development and manufacturing. We provide a wide range of services for the
development of biosimilars including consulting, regulatory, laboratory and clinical
developmental services.

Further, we aim to service the growing market of biosimilars in Asia, including India. The
biosimilars in the CRO industry is experiencing significant growth due to the rising incidence
of chronic diseases such as cancer, rheumatoid arthritis, psoriasis and increasing demand for
biosimilars due to their affordability. For instance, in the Asia-Pacific region, the higher
prevalence of chronic illness, presence of highly diverse population base and emergence of
numerous regional and local participants alongside global CRO participants, is expected to
boost the Asia-Pacific CRO market growth. With specific focus on offering niche research
services to biosimilars and biologics companies, we intend to service the market opportunities
in India and Asia and further extend these services to other regulated markets of the EU and
the USA. We are consolidating our capabilities in biosimilars and are offering complete
bioassay services and kits for biosimilars development. Further, we offer end-to-end and
modular technical services, encompassing both pre-clinical and clinical domains. The scientific
team is comprised of scientists with in-depth knowledge of bioassay method development and
sample analysis, clinical trial management, and global regulatory requirements and with an
experience on working on biosimilar molecules for India and global registration.

Strengthening our bioanalytical services

Accounting for almost 5% to 7% of the clinical trial cost, bio-analytical testing is one of the
most crucial aspects of the generic drug manufacturing process. To uphold the clinical efficacy
and safety of a bio-therapeutic, extensive bioanalytical testing experience is required. We are
focused on strengthening our bioanalytical capabilities in biosimilars, complex generics and
patient-based clinical trials. We have bioanalytical capabilities to service small molecule drug
development, both for new molecules as well as generic products. We offer these services as a
part of our complete clinical trial services as well as in the form of a standalone central
bioanalytical laboratory services offering to global pharmaceutical companies and other
clinical research organizations.

The growth of biologics is leading to higher rates of outsourcing, which, in turn, propels CRO
participants to provide high-quality bio analytical techniques, thus accelerating the growth of
this segment. Globally, almost 80% of bioanalytical services are outsourced to a preferred
service provider instead of a multi-national CRO.

Further, the bio-analytical testing market is fragmented, with a large number of niche
participants and very few larger companies. Therefore, we believe that there is a significant
growth opportunity for standalone bioanalytical services, which can be capitalized by us
through our growing bio-analytical capabilities. We have established a central bioanalytical
laboratory with the intent to position ourselves as a standalone bioanalytical for big
pharmaceutical global trials. Our bioanalytical research equipment facilitates the depth of
bioanalytical research expertise required for executing various activities ranging from small
molecule PK studies to immunogenicity testing, complex bioanalysis and elemental
bioanalysis. All bioanalytical methods are developed in-house with the innovative thought
through processes of our bioanalytical research department, which comprises of more than 250



members who has experience and expertise of developing bioanalytical methods including
generics, complex generics, large molecule assays, recently validated (generics) and NCEs
bioanalytical methods in-house.

5. Building on our core strength of BA & BE studies

BA & BE studies remain Veeda’s core strength as we continue to monetize our strength by
expanding our client base and target geographies. India is a major destination for BA & BE
studies given its current CRO infrastructure, the increased outsourcing rate of these studies to
Indian CROs, the increased demand for complex generics, the availability of a large population
base for participation in BA & BE studies as well as the cost-efficiency of doing such studies
in India. In addition, due to the increasing patent expiration of branded drugs, key
manufacturers continue to explore effective generic drugs. The generic drug market value is
projected to reach USD 517 billion in the next five years, expanding at a CAGR 0f 4.9%. Thus,
we seek to capitalize on the resultant market growth with our strength in our BA & BE studies
particularly in the areas of complex studies involving complex molecules or complex designs
and areas such as inhalation studies, glucose clamp and dermatology. Further, we are also
making investments to equip our existing facilities to build and strengthen our core capabilities.

We believe, by building on our existing core strength around BA & BE studies we will be able
to partner with prospective clients, establish and foster long-term strategic relationships,
thereby making them more proficient and better prepared to match their capabilities, deal with
critical challenges and achieve greater efficiencies across the drug development continuum.

6. Enhancing capabilities in clinical trials

While the Indian clinical trials market is 2.4% of the global clinical trials market in 2021, it is
expected to grow faster than the global market to become about 3.1% of the market share by
2026. To address market growth, we have significantly strengthened our capabilities in clinical
trials with experienced medical affairs and project management teams, comprehensive
technology platform and have augmented our capabilities in data management, biostatistics
and modelling services.

The public perception about clinical trials in India has witnessed a drastic change. With the
emergence of high quality CROs that operate in compliance with global safety, ethical and
regulatory norms, the stronger regulatory oversight on the industry and active industry forums
that bring together diverse stakeholders to enhance the operating ecosystem for the industry,
the industry has significantly matured and the public perception thereof has definitely changed
over the last several years, which is also reflecting in the increasing volunteer participation in
clinical research.

Progressive regulatory changes streamlining the approval process and oversight for studies has
benefitted the Indian CRO market. In March 2019, the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, India
released the New Drugs and Clinical Trial Rules, 2019, which provided clear guidelines for the
application and approval for clinical trials besides strengthening the ethical oversight and the
responsibilities and obligations of the sponsors thereby providing a predictable, transparent and
effective regulatory framework for clinical trials in India. These have supported the increase in clinical
trials i India since then. There i1s further scope for developing the climical research ecosystem,
including regulatory pathways, to support more global clinical trials in India.
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Annexure -B
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or Joint ventures
PART-A: SUBSIDIARY

(INR in millions)

Name of Subsidiary Bioneeds India Amthera Life Ingenuity Veeda Clinical Health Data
Private Limited Sciences Private Biosciences Research Specialists
Limited Private Ireland Limited (Holdings)
Limited Limited
Type Subsidiary Stepdown Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary
Subsidiary
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 25-05-2021 25-05-2021 18-07-2023 01-12-2023 26-03-2024
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. June to May
holding company's reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant INR INR INR EURO EURO
financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share Capital 73.81 0.10 7.00 1,172.83 3.52
Reserves and surplus 426.15 0.76 -5.96 -201.56 128.36
Total Assets 2,055.45 1.36 2.82 3,511.41 166.45
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,055.45 1.36 2.82 3,5611.41 166.45
Investments - - - 3,157.62 -
Turnover 1,138.87 - 18.71 - 494.45
Other Income 25.10 0.02 26.68 0.07 -
Profit Before Taxation 199.00 -0.03 -71.78 -200.42 95.64
Provision for Taxation 55.61 - 2.45 - 12.27
Profit after Taxation 143.39 -0.03 -10.23 -200.42 83.37
Proposed Dividend 0 0 0 0 0
Extent of Shareholding in % 91.00% 91% (100% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

shareholding held by
Bioneeds India
Private Limited)




Name of Subsidiary Health Data Health Data Health Data Health Data Health Data
Specialists Specialists Single Specialists | Specialists USA Specialists
Ireland Limited Member S.A. S.R.L. Inc. Australia Pty
Ltd.
Type Stepdown Stepdown Stepdown Stepdown Stepdown
Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 26-03-2024 26-03-2024 26-03-2024 26-03-2024 26-03-2024
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the June to May January to December January to January to January to
holding company's reporting period December December December
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant EURO EURO EURO usD AUD
financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share Capital 0.90 0.08 0.00 0.90 2.26
Reserves and surplus 7.16 3.21 3.51 4.50 3.70
Total Assets 34.01 3.95 4.35 10.26 69.94
Total Equity and Liabilities 34.09 3.95 4.35 10.26 69.94
Investments - - - - -
Turnover 244.58 7.83 9.56 34.98 80.07
Other Income - - - - -
Profit Before Taxation 20.70 0.11 2.21 2.43 -1.76
Provision for Taxation - 0.12 0.39 - -
Profit after Taxation 20.70 -0.01 1.82 2.43 -1.76
Proposed Dividend - - - - -
Extent of Shareholding in % 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%




Name of Subsidiary Health Data HeaDS research Heads
Specialists B.V. GmbH Research AG
Type Stepdown Stepdown Stepdown
Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 26-03-2024 26-03-2024 26-03-2024
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, il different from the June 10 May January 1o December January to
holding company's reporting period __December
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant EURO EURO - CHF
financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share Capital 931 - -
Rescrves and surplus 0.20 - -
Total Assets 13.29 - =
Total Equity and Liabilities 13.29 - -
Investments - - -
Turnover 1.a1 et =
Other Income - - -
Prafit Before Taxation 0.12 - =
Provision for Taxation 0.08 - -
Profit after Taxation -0.20 - -
Proposzed Dividend - . - .
Extent of Shareholding in % 1 00.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Motes:

|. Names of subsidiaries which are vet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Veeda Clinical Research Limited I E

Nitin mu Mahesh Bhalgat
Chairman Managing Director
DEN: DD060T43 DIN: 07253670
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 25/10/2024 Date: 25/10/2024

W
Nirmal 3?::

Company Secretary & CFO
ICSI Membership No. 12551
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 251072024




Annexure - C
FORM NO. AQC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/ammangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis: Not Applicable

2. Details of contracts or arcangements or transactions at Arm's length basis,

Sr. No. | Particulars |  Details of Transactions

Refer Schedule-1

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
VYeeda Clinical Research Limited

OO

Mitin Deshmulkh
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25/1072024

Encl: as stated



Schedule-1 to Annexure-C

Sr Particular Details of Transaction

No

1 Name (s) of the related Bioneeds India Private Limited (Subsidiary) Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited™*
party & nature of (Subsidiary)
relationship

2 Nature of contracts/ Sale or purchase Purchase of Take “Peenya” | Sale or purchase Lease Rent Service Purchase of
arrangements/ transaction of goods or Bio-Pharma | premise on rent of goods or Agreement Business

services Division services

3 Duration of the 2024-25 N.A. As per the 2023-2024 30-11-2023 N.A. N.A.
contracts/arrangements/tr terms of the
ansaction agreement

4 Salient terms of the Up to Up to Rs. Rs.12,09,718 | Rs.10,00,00,000/- | 60,638 per 2,00,000 per | Rs. 6,00,00,000/-
contracts or arrangements | Rs.10,00,00,000/- | 20,00,00,000/- per month In ordinary month month
or transaction including /- In ordinary 28061 sq. ft course of [Previous rent | (GXP: 25,000/-
the value, if any course of business plus 5% & Non-GXP:

business escalation on 1,75,000/-)
renewal]

5 Date of approval by the 12-01-2024 18-07-2023 18-07-2023 12-05-2023 12-05-2023 12-05-2023 18-07-2023
Board

6 Date of approval by N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
shareholder, if any

7 Amount paid as N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
advances, if any




Sr Particular Details of Transaction
No
1 Name (s) of the related party & | Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited | Dr. Kiran Marthak Mr. Sahil Shah beneficiary of
nature of relationship (Subsidiary) (Director) Mr. Apurva Shah,
(Director)
2 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Commission against Commission Professional Service Samprat Residency (Company’s
transaction corporate guarantee against corporate Fees Guest House)
and pledge of shares guarantee
3 Duration of the N.A. N.A. 1% August, 2024 to | from 1% April 2023 for 3 years (No
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31 July, 2027 Escalation during the tenure)
4 Salient terms of the contracts or 1% of the Corporate Up to 2% of the 3,00,000 per month 1,00,000/- per month
arrangements or transaction Guarantee Given Corporate
including the value, if any Guarantee Given
5 Date of approval by the Board 21-12-2023 18-03-2024 12-05-2023 07-06-2023
6 Date of approval by shareholder, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
if any
7 Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

* At the beginning of the Financial Year, M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited was a Joint Venture Company. However, the Board of Directors
of Veeda Clinical Research Limited had at their Board Meeting held on 18" July, 2023 resolved to terminate the joint venture agreement with Somru
Bioscience Inc. and purchased the entire business (including all remaining 50% shareholding from Somru Bioscience Inc.) of Ingenuity Biosciences
Private Limited and thereby making it a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company.




ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Annexure-D

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the
Company has framed a CSR Policy.

The Company’s CSR vision & mission is to contribute to the social, economic and
environmental development of the community in which the Company operates. The Company
may undertake any one or more CSR activities as specified in the CSR Policy.

As permitted under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, the Management of the Company has identified following institutes through
which it has decided to carry out CSR activities:

Sr. No.

Name of the Institute / Organization

Shri Bharat Saraswati Mandir Sansad

Sri Sathya Sai Health and Education Trust

Mann Center for Individuals with Special Needs

Vidya Integrated Development for Youth and Adults

DNDI Drugs for Neglected Diseases Initiative India Foundation

OO WIN|F

Government Schools — Direct Donations

2. Composition of CSR Committee

3.

Sr Name of Director | Designation/Nature of No of No of meetings
No Directorship meeting of of CSR
CSR Committee
Committee | attended during
held during the year
the year
1 | Mr. Apurva Shah Non-Executive 2
Director
2 | Ms. Aparajita Jethy Non-Executive 0
Ahuja* Nominee Director
3 ik Independent Non- 2 2
Dr. Kavita Singh Executive Director
4 | Dr. Kiran Marthak Non-Executive 1
Director
5 | Mr. Nitin Independent Non- 0
Deshmukh Executive Director

* Ms. Aparajita Ahuja has resigned from the directorship w.e.f. 18" September, 2023
** Dr, Kavita Singh has resigned from the directorship w.e.f. 31% December, 2024

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company

https://www.veedacr.com/corporate-social-responsibility/



https://www.veedacr.com/corporate-social-responsibility/

Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8 of Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)-
NA

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any-

NA

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).
54,05,73,182

(A) 2% of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
1,08,11,464

(B) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(C) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(D) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): 1,08,11,464

(A) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (In Rs.)

Total Amount Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund
Spent transferred to specified under Schedule V11 as per

for the Financial Unspent CSR Account second proviso to section 135(5)

Year as per
(InRs.) section 135(6)
86,36,999 Amount Date of Name of the fund | Amount | Date of
transfer transfer
21,74,465 | 10-04-2024 NIL N.A. N.A.

(B) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

(C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year:



Si Name Item Local Location of the Amoun | Mode Mode of
No | of the from the Area Project t of Implementation -
Project list of (Yes/ Spent | Imple Through
activities No) for the | menta Implementing
in project | tion Agency
schedule (in -
VIl to lakh) | Direct
the Act (Yes/
No)

State District Name CSR
regis
trati

on
num
ber
1 | Purchas | Promoting No Gujarat Junagadh | 8.86 No Shri Bharat CSR
e of | Education Saraswati 0004
Comput Mandir 6413
er Sansad
System
2 | Child Promoting No Karnataka | Bangalore | 25.00 No Sri Sathya CSR
Heart health care Sai Health 0000
Surgeri | including and 1048
es and | preventive Education
Interven | health care, Trust
tions Promoting
education
3 Trainin | Promoting No Maharasht | Mumbai 25.00 No Mann Center | CSR
g and | health care ra for 0000
Employ | including Individuals 2986
ment to | preventive with Special
Adult health care, Needs
with Promoting
Intellect | education
ual
Disabili
ty
4 Support | Promoting No Delhi New Delhi | 10.75 No Vidya CSR
the Education Integrated 0000
children Development | 1204
coming for Youth and
from Adults
econom
ically
disadva
ntaged
segment
S in
educati
on




Support
of a
“Skill
enhance
ment
proposa
I’ of the
Project
Open
Syntheti
c
Networ
k (OSN)

Promoting
Education

No

Delhi

New Delhi

7.00

No

DNDI Drugs
for Neglected
Diseases
Initiative
India
Foundation

CSR
0001
6648

Making
availabl
e of safe
drinkin
g water
by
installin
g Water
Cooler,
RO
Water
Purifier
System
and
Overhe
ad
Water
Tank

Promoting
Education

Yes

Gujarat

Ahmedaba
d

9.75

Yes

N.A.

N.A

Constru
ction of
compou
nd wall

Promoting
Education

No

Gujarat

Junagadh

21.74

No

Shri Bharat
Saraswati
Mandir
Sansad

CSR
0004
6413

(D) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(E) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(F) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 1,08,11,464

(G) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

9. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

10. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Nil




1. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, the details relating to the asset so
ereated or aequired through CSR spent in ihe financial year
No creation or acquisition of capital asset during the current financial year

11 Specily the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net
profit as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
YVeeda Clinical Research Limited

S

Mitin Deshmukh
Chairmimn

Place:; Alimedahad
Date: 2571002024



Annexure-E
Taostior . Fora TUSHAR VORA & ASSOCIATES

B.Com., LLB. (SPL.), F.C.S. Company Jecrotarios

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Veeda Clinical Research Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Veeda Clinical Research Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion read with
Annexure A forming part of this report, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2024, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I further report that the compliance with the applicable laws is the responsibility of the Company and our report
constitutes an independent opinion. Our report is neither an assurance of future viability of the Company nor a
confirmation of efficient management by the Company

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company: -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021;

(e)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; - Not
Applicable - and
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Tastior W, Fora TUSHAR VORA & ASSOCIATES

B.Com., LLB. (SPL.), F.C.S. Company Jecrotarios

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not
Applicable

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of
1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), to the extent applicable.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above, however, it has been observed that the company has granted
loans to company in which common directors exists pending compliance with section 185 of the Act, filing of
charge for credit facility in the form of FDOD pending, the Company has received share application money before
offering approval of the Board / members, the Company has allotted shares beyond stipulated period of 60 days
from the date of receipt of application money, the utilization of share premium account is not in accordance with
Articles of Association of the Company. Regarding related party transactions, the management has claimed that
the same are on arm’s length basis within the meaning of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

We have not examined compliance by the company with respect to: a) Applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws, maintenance of financial records, etc., since the same have been subject to review by statutory
(financial) auditors, tax auditors and other designated professionals. b) Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchange(s), as the company is an Unlisted Public Company.

Further, in regard to compliance system and process followed for compliance with other industry specific /
general laws, we have been informed by the company that the Industry specific laws/general laws as applicable
to the company have been complied with. The management has represented that they have internal system and
process for compliance with all the laws, rules, regulations, orders, standards and guidelines as are specifically
applicable to the Company relating to Industry/Labour or otherwise.

We further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

b) Adequate notice is given at least seven days in advance to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. As
informed to us, the Company has also provided agenda and detailed notes on agenda to the directors
reasonably in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. The management has
confirmed that in case of shorter notice, the Company has obtained shorter notice consent from directors.

c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded,
wherever applicable, as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the following major events took place having bearing on the
Company’s affairs:

1. The Company has passed special resolution at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 5t June, 2023, for
private placement of 2886552 equity shares to identified investors at a price of Rs. 367.22 per share

2. The company has altered Articles of Association of the Company by passing special resolution at the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 10% August, 2023

3. At the Annual General Meeting held on 20t October, 2023, by passing special resolution, the Company has
approved grant of 106207 equity shares under ESOP scheme at a price of Rs. 367.22 per share

4. The Company has appointed Mr. Binoy Gardi as whole time director vide special resolution passed at the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 12t January, 2024
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Tastior W, Fora TUSHAR VORA & ASSOCIATES

B.Com., LLB. (SPL.), F.C.S. Company Jecrotarios

5. The Company has passed special resolution at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 12t January, 2024,
approving grant of 14,84,188 equity shares under ESOP to Mr. Mahesh Bhalgat, CEO of the Company,
exceeding 1% of the paid up capital of the Company.

6. The Company has passed special resolution at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 12t January, 2024,
u/s 186 of the Act approving investment in 100% of shares of foreign company

7. The Company has passed special resolution at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 4% March, 2024,
approving issuance of 36,32,310 equity shares at a price of Rs. 420.67 per share to identified investors for
consideration other than cash

8. The Company has passed special resolution at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 4t March, 2024,
u/s 186 of the Act approving investment in 32.70% of shares of foreign company

9. The company has altered Articles of Association of the Company by passing special resolution at the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 26 March, 2024

10. Vide Board resolution passed at the Board Meeting held on 21st December, 2023, the Board has approved
issuance of corporate guarantee in favour of foreign banks / lenders, up to an amount of INR 3,822 Million +
Interest Accrued (Rupees Three Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Two Million + Interest Accrued)
equivalent to Euro 42 Million + Interest Accrued in respect of or against any loans to or to secure any financial
arrangement of any nature obtained by Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company M/s. Veeda Clinical Research
Ireland Limited up to Euro 50.4 Million.

11. Vide Board resolution passed at the Board Meeting held on 18% March, 2024, the Board has approved
issuance of corporate guarantee in favour of foreign persons for an amount EUR 67,100,000. The same was
subsequently approved by the shareholders at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 26t March, 2024
as a special resolution

FOR TUSHAR VORA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

SD/-

TUSHAR M VORA

Proprietor

FCS No. 3459; CP No.: 1745

Place: Ahmedabad P R No.: 1200/2021
Date: 25.10.2024 UDIN: F003459F001764746
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B.Com., LLB. (SPL.), F.C.S. Company Jecrotarios

Annexure A”
To
The Members
Veeda Clinical Research Limited
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification as done on test basis is to
reasonably ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Inrespect of laws, rules and regulations other than those specifically mentioned in our report above, we have
limited our review, analysis and reporting up to process and system adopted by the Company for compliance
with the same and have not verified detailed compliance, submissions, reporting under such laws etc. nor
verified correctness and appropriateness thereof including financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards and
its proper and adequate presentation and submission in prescribed formats is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis and not its one to

one contents.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to compliance in totality or the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

FOR TUSHAR VORA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

SD/-

TUSHAR M VORA

Proprietor

FCS No. 3459; CP No.: 1745

Place: Ahmedabad P R No.: 1200/2021
Date: 25.10.2024 UDIN: F003459F001764746
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ANNEXURE-F TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-

The Company is engaged in testing of various drug / medicines and Human Clinical Trials.
The different types of tests are carried out depending on the nature of material and quality of
standards such as IP, USP, BP, etc. Testing is done using different testing equipment. Most of
the test equipment are microprocessor based and draw only requisite power. Power is drawn
by different equipment from a common source in the laboratories.

Improvement in energy efficiency is a continuous process and is given a high priority. Efforts
have also been made to identify potential energy saving opportunities in all our operations,
endeavors to optimize the process parameters and to modernize and upgrade the technology
and equipment with the objective of increasing Energy Productivity.

The Company has implemented a process to minimize the power utilization at optimum level.
As a result, the energy consumption is reduced to the lowest minimum requirement.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The tests / studies are carried out as per the prescribed national / international standards and
regulations. The Company undertakes clinical research under international guidelines such as
DCGI, USFDA, ICH ANVISA, MHRA etc.

In the same way, the technology involved in testing is only testing of products as per the

prescribed standard procedure / manuals. Testing technology is absorbed to the extent
permitted by the appropriate guidelines.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

(INR in millions)

Foreign Exchange earned 1,738.91

Foreign Exchange used : 358.31




Annexure - G

Explanation to the observations of the Auditor mentioned in the Independent Auditor’s report:

1. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

(iii)(c) The Company has granted loan during the year to company where schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. However, the principal
amount is written off at the year end and hence, no interest and the principal amount have not
been recovered.

Explanation: Considering the future prospect of Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited, i.e, the
borrower company, it seems to be difficult to generate the cash flow for the borrower company.
Hence, it has been decided to write off the loan given to the borrower company. Further, the proper
disclosure with respect to the aforesaid loan is given in the Standalone and Consolidated Financial
statements of the Company.

(x)(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of the preferential allotment / private placement of shares during the year
except provision of section 42(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding delay in allotment of
Equity shares beyond sixty days from the date of receipt of the application money and
provision of section 42(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding delay in filing of offer with
Registrar within fifteen days of allotment . The amount raised along with opening un-utilized
balance, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised except for
idle/surplus funds amounting to Rs 934.15 which were not required for immediate utilization
and which have been gainfully invested in liquid investments payable on demand. The
maximum amount of idle/surplus funds invested during the year was Rs 1,206.15 million, of
which Rs 934.15 million was outstanding at the end of the year.

Explanation: The Investors remitted the amount of share application money to the Company’s
Share Application Money Account on 9™ May, 2023 before circulating the Offer Letter (PAS-4) to
them. Upon realization, the investors requested the Company vide their letter dated 11™ May, 2023
to hold the amount on their behalf and to their order. After getting the necessary approval of Board
and Shareholders as per the Companies Act, 2013, the Offer Letter in PAS-4 was circulated to the
investors on 10" June, 2023. The shares in relation thereto were allotted by the Board of Directors
on 18™ July, 2023. Further, the Company considered the amount as a deposit and reported the same
in DPT-3 as well.

Explanation to the observations of the Secretarial Auditor mentioned in the Secretarial Auditor’s
report:

1. Company has granted loans to company in which common directors exists pending
compliance with section 185 of the Act.

Explanation: The loan was granted to the then Joint Venture Company M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences
Private Limited, (Ms. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited is a Subsidiary Company of the



Company as at the financial year ended on 31°* March, 2024) in which a director was common. The
required approval under Section 188 for the related party transaction was obtained by both the
Companies.

2. Filing of charge for credit facility in the form of FDOD pending

Explanation: With regards to the charge on FDOD with HSBC Bank, the Company initiated to file
CHG-1 with the MCA but the Bank confirmed by replying that “There is no requirement of creating
charge registration on FD lien-marked against OD facility.” Taking note of the confirmation from
bank, the company couldn’t file the form CHG-1 with the MCA in absence of bank’s signature.

3. The Company has received share application money before offering approval of the Board /
members, the Company has allotted shares beyond stipulated period of 60 days from the date
of receipt of application money

Explanation: The Investors remitted the amount of share application money to the Company’s
Share Application Money Account on 9™ May, 2023 before circulating the Offer Letter (PAS-4) to
them. Upon realization, the investors requested the Company vide their letter dated 11" May, 2023
to hold the amount on their behalf and to their order. After getting the necessary approval of Board
and Shareholders as per the Companies Act, 2013, the Offer Letter in PAS-4 was circulated to the
investors on 10" June, 2023. The shares in relation thereto were allotted by the Board of Directors
on 18™ July, 2023. Further, the Company considered the amount as a deposit and reported the same
in DPT-3 as well.

4. The utilization of share premium account is not in accordance with Articles of Association
of the Company

Explanation: as per the Articles 214 of the Articles of Association of the Company;

The company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject to, any
incident authorized and consent required by law,—

(a)its share capital;

(b)any capital redemption reserve account, or

(c)any share premium account

Whereas, as per Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), the securities premium account may be
applied by the company—

(a) towards the issue of unissued shares of the company to the members of the company as fully
paid bonus shares,

(b) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the company,

(c) in writing off the expenses of, or the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of
shares or debentures of the company;



{d) in providing for the premism payable on the redemption of any redeemable preference shares or
o any debemiures of the company; or
fel for the purcfuese of s own shares or other seciriiies wnder section 65,

Taking note of the Section 32 of the Companles Act, 2013, the share premiun was vsed by the
Clpampany in accargance with the provisions of the Seciion 52 of the Companles Aet, 2013,

%, The management has claimed that, the related party transactions are on arm's Iength basis
within the menning ol #eclion 1835 of the Companies Act, 2003,

Explanaiion: Al the related party fransaciions enfared disring the period under review Le. finarcial
year 202324 was at an arm's length price as per the provisions of the Section 188 of the
Comparites Ael, 200 3 and any rules mode therewnder,

For Veedn Clinienl Research Limited

O

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman

Flace: Ahmednbad
Deate: 28 TIVID24



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Fimancial Statements
Opinlon

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Standalone Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory infermation
{hereinatter referred to as the Standalone financial statements).

In gur gpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesald standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive Income, Its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (5As), as specified under section 143010} of the Act. Dur responsibllities under those
Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics' Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibiiities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the
audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Information Other than the Standalone Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibllity Is to read
the other infoermation and, in doing so, consider whether such other information Is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

hility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

any's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
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Act with respect to the preparation of these standalene financial statements thal give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash llows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other lrregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to frawd or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going cancern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reparting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
lssue an auditor's repert that includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statemaents.,

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

*  |dentily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur apinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting frem error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)0) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
a:cnuntlnq and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
Ialad to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
llnu::- as a going concern, Il we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
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to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, il such disclosures are Inadequate, to modily our opinion, Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, Tuture events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease o continue as a going concern,

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our awdit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

As fully explained in Hote 34 with regards to acquisition of Business of Ingenuity Biosciences
Private Limited, the amounts from 1 April 2023 till the date of acquisition L.e 1 September 2023
= considered for the purpose of acquisition accounting is based on financial statements audited
by other auditors who vide thelr audit report dated September 20, 2024, issued an unmaodified
opinion en its financial Information for the sald financial period, whose report has been furnished
o us by the management and our opinion In so far as it relates to the amounts included in this
regards, is based salely on the report of such other auditor,

Our opinkon is not modified in respect of above matter
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that;

{a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢} The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss Including the
Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow
Statement and Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(dy In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

() On the basls of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,

T 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on

March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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i wi:'|l1 respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annesure 2* to this report;

{g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the bhest of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on Its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Mote 21.1 to the standalone financial
statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses,;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢l Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate In the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to belleve that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vl. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording awdit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software (Refer Mote 37 to the
Standalone financlal statements). Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any Instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

ForSRBCECOLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Flrm Heqis.tratlun Mumber: 324902E/E300003

d)i
L

per Sukrut Mehta

Parbnar

Membership Number: 101974
UN: 2410197ABKERZR 5202
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date; October 25, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph of Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements of
our report of even date of Veeda Clinical Research Limlted for the year ended March 31, 2024,

i (a) {AY The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of Property, Flant and Equipment.

(a) {B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets,

{b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them over the period of
three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of Its assets. Mo material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no Immovable property (other than properties where the Company Is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

() The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024. Accordingly, the
reguirement to report on clause 3{Xd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{i)e) of the
Order is not applicable o the Campany.

i (a) The Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasenable and the coverage
and procedure for such verification is appropriate, No discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification,

{b) As disclosed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess ol Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are materially in agreament with
Ehe books of accounts of the Company,

i {a) During the year the Company has provided loan and stood guarantees to Companies as

follows:

. . CIMR million)
Partlculars Guarantees Loan
Aggregate amount granted/ provided 10,600.59 29.50
during the year to Subsidiary companies
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 10,600.59 Hil*
date in respect of above loan and

guarantees to Subsidiary companies

* Company has written off outstanding loan balance of Rs 16 million as mentioned in Note
4.5 to the standalone financial statement.

Further, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans and provided
security to any ather companies, firms, Limited liability Partnerships or any other parties.

{b) During the year the investments made, loan and guarantees provided and the terms

and conditions of the grant of loan and guarantees provided to Companies are not

. "___-}.\preju:llclal to the Company's interest. According to the information and explanation give
LR
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Lo us, the Company has nol provided security and granted advances in the nature of loans
to companies, firms, Limited Liabllity Partnerships or any other parties.

{c) The Company has granted loan during the year to company where schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. However, the principal
amount is written off at the year end and hence, no Interest and the principal amount have
not been recovered.

id) There are no amounts other than the aloresaid loan which has been written off and
advances in the nature of loans are granted to companies or any other parties which are
overdue for more than ninety days.

(e} There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
companies or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to the same parties.

{f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to any
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiXf) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments and guarantees in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no securities
given in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{iv) of the Order is not
applicable to that extent and hence not commented upon.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
ta report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Campany.

(a) Undisputed statutery dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate autherities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases, According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, duty of custom, cess, and other statutery dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:



wilil,

MR milllons)

f

Period to which

whera

Name of Statute x:‘:ﬁ u ‘I:']T:;:IE, :::!tes amount E;rn':‘":; Is pending
Floonce A | service tax 2.76 | FY 2008-09 iﬁf‘iﬂhaﬂ
i'ﬁ:ﬁ” A | service tax oy hr:;::'znﬁu " E:ﬁx:ﬂi:ad
g At | service tax 45,64 ggﬂ':g ki Eafﬂmpal cnén;:
— Ahmedabad
Eg‘;:“ At | service tax 128.19 ;;151:?.;4.15 W iﬁﬂﬂh =
o S T BOE. e 74.77 | FY 2017-18 T
g::ftf%? Goods AU
and Services Tax | So00C, O\ 3207 | V201815 | G o Guarat
Custom Act, 1962 g‘;::m 2.79 :g:gﬁ _tu E:;trﬁlsiuner
Custom Act, 1962 En‘::;“m 197 ggi:ji = iﬁf;ﬂ;m

*Met of amount paid under protest amounting to Rs, 12.22 million.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{vill} of the Drder is not
applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due
to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)Xa) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{h} The Company has not been declared wilful defautter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

{c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(1xXc) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

{d) On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basls have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person an account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, assoclates or Joint ventures.

{f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint venture. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3{ixXt) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (Including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment / private placement of shares during the
year except provision of section 42(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding delay In
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allokment of Equity shares beyvond sixty days from the date of receipt of the application
money and provision of section 42(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding delay in filing
of offer with Registrar within fifteen days of allotment. The amount raised along with
opening unutilised balance, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
ralsed except for Idie/surplus funds amounting to Rs 2,771.85 which were not required for
immediate utilization and which have been galnfully invested in liguid investments payable
on demand. The maximum amount of idle/surplus funds invested during the year was Rs
2, 77185 millien, of which Rz 1,484.32 million was outstanding at the end of the year.

(a) Mo material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b} During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
20132 has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companles
{Aaudit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c} As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
recelved by the Company during the year.

The Company Is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3{xii}a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to Information and explanation given by the management on certain transaction
entered with related parties being speclalized nature, the transactions with the related
parties are in compllance with sectlons 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed In the notes to the standalone financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audlt system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business,

{b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 30ov) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(2} The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 {2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(aovi)a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not conducted any MNon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

() The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 30xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{d) There Is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable te the Company.,

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current fimancial year and Im the
Immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 30xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



i sk e dadiifdinh

i On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 33 to the standalone financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of linancial assets and payment of
fimancial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing af the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due,

EX (a} In respect of other than ongolng projects, there are no unspent amounts thal are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the
Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act, This
matter has been disclosed in note 25 to the standalone financial statements.

b) Al the amounts that are unspent amounts under section (5) section 135 of Companies
Act, pursvant to any ongoing projects, has been transferred to a special account in
compliance of provislon of sub section (6) ol section 135 of Companies Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 25 to the standalone financial statements.

ForSREBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mumber; 324982E/E300003

ﬂQ{;D).J.

I'Il . -I

per Sukrut Mehta \\ : f},"lj
Partner : . //
Membership Number: 101974

UDIN: 241019T4BKERZR5202

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad

Date: October 25, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause () of Sub-sectlon 3 of Section 143 of the
Companles Act, 2013 ("the Act").

We have audited the internal financial contrals with reference to standalone financial statements
of Veeda Clinical Research Limited ("the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 In conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibliity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's palicies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
Infarmation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibliity

Dur responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these standalene financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auwdit invelves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
Internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our auwdit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
milsts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial conlrels with reference to these
standalane financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Cantrols with refergnce to these standalone financlal statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements Is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting
and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the standalone financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these standalone financlal statements

Becauge of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the Internal financlal controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compllance with the pelicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinlon, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate Internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guldance Mote issued by the ICAI

For SRBCA&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Mumber: 324982E/E300003

6%’?),

per Sulrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number; 101974
UDIN: 241019T4ABKERZRS5202
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: Octoher 25, 2024
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Veeda Chinical Besearel Linsite
Motes to Standnlone Fluancinl Stafemenis for the year ended March 31, 2024

. Corporate information

Veedn Clinical Research Limited (the Company™) is a Company damiciled in Indin with jis
registered office at Shivalik Plaza — A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association,
Asmbawadi, Abmedabod, Gujarat — 380015, Indin. The Company wns incorpornted on April 23,
Zﬂﬂﬂ-md#lh:pmuiﬂmufmnﬂuup-imhnnwﬂuhlnhlnﬁunﬂhuwhmnnlhuhlﬁm
of Clinical Research Ehrwlmuﬁwmmﬂhuhﬂmpudu,mcmpmyiu one roaf service
Elabal CRO specializing in the early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilities in
Indin. The Company provides a full range of services in phase [ and 11 clinical research with Clinjeal
anddhrm“mmmﬂﬂmmmmmwm
Blatechnology Industries worldwide, The Company has become n Publie Limited Company w.e.f,
huiﬂ.mluﬂmuﬂymumuﬂhumﬂmhnwm Veeda Clinical
Research Private Limited 1o Vieeda Clinfonl Research Limited.

The stnndalone finanginl statements were approved for bssue in accordance with a resolution of the
direciors on October 25, 2024,

L1 Mnterial nccounting policies
{A) Bazls of preparaiion

The standalone financial statements of the Company hove been prepared in acoordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as prescribed ander section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 03 amended
from time to time and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendmont Rules, 2016 and
presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 1 1o the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111,
as amended), and cther necounting principles generally nccepted in Indin.

The standalone financlal siatements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
fimancial mssels and linbilities measured at falr velue / amortized cosl (Refer note 28),

The standalone financial statensents are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded
to the nearest Ra. millions, except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs, 10,000 has boen
indicated as “** as the same is nuflified on conversion of rupees in million.

mﬂmwhnmpudﬂmﬂuuﬁﬁtddmnWmmnh;hﬂullﬁllmmm&pu:mu
& going concern,

(&) Swmmary of milerial neconnting policies

i, Current versus nom-eurrent classification

ﬂuﬂmmnrmumﬂtmlhhiuﬁuln&ubdmmuhﬂmwﬂmm
classification. An asset is treated &2 current when it s

Expecied to be realized or intended to be sobd or consusmed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of tading;

Expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unloss restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a labillty
far at least twelve months after the reparting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

i i N e

A liability is treated a8 current when:
1. It is expected io bo sciiled In normal operating cycle;




Veodn Clinical Rosearch Limited
Notes to Standalone Financhal Sistements for the year ended March 31, 2024

. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itis due to be seitled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the linbility for st leasi twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and linbilities are classified a8 non-current assets and linbilitics respectively,

The opernting cycle ks the time between the soquisition of asscts for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

I Foreign currencles

The Company's standalene financial siatements are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rs."), which is
ilso its fanctional cumency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign eurrencles are initially recorded by the Company at its fimetional currency
spot rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical rensons,

the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
tmnaaction.

Monetary nssets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated nt the functional
currency spol rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on selilement or translation of monetary Hems are recognised in the
profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange mies at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
manetary items measured at fair value in a forelgn currency are tmnslated using the exchange rates
at the date when the falr valug is determined. The gain or loss arising on translution of non-monetary
Heass measured st fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain o loss on the change
in fair value of the item (io., tmnslation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCT or profit and less are also recognised in OCI or profit and loss, respectively),

. Falr value measurcment

The Company measures financial Instruments, such as, derivatives ot fair value at esch balnnes
shicel date. Fair value is the price that woald be recelved to o1l an nsset or paid to transfer a labiliy
in an orderly transaction botween market participants at the measurement date. The fair valuoe
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or transfer the Habiliy
takes place cither:

(1) In the principal market for the asset or lisbility, or
(H) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset ar Hability.

The principal or the most adwantageous market must be accesaible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or & ability ks measizsed using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or linbility, assuming that market participants act in their econamic best interest.

A fair value measurement of o non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
1o generata economic beneflis by wing the assef in its highest and best use or by selling it to snother
mearket participant that weiild use the assed in ils highest ad best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for wiich
suflicient data are available to measure fuir value, maxtimising the use of relevant observalile inputs
anel minimising the wse of unobservable inputs,

All assets and lisbilitics for which fair value is mensured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statesmients are categorised within the fuir value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input hat is significant to the fair value mieasurentenl as o whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilitias

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fir value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valss
measurement is unabservable

Far usscts and linbilities that are recognised in the Standalone financial stalemenls on & recurring
basis, the Company dotermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

re-agsessing categorisation (based on the lowest lovel input that iz significant 1o the fir valus
measurament =5 n whale) nt the endd of each reprting period,

The manngement determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurersent
i for non-recurring measurement.

Al each reporting date, the management analyses the movemants fn the values of assets and
IhﬁﬁﬁuuﬂiﬂmmmﬁmmhmmMm-WHwhﬂnmpauyﬁmﬂq
pelicies. Por this analysls, the management verifics the major inputs applied In the Intest valuation
by ngreelng the information in the vahmtion computation to contrects and other relevanit documnents,

ﬁnmllmmmminﬂnﬁimnfudamandlhbiliwﬂﬂndmu
external sources (o determine whether the change is reasonabla.

Far the purpese of fir value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
thllﬁlﬂmlhuhnhnfﬁumdmﬂuﬁﬂnmdrhhnﬂlulnd[anHI'mrlMduhfﬂ af
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note surmanarises secounting poliay for fair value. Other fidr value related disclosures are given
in tha ralevant notes,

(n) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumplions (note 28)
(1) Quanititative disclosures of fuir value measurement hierrchy (note 28)

(=) Financial hmn{hddhulhmurﬂudalmﬂhadm}[nmm

. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognisad when control of the services Is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the considerstion to which the Company expects to be
entithed hﬂdnwﬂrﬂmmmﬁuﬂmm;hnpwdbmmhmﬂmnhﬂuw
in its revene srangements bmmilﬁ'ﬁullymnmmahvimhﬁmu-uihrdngﬂm to the
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Sule of service

The Company's contracts with customers include promises to transfer mailtiple services 1o &
m-hm&mmmmmhﬁmmﬂhﬂhmphlmﬂmmlm
the cantract has been approved, in writing, by the parties 1o the contract, the parties to controct are
comeitied to perform thelr respective abligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
perfarmance obligations h&c:ﬂm.ﬂmﬁmnﬁmmmmwmwm
these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Company exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is
uMﬁ.MﬂmmﬂmiMmmﬁaMMwhﬂuumhﬁ
nre rendered or who controls the asset as i is beiiyg created or existénce of enforceable right to
mmmrwhmmduumdﬂmﬂurmmmmh,mﬁmfﬂminnm
rhhuﬁmmdlt}dnm,nmmufdﬂhmwmm.m

For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company bas determined that an cutput
methed is appropriste measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by nssessing the
performance completed nrddhﬂmm&numdummnfmummThnmu
wiilized to assess progress on the satisfection of performnce are specific to the performance
obligation identiffied in the contract.

Coniract Balances
Con brwct asseis

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services becouse the receipl
of consideration is conditional on successful conapletion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as cantract assets is reclassified to
trnde receivables,

Cnmunhmnbjmwhnphumlmmhﬁrhmﬂmpﬂﬁumlmm:
of financial assets in scction (p) Financial instruments — fndtial recognition and subsequent
InEASUREiaent.

Trada receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is uneoaditional (i.c., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration it due). Refer 1o acosunting policles of
financial assels in section (p) Financial Instruments — initial recopnition and subsequent
MseASIrenIent.

Contract labilities

A contract Hability is recognised if a payment is recefved or a payment is due (whichever is carlier)
from a customor before the Company transfiers the related services, Comtract liabilities are
recognised as revenus when the Company performs under the eoriract,

e Diher Income

Otiher income is recognised when no significant uncertainty s to its determination or realisation
exisis.
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f. Taxes
Ciirrent Income inx

hm{cﬁhrlnﬂhw“mmnmhquim.muximmmhﬂ in
correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in OCI or direcily In equity. Manngement
mﬂuﬂwﬂﬂuhmuuﬂ}ﬂmhmmmﬁmmmmﬂhﬁhwm

Deferred iax

Deferred tax is provided using the linbility method on tempormey difforences betwoen the ta bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date,

Daferred tux finbilities are recognised fior all taxable tempornry differences, axoapl:

i} When the defered tax linbility arises from the initial recogmition of goodwill or an assed or
Hnl:ﬂl'l:.rluIhwmﬂ[nnlhtiumllhu'nmmﬂ!dmﬂmmd,mhu time ofthe transaction,
tﬂnmnﬁhmhumuﬂngpmﬁtmrmmurlmmddmummﬂnmmﬂ
tnxable and deductible temporary differences

il In respect of taxable temporary differences nssocisted with investments in subsidincies,
associates and nterests In joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temparary differences will not
revesse in the foreseeable Fisture,

Deferred tax assets nre recognised for all deductible temporary differcnces, the camy forward of
mmndﬂwdmnﬂmmmadmhuu.mfmﬂmmmmhﬂuﬂwnmdﬂ
i is probable that taxsble profit will be mvailabie ngainst which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits and unused tax losses can be ufilised,
Except:

) MhMMmmuhmmﬂudmwmmmm
initial recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction that is not o business combination
nnd, ot the time of the transaction, affects neither ﬂuuwmigpnﬂlmunb]nmﬁlw
loas and does not give rise to aqual myabls ind deductible temporary differences

1}} In respect of deductible temporary differences associnted with investments in subsidiarics,
mssocintes and Interests in jodnt ventures, d:l-‘mndhxu-ﬂanmumhudmﬂylnﬂw
mMﬂhmulmlhumdlﬁrum\ﬁllmhMu foreseeable fislure
and taxable profil will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax nssets is reviowed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be svailable to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to bo wtilised, Unrecognised deferred tna: asscls are re-nssessed ai each
I'ﬂ:rmﬂngiillﬂndmmmiudmlhamb:nuhulhhubmmpmbabhﬂuﬁmmmnﬂnmﬁh
will allow the deferned tax assst 1o be recovessd.,
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Dulhmﬁmmud!hﬂﬁﬂmwm:datﬂwlnmmdummmdmw in the year
when the nsset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tx rates {and tax laws) that have been
mu:dn—:drunﬂutfuuﬁqdulhnmlhgdﬂu.

Dieferved tax relating 1o items recogmised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
rmthMmhquhmemhmw in correlation
b thea mﬂwmmmhdhhMm'dimlyh oty

The Company offsets tax assets and linbilities if and only if it bas a legally enforceable right 1o set
off defemed inx mﬁtﬂh&dﬂhﬂmﬂlﬂﬁﬂuﬂummimluu levied by the same tax
nmuthority,

Goods mind services tax padd on acquisition of assels or on incurring exponses
Expenses and nssets are recognised ned of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, exoepd:

] Mm:huhinunadm:wrﬂmﬁnnﬁumﬁmhmmw—nﬂ:ﬂnmm
faxation sutharity, in which cass, the ta pald hmmhdumﬂfﬁumﬂnrmﬂ!rum
of the asset or as part of the expense item, a5 applicable; and

if) When recelvables and payables are stated with the amount of tax inchuded.

Tho net amount of tax recoverable from, ar paynbie to, the taxation autherity is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balanes sheet.

B Property, plant, sed equipnent

ﬁwqﬁ-.mwuquipnmlmﬂmnmﬁ, net of accumulated depreciation snd aceumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes lbunmafrmhuhuplnnf&upl-tudmuimm
and bowrowing costs for bong-term construction profects if the recognition eriterias are met. When
ﬂmﬂmmﬂﬁfplmtuﬂquhﬂmnmﬁumuhmﬂmidﬂm,ﬂuw
WMWMmMrMNMIIH.HManmm
i performed, fts cost s m:npindinlhnunﬁmmufmmudiqhhmlu-
replacement If the recogrition eriterins are satisfied. All other repair and nalntenance costs are
recognised mtanm#pmmwlmnhnmdmmiﬂm&hummfw
the decommissioning of am asset nfter its use is inchaded in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition eriterias for a provision are met.

Capital wark in progress is stated at eost, not of sccumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of propesty, plant and exuipments that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the

dnlz of Balnnes Shest

Deprecintion is calculnted on & written down value method over the estimated wsefil lives of the
Bszsls as follows:

Aiskadd Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule TT of

the companies Act 2013

Plant and equipment Sl

Odffice equipment |5
| Computars and peripherals 3

Fumniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles ]

Lensehold improvements are doprecinted on straight line basis over the period of lease or usefisl
life, thnjl'p:rmI: levwer,

o R

ﬁﬂﬁ

nmp'?

Ahmedabad] S
G\ o
o y

W
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An item of property, plant and equipment wxl any significant part initially recognised |s
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
dwwmwlm:ﬁr‘mwum of the asset (calculated as the difference between
muﬂdmmwhﬂﬂyimmmiwmﬂjhlmhﬂdhmmﬂm
and loss when the asset is derecognised,

The residual values, usefisl lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and edpui prnent are
reviewss] &t each financinl pariod end m:uﬂunndmpmiulf.ﬁnmprhh.

h. Inianglble nsseis

Intangible asscts are amortised over tle usefisl economic life and assessed for impainment whenever
Hmhmirﬂhﬂmﬂmhﬂnnﬂﬂi-nﬂmhimﬂmmmﬁmpuﬂmdlh

derecognised,
A summary of the policies applied 1o the Compnrry*s intangible assets is as follows:
Intamgille III'II'IH-“ﬂ_‘ genorated or
Usoful lives | Amortisation method used wired

e Amartised on o straight-line basia

i 3 ycars over the period of computer | Acquired

soflwars =]
i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the scquisition, construction or production of 5 asset that
mocessarily takes n substantial period af time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalissd
i3 part of the cost af the sesst. All ather berrewing costs are expensed in the period in which they
m.wmmmMnrm:mﬂmmmﬂmmmrMnhmmm
the borrowing of fimds. Borrowing mﬂﬁuimhﬂuuﬁdunpﬂﬁﬂ:mhﬂnﬂ:ﬂmlmﬂﬂdd
a5 an adjustment to the barrowdng costs,

J- Lenzes

Th':m'npin}'nlmullmulnfnﬂpﬁmﬂhlhwlmmit.wmuhu,n[nmﬂuth,if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an idhentified asset for n period of time in
exchange for considerntioi,

E-:-luuplu}' % n lesges
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BC&¢

The Company applies 1 single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
-mmlummdlmdhw-vdmmmw recognises lease linbilities to make
lense payments and right-oFame assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.,

mﬂmememumeusﬂm lease (i.e., the date
the underlying msset is avajlable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured al cost, less any
-nm_meHnd dqnﬂu.ﬂy and Impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

incentives received. Hﬂmmﬂmdﬂﬂwﬁawm- strafght-line basis over the period of
ltulmul:rmtﬂﬂntﬂhmndw:ﬁﬂ“mnfﬂnmwhldmn is ghorter, as follows:

Building — up 1o 12 yenrs

Emﬂﬂhﬁduﬂlmhhlbﬁﬂmmulhmdafﬂthmmwhm
reflects the exercise of a purchase aption, depreciation s caloulated using the estimated useful life
of the nsset, The right-of-use nssets wre also subject to impairment.

Iy Lense labilifics

hlﬂlﬂ'_l'ﬂm"llldﬂpﬂﬂmmim“lﬂh.nﬂmmdmhﬂﬂwrﬁﬂml
value guarantees. The leass payments also include the exercise price of n purchnse option

paymnts that do not depend on an index or a mte are recognised 83 expenses (unless they are
Imeurred 1o produce inventories) in the period in which the event ar candition that triggers the
payment opcurs,

mnluﬂwmﬂnmvdmnfhmmmu,ummmmm incremental borrowing
rale at the lease commencement date because the interest rade implicit in the leass Is nat readily
determinnble. Afler the commencement dae, the amount of lease lisbilities is Incrensed 1o reflect
mmwmmmmmﬂmmmumm addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a shange in
Mlmw[mmmhmmummm.minmhm oF Fale
used o dm:nimnthhum}wudmp in the assessment of an eption to purchase the
underlying asset.

lif) Short-term leases and lenses of low-value assels

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-lerm lcases of
mmmmmmnammmwmurmwmnm

straight-line basiz over the beass term,
Company as a lessor

The Company has sub leased cortain affice premises. Rentsl income arising is sccounted for on a
siright-line basis over the lease terms, Contingent rents are recognised as income in the perfod in

[ 2

A
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k. Invesiaries
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nial realizable valise,
Mhmmdhhrhgtngnﬂpﬁmmlupmmhmﬂuuuﬂmdllhnnmm for as

fallows:

mmmmmMurwmwwmmmmmnghm
1o their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first In, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estinated selling price in the ordinary conrse of business, less estimated
costs of complelion and the estimated costs necessary (o make the sale.

Provigion ﬁr:luwmﬁnguﬂnm-mﬂugiwmmirwdumwdnﬂna i$ expecied usage
pattern.

. Impadrment of non-financial nssols

mﬂmmuuﬁupmiudmmwmmhmmhﬂmﬂummmyh
impaired, I any such indication exists or when annus] impairment lesting for an asset i required,
ﬂmﬂmmnjuﬂmﬂuﬂnum‘smwmhlnmnmu.Anmu'-rmnvmb]:amwmhmnhigin
af nn asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair vidue less costs of disposa] and its value in use.
The recavernble amount is detormined for an individual nssed, unless the nssel does not gesernte
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assels or groups of assels. When the
carying amount of an nsset or CGU exceeds its recoverabile amownt, the neset is consldered as
impaired and is written down is reduced to its recoverable amaurnt.

In asseasing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted o their present value using
a pre-tax discount mie that reflects current market assessments of the time valse of money and the
Hahlpmiﬂnhﬁuliﬂ.hdl:lmhlm fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. Ifno such transactions can be identifiod, an appropriste valuation model is
used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation maltiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available firir value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment caleulation on detniled budgets and forecast caleulations,
Mﬁmnmmﬂyﬁwuﬂnfmﬂmw'uﬂﬂmhmmahdwmm
nlfmnd.Thuanﬂﬂnmu!mﬂHinugwﬂly covera period of five years, For longer
m‘hﬂa]mmhmkuhﬂundmjwﬂudhpmimﬂm‘uuﬂmlﬁumﬂﬂh
year. To estimate cash flow projections boyond periods covered by the most recent
Mpmffw:um,lhcummnmhmﬂhfl:rwpmjnmiuuhﬂnhﬂpuu:imumm-nr
ﬂﬂﬂ;mﬁmhm:mm%mlrnwm::numhujmﬁﬁnd.hmrm
mhmmﬂmdnummmnlnugmwuappwﬂimhﬁrumpmhmim.w
mumm-ﬂmmcmwmwmmmmmmmmhm.

Impairment lossos of contimiing opersations, meluding impairment cn inventories, are recognised
i the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revalustion surplis,

An mssessment is made at ench reporting date io determine whelher there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, 1f any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the assst’s or CGLI's recoverable amseint. A proviously recognised
impairment loss Is reversed anly if there has heen n changs in the sssuinptions used 1o determine
the asset’s rocoverable amount since the Iast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal s
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does ot exceed its recoverable nmaunl, o exceed

e W
2 &
{*’?ﬁ ﬁy

Ly
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te carrying amount that would have been d-e::miud.mufdmlﬂhq,had na impaireendt loss
hmmndh'ﬂulmllnwhym.ﬂmhuw s recognised in the statement of prodit
anecd boss unless the ssset is carried at o revalsed amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment is determined hmﬂdhﬂlhylﬂﬂiuﬂwmmblﬂmafnﬁ COU (or
ﬂnmdm{h}h!ﬁhmﬂrﬂm%hmmnmnﬂhﬂﬂﬂh
less than it"s carrying amount, an impairment boss is recognised. Impairment logses relating to
m-udwillmh:mvamdhﬂllmnpu‘hdl.

m. Provisioms

muimmmhmhmhmmnamm. but anly when
the reimbursement Is virmlly certain. The expense relating fo n provision iz pressnted in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursesnent, if any.

IF the effect of the time valus of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
mm:ﬂmnﬂmu.mmmumhmndﬂﬁwﬂulinhﬂity.%’hmd.lmmhuruuud.
the incresse in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

. Retivement and other employee honefits

Rﬂimmthumﬂlhﬂuihmﬂmﬁhﬂmhwﬂ:mﬂdmtﬂmdmdmp]wum
mammﬂmh;mmwﬂmmmmmmmlm athear
lhmﬂumwfhﬁmplﬂhhmﬂhpmﬂmmﬂmdﬂslﬂmmmpmymim
contribulion paynble to the provident fund and ESIC s an expense, when an employes renders the
related service,

The Company operates a defined bepedit gratuity plan in Indla, which requires contributions to be
made (o a separstely administered fund, Thmnnfmiﬂnghumfhmlhﬂud:ﬂlmihmm

Rmmhmﬂﬂngnrmmﬂdplulmﬂ tunu.ﬂnnmmumcumuullhm,mtmn;
mmmhduﬂhmhhumlh:mhﬁmdmﬁlﬂllrymdﬂuEHHnmphmm
(exchuding amounts included in net fnterest on the net defined benefit linbility), are recognised
imenedintely in the balance sheet with i corresponding debit ar eredit 1o retained sarmings through
OCl in the periad in which they ocour, Remeansurements are not reclassifled to profit or loss in
subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recagnised in the statement of profit and loss o the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curiailment; and
i} Th:dlhﬂq\#ﬁﬂ:ﬂnﬂwmrmm rolated restructuring costs.

Net interest is caloulated by applying the discount rate to the net dofined benefit lability or asset,

Tmmmwmuﬁmwﬂﬂtwh‘mnmin:hamd:ﬂmd benefit obligation as an cxpense
hlhmmﬂmﬂlndlm:

1) Service costs comprising current service oosE, pasi-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and materouting selilements; and

e
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i) Met interost expense or incoms,

Accumulated leave, which ks expected to by ulilized within the noxt twelve months, is treated as
mmﬂpmmmcmmmmwm of such absences as the
additional nmount that it expects to pay as o result of the umsed entitlement that has accurmilated
at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected cost of short4erm employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service,

deferred. The obligations are presented as currant linbilities in the balance sheet i the entily does
mhmmumdfﬂumlﬂshlwd:ﬁ:-lhmﬂmmﬂ:ru heast twelve months nfler the reporting
data,

0. Share-based paymenis

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-setiled tramsactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred, Estimating fair value for share-

1Iﬂq:u'ndmtn-nﬂulﬂrﬂﬂmﬂmdﬂimnfﬂmgﬂnl.Thhn:lmltlﬂb:mquiudﬂﬂmﬁuﬂmnf
IhuHﬂﬂapprnpﬂmhpmnnlhuﬁ]tlﬁmmﬂdimmwﬂwmmu“rﬁnﬂhnmm
volatility and dividend yield and making sssumptions about them, For ensh-settied share-based
mmwmmmmmmhmw-ﬂmmﬂnfmwh;pﬁudw
1o the date of setilement, with any changes in fnir value recognised n the profit and loas, This
mm-mnwmmmma:mmnrmh reporting pericd. Far the

p- Finaneinl lostrumonts

A finaneoind instrismsent hawmmmumﬂumnﬁnmklmnﬂmmhrmdaﬂhamid
liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financinl naseis
fuitind recognition mud imeasirsmen

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, &s subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through ofler comprehensive income (QCI), and fair value through profit and loss,

The classification of finencinl assets at initial recagnition depends on the financial asset's
unrllrlmﬂuﬂmwdwmimuandlh:ﬂmmnfl business model for mannging them, With

which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initinlly measures a financial
ﬂ-ﬂHil.lﬂ.i'Hl'l.rl:plll,ll'llhu:lﬂuflﬁmmhlmﬂnﬂﬂﬁrﬂmlhmlghmmﬂﬂm
hlm:ﬂmmude:mwnHﬁﬂmhnmmmhnﬂpﬂﬁﬂmﬁn—ulmmmmﬁw
Hﬂﬂﬁﬂuﬁnwh&@lﬁhwﬂi&h::mﬂhﬂmmmﬂ at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115,

In arder for a finnncial ssset to be classified and mieasured at amartised cost or fair value theough
OCT, it nobds to give rise to cash Mows ihat are “solaly payments of pringipal and interest (SPPI)"
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nhﬂﬂﬁ:dnndmmumhﬁmmbﬂdﬁﬂﬂ:hﬂwmﬁdwﬂhhnﬁ}mhh
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while fimancial asseds classifed and
uulmmﬁErﬂlmmnu;hﬂﬂtnhﬂwﬁﬂﬂubmmmlmm:}nuﬂﬂunrm
holding to colleet contrachusl cash Mlows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame estabiished
byumhﬁmwmﬂmhhnuﬁnﬁmwmmmdu}mwNmnm
date, ie, Huh:lhdﬂuﬂummmmmhlnpw:hmum: the ngsel

Subgwgueit ieenswrement
Fn-pmpuunfnhmq-,mlm.tmur, finnmvcial asscis mre classified in four calegories:

i} Financial aseets s smortised codt (debi Instruments)

i} Fhﬁ:lm#ﬁirwﬁwﬂumqhuhummmwinm{F?TMU with recyeling of
cumulative gnins and losses (debt

iﬂjﬂmmﬂmﬂ:ﬂulmundltﬁdrnhnwuh OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
fosses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

v} Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

nwmammwmumﬂw
A *financial m'hmdmnmﬂﬂmmmmm;m:nmu:

{} The ssset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual eash flows; and

i} ﬂmlwmnfﬂumgimﬁnmwﬁddm to cash flows that are salely payments
of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding.

Thlnﬂwhlhqmrﬂmmuucman}u Adfter inktial measurement, such financial assets
mmmumﬂdmﬂmMﬂwdﬁﬂhMmﬁmﬁmﬂt}mﬂmﬂ.
Amortised cost is calealated by t=king im0 account any discount &F premium on acquisition und
ﬁummﬂ:lhﬂnmintqrdp-tuﬂhuﬂlll‘hﬂlﬂmﬂ]mimla inchaded in finance income
hﬂmpmﬁtmdlmmtmmuiﬁm from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit
m:mﬁﬁm‘:ﬁ-ﬂﬂm:umﬁdmmmhﬁmﬂmth.m
receivables and loans.

mmrﬂmﬂﬂrmﬂmkmmbﬂ

Fhmumnmmhmwml and loss are oarvied in the balance sheet at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

This eategory includes investment in mutsal funds and call opticn on non-controlling interest of
subsidiary company,

Derivatives and hedging nefivitles

The Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign curmoncy risks.
Derivatives nre initinlly recognised at filr vilue on the date a derivative contract is entered into
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and are subsequently marked 1o rr-rtutulh:mdnfm:hmpmhupuiudtﬁﬂimf&fluubﬁm
mwpim&inlﬂwmnu&'mnﬁmdhm-ﬁnhu,ﬂwﬂmmh:ﬂmmﬁuudlnmwlﬂpﬁm
in respect of its investment in its subsidiary whdch are initinily recognised at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognised ﬂmﬂmu#fpmﬂ:mdh:.ﬂ:dﬂlh:mf
linhilities are classified ander “other financial assets / other financial liabilities™. Profits and losses
arising from cancellation of contracts are recogaised in the statement of profit and loss,

Embedded Derivatives

A financial nsset {or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
Binancial assets) Is primarily derecagnised (i_e., removed from the Company's standalons balance
sheet) when:

i) mﬁﬁmmmmﬂumﬁmnunmhnunﬁ:ﬂ,m
i) The Company hes transforred its rights to receive cash flows from the ngset or has pssumed an

When the Company has transferred iis rights to recciva cash flows from an asset or has entered
ﬁmnWmiwﬂmhifunﬂmnﬂmithhdﬂum&

mmhhmm:nfmcunmy':mﬂmngMMvnmmuﬁmu,ﬂnﬂw
also recognises am nssociated linbility. The tmnsfeered asset mnd the assooimbed lability are
muﬂmnhmfuuumﬂmﬂwﬁglﬁmﬂllmim that the Company has retained.

& the hﬁﬂmmwummﬁm”mﬂmnﬂm:mﬁmﬂuﬁm
that the Company could be required to repay.

Tmpairment of financlal aeses

In accordance with Ind AS Im,hﬂmwwuummmh]mm’jmﬂd fiar
measurement and recagnition of impairment loss, For trade reccivables and contract mssnls, the
Company npplies » simplified approach in calculnting ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not
track changes in credit risk, Mwwhnlmmmmhﬂdm lifetime ECLs at each
mﬁmm%ﬂhﬂtﬂﬂﬂiﬂmﬂlwmmﬂhlhuh'hﬂﬂdmithMﬁlﬂudﬂ
loss experience, adjusted for forward-locking factors specific to the debiors and the ecanomic
enviranment

ECLs nre recognised hhmutagﬁ.!’nrl:md'itnxmu for which there has not been n significant
in credit risk since initinl recognition, ECLs nre provided for eredit losses that result from
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default events that are passilde within the next twelve months {a twelve month ECL). For thase
credit ﬂpuﬂnslhwhlnhltmhubmtﬁpﬁﬁmthm—mn[nﬂudhmhﬂm initial
recagnition, & loss allownncs is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irespective of the timing of the default {i-e., o lifetime ECL).

Imvestment in Subsidiaries, Jolnt ventures s Associntes
A subsidiary is an entity that s controlled by another entity.

An associsle is an entity over which the Company has significant Influence. Significant influence
is the power to panticipate in the financial and opernting policy decisions of the Investse but is not
coudrol or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is 2 type of jeint arangement wherely the parties that have joint contral of the
armangement hove rights io the net assets of the joint venture, Joint corsiral is the contruchually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing comtrodl,

Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates are measured at cost less impairment in
accordance with Ind AS 27 “Separate Finenclal Statements™,

Impnirmont of investmenis

The Company reviews its camrying value of investments carred ol cost annually, or more frequendly
whien there is indication for impaimment, If the recoverable nmount is less than its carrying amount,
the Impairment loss is recorded in the Statarnent of Profit and Loss,

When an impakrment loss subsequently roverses, the camylng smount of the Invesiment is
InmuﬂllﬂEwmindﬂlimﬂiurmnmht:mnmlﬁllhhﬁumdwrﬁngumt
dnur.nlﬂm:dﬂmmurunhnmhmnrmimdmm loss is recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit or Loss,

Business Acquisition

Business combinations are accownted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an scquisition
hMBHWﬂﬂhmmmﬂmhﬂimdﬁhﬁm
uﬂﬂumurwmnmlmﬂin;iuwuh the scquiree. For each business combination,
mwyﬂmwmmmmmmmhmmumm
or # the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assces., Acquisition-related costs are
expensed In the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received, with the
exception urﬁumnfinﬂmdﬂnmaqﬂwmﬂlhlhtnmhdh accordance with
Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 108,

At the acquisition date, the idemtifiable nasets ncquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised
nt their acquisition dsle fair valses. For this purpose, the liabilities nssumed include contingent
linbilities representing present obligation and they are measurcd af their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying ecansmic beneflts Is not probable.

If the busirvess combination is schieved in stages, any proviously held equity interest s re-measured
at its acquisition date fair vidue and any resulling gain or loss s recognised In profit or loss or OCI,
RS Apprapriste.

Any coatingent consideration to be transforred by the acquirer {3 recognised at fair value at the
nequisition date. Contingent comsideration classified ms an asset or lisbility that is o fnancial
instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Finoncial Instruments, is measured at fir value
wimnhup:hﬁllrmﬂu:mmiuﬂhpmﬂlmlnu fn accordance with Ind AS 109, I the
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contingent conslderation iz mot within the scope of Ind AS 109, it Is measured in accordance with
|h:appmp-imHﬂsmdlhllhumgnjndhmﬁ.wlnn.cmuwmidmnﬁmmuh
classified ng equity is not re-meassired at subsequent reparting dates and subsequent its sedilement
s accounted for within equity.

Cioodwill hlnimhrmmummbdngﬂumnfmu ngpregate of the consideration
transferred and thye amount recognised Fq-um-nmuulllrulmm:m,mdm previous interest held,
umhmldﬂiﬂuﬁ]uuuﬁmdmﬁuﬂ]iahﬂiﬂnm If the fair value of the net assets
;uquiudhhmu:ﬂfﬂuthnmdhuimmmnmpmmh
hes commectly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilitics assumed and reviews the
wm.umdmmm-mhhrm@muhmmmndm.lrm
mu.ummulumujulummnnfmmrvﬂmnrmmmmmmm:w
mlhﬂﬁunﬂﬁﬂﬂ:miﬂhﬂhnphhmﬂuilnﬁimﬂmhhdhmﬁwuup{u
reserve. However, if there i5 o clear evidence of bargain parchase, the entity recognises the gain
ﬂmbhqtﬂun%mﬁﬂmutmmmﬂmmm OCL

ﬁﬂm—hﬁﬁdmmgqhhmmmhmmumrmwmw impalrment loases, For
the purpose of impafrment testing, goodwill acquired i & business combination is, from the
ncquisition date, allocaled to each of the Company*s cash-generating undts that are expected 1o
hmnﬂl:ﬁmnﬂnmﬁdhhinmmufwhﬂunﬂumwIinbjllliunfﬂwlwﬂmm
nsslgried 1o ihoss wmils,

Business combinntions under common control

Hmhmwnirhlﬂmmmgmﬂiuu-hmhmmdummlmmhdﬁr
using the pooling of interest meothod, Under poaling of interest mathod, the mssets and linbillthes of
the combining entities or businesses are reflected at their carrying amounts sfter making
sdjusiments necessary hhmmuumrﬁumﬁdn.mﬁlbﬁutiuﬁmuuim in the
ﬂmﬁlmhwuﬁpﬂﬁpﬂiﬂ:hmuﬂuflhhﬂnmmhMmm
oeearred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irmespective of the
mlhafﬂmmﬁ[nuﬂmﬂ:ﬁdmlﬁynfhmhmﬁdin the same farm in which
they appeared in the fnancial ststements of the tmnaferor and the difference, if any, between the
amount recorded as share caphial {ssued plus any additienal considerstion in the form of cash or
other nssets and the ameunt of ghare capital of the transfieror bs transferred to capital reserve,

Financial linkilities
Initial recognition mnd meatnremant

Flnancial ligbilitics are classified, at initinl recognition, g finameial linbilities at falr value through
profit and loss, losns and borrowings, payables, or s derivatives designuied ns hedging instrisments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial linbilities are recognised initinlly st fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of direotly attributable tramsaclion cosis.

The Company's financial linbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafis, financial Euarenies contracts and demvalive financinl nstruments,

Subsequeni mensiremeni
For purpases of subsequant measuroment, financial Habilities are classified in two cateporiea:

i) Financinl Habilities at fair value thraugh profit and loss
ii} Financial linbilities af smoriised cost (Jeans and barrowings)
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Finuctal labilities ad fair value through profit and loss

Financial lizbilities st fair value through profit and loss include financial linbilites held forr trading
and financial linbilities designated upon infiial recognition as at fir value through profit and loss.

Financial L-luhilil.ium:hjmﬂhnldﬁrm&qirlqulmmﬂhmwwﬁ
Whlhmrﬁﬁhﬂmﬂhhﬂuﬁulﬁdvﬂlwﬁﬂimm
mwmwmummmuquwminmyﬂmmu
defined by Ind AS 109. Scpamted embedded dorivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are desipnated as affective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on Habilities held for trading are recagnised in the profit and loss,

Financial linbilities designaied upon initial recognition st fair vilug through profit and loss are
dhipludumqhuﬂulullhldﬂnnrmna.uiﬂm-ﬂmlﬂfuwniluiuutpmmudinh:fﬁs
109 are satisfled. For lisbilities designated as FVTPL, falr value grins / losses attributnble to
mmmmﬁﬁmmﬁﬂhmmmwrm“mwhqm
transferred o statemomt of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
giin or loss within equity. All other ehanges in fulr value of such lability are recognised in the
profit ard less. The Company has not designated any financinl linbility as at fair value throwgh
prodit and los,

Mhﬂmﬂwmﬁmmﬂw

This is the category most rebovant to the Comgany. After initial recognilion, inferest-bearing loans
nnd borrowings are subsequently measured ot amortised oost using the EIR method, Gains and
I'nﬂul!'ﬂrﬁ:&wh&rﬂlumunfgmﬁundhnwhmﬂulinhiiﬂiumMthu well
ns through the EIRt smortisstion process.

Amartised cost is calculated by taking into sccount any discount or premium on acquisition and
Fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included a8 fnance costs
in the statemsent of profit and loss. .

Thés categary generally applics to borrowings.
Derecognirion

A financial Hability is derccognised when the obligntion under the linbility is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing finsncial linbility ix replnced by snother from the same
lender on substantilly different terms, or the terms of an existing linbility arc substantinlly
mﬂﬂﬁﬂnﬂmmhunmmuﬂﬂuimisuumduth:dnumguhmbfﬂwn:lgimllluhllhy
il Mmﬂhufnmﬂﬂ!h.%ﬁfhuuhﬂummﬁwmhmm is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offeetting of financlal nstrumenis

Finansial assets atiel financial labilities are offsct and the net amoant is reported in te standalone
balance sheet if there s & currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an imtention to settle on a net basis, o realise the assets and settle the labilithes
simultaneously. -

. Cnsh and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cn hand and shart-term
depasits with an original matusity of three months or less that are readily convertible to & known
amount of cash and subfect 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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For the purpose of the statement of standalone cash flows, cash and cash equivalents conaist of
mhudimnmdqmin.uduﬁmmn,nﬂutmmhahnkmmﬁﬂuuuqm
mﬁduulmrmsmlpmnfﬂmmmpuuy’nm nnapement,

v Enrnings per shars

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loas attribatable to equity holders
of parent Company (after deducting preference dividends and ntiribuable tiees) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

Far the purposs of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or boss for the period
lliﬂbmh[ulnnqlityﬂhﬂm[ﬁﬂnﬂhnpuultﬂmpﬂ}'ﬂdﬂhwijid nverage oumber of
duumhudhghrimuwpuinqulmm for the effects of all dilwiive potential Bouity
ahires,

& Dividend

The Company recognises o linbility to pay dividend to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is suthorised, mdlhdlm{bnﬂmitmimdlh:dhnﬂhnulmuﬂﬂmpuy. As
wmmhmhmnﬁmmmmlwmuhmemm
A corresponding amount s recognised directly in equity.

2.2 Sigmificant accounnting Indgeaneiits, exlimmtes and wssum plions

mpmpmumnfmtbmwlﬂandahﬂnﬂmhlmmmﬁmmmmm

eatimates and sssumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, EXpRISEE,
asyets and linbilities, and the scoonpanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent Habilities.
Uncertainty shout thess sssamptions and estimates could resull in outcomes that require n material
adjustment to the earrying amount of assots or linbilities affected in future perbods,

m&nd[ﬂmmmmnghmnﬂmm‘:mm risks amd uncertainlies includes:

i} Capital monagement pote 30
i} Financial riek management objectives and policies note 20
lii) Sensitivity nnnlyses disclosures note 29

Jndgemenis

In the process of applying the Copany®s aceounting policies, mansgement has made the
Hmmmmmmmiﬁmmmmm recognised in the
standalone financial stntoments:

Determinlng the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company ns
a lessee

Thﬂnmmrdﬂmhmﬂniﬂuwmﬂﬂumnmﬂﬂnmﬂfﬂllmlﬂﬂﬁﬂwﬂm
pﬂhﬁmﬂﬂh}'mnﬂmmmﬂlhﬂmﬂithwhrunmmh:mdud, ar nny
perioids covered by an option to terminate the lease, if i is reasanably certain not to be exercised.

ThquwuhummHunmmhl&mhﬂnmhmmdmﬂmﬂmwﬂm.m
[:ummrnpplhlhﬂpnwiniﬂhmmwﬂhuhhmmhrmmn whether or mot 1o
twmhnlhawﬂm&nmwmtmmi:mﬂuimﬁlh,ﬂ:mﬂhﬂ relevant factors thnt
creale an econamic Incontive for it o exercise cither the renewal or termination. After the
mmmwmhimlmﬂﬂmhuhﬂlﬂmmwﬁm
in circumstances (hat is within its comtrel and affects s ability to exercise or not to exercise the
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option to repew or 1o terminate (e-g- eonstruction of significant lensehold improvessents,
significant customisstion to the leased misel, oo,

Estimates and assumptions

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefiis)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other past-employment medical benefits and the
prescal value of the gratuity obligation are determingd using actisarial valuations. An mctuarial
valuntion Euwhumﬂdngnﬂaummpnhudmmdlfﬁrﬁummduﬂhpmhmn
fture. These inchude the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
males, Due to the complexities fnvolved in the valuation and its long-term nature, & defined benefit
ohligation is highly sensilive to changes in these assumptions. All Rssumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date,

Fair value measwrement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial mmdﬂundlllhhﬂﬂhmw&dhmmmmutmm
hmuh!dhﬂdhthdpimlniﬂhumﬂﬂhm&ﬁirvdmhmdudmmmm
hﬁﬂqwirﬂ-ﬂuuuDCFanl.mmm to these models are taken from observable
markets where pessible, but where this is not feasible, m degres of judgement I8 required i
estublishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such ng Hguidity rigk, credit
lilklndwlniﬂty.ﬂmguhm:pﬂm“uhumﬂmmﬂmﬁmdd nffect the reported fair value

Leases - Estimating the incremenial borrowing rate

mcm;muwuyﬁmnﬂnnlhuimmmuﬂthﬂwrmqlh:mfum,knmiu
hﬂnmﬂmmﬁqﬂhml}mmlm:IHﬂlﬂhmmﬂhﬂurﬂunfiMIﬂm
&nﬂmmwnﬂdhmmmmbwmm:dﬂmmmdwﬂhnﬂnﬂumﬂm tha
Tunds necessary to obtain an asset of a sirnilar vadue 1o the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
eaviranment. The IBR. therefors roflects what the Company *would have to pay', which requines
estimation when no chssrvable rates are avnilable or when they need to be adjusted 1o reflect the
tevens and conditions of the lease. The Empumnﬂmmﬂumnnﬁn;nhmwtﬂninpuu{m
ns markel interest rtes),

2.3 New standards, interpretations and amendments adopied by ihe company

The Minlstry of Corporate Affairs has notified Cempanies (Indian Accounting Standurds)
Amendment Rubes, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective
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for anmmal pericds beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company appled for the first-time these
amendments.

(i) Definition of Accouniing Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estinates, changes in
eccounting policles and the correction of errors. It has also been clarfied how entities use
mensurement techaiques and inputs to develop acoounting estimates. The amendments had no
impact on the Company's Standalone financial statements.

(i) Disclasure of Accounting Policles - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful
by replacing the requirement for entitles to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their “material' acconnting policies and adding guidmee on how entities
apply the concept of materiality in making declslons aboul accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments had no inpact oa the Company's Standalone financial statements.

(i} Deferred Tox reloted to Assels and Linbilitfes avising from a Slogle Transaction -
Amendments o lad AS 12

The amendments namow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it
na longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences such as leases. The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net
basis, As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised n separate defierred tax asset
In relation to its leage linbilities and o deferred tax lability in relation 1o s dght-ofase assets.
Since, thess balances qualify for affset ns per the requirements of paragrapgh 74 of Ind AS 12, there
is no impact in the balance shect. There was alsa no impact an the opening retained earmings as at
1 April 2023,

2.4 Amendments mol yeb effective:

Minisiry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards inder Companies (Indisn Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time o tiose.
During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has nof notifled amy new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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{Adl emounts in reposs million, wsless cdberwise staled)

Financlal axsels
Investments
As at Mareh 31, | As st Marel 31,
Tariieulprs
i
lnvesiment ln equbly shares of sbildiry {earded st col) (Unguated)

(TG0 (Manch 31, 20TI: &421,306) Nully pakd equity shares of Bionccds ledia Privaie Limiled having oo wlue 237408 130,50
Ra, 10 ench (refes nass | below) ' e
204 (March 11, 2021: nil) fully paid equity shares of Healih Dain Specialists (Holdings) Limited having Sace value 84842 >

of Bura 001 each (refer mota iv bolow)
13,000,000 | {hdarch 31, 2023; nil) fully paid equity shares of Inwestment in equily shams af Yeeda Clinkal Reseanch | 180,53 o
brcland Limlied hawing fsce walue of Eure | cach (refer noie i# belew) -
00,600 [hasch 31, 2023 3500007 fully pald equity shares of Ingenaity Bistcicacen Privaie Limsited hiviag face T00 150
wadee of Ra, 10 ench {ubsidisry wof Apeil 1, 2023) (relier nole v balow)
Lesx: Provision for fmpairmsnt on non-ceren! invesimenis {7 [0
I Total mﬁ 313150
Currest
Imvesimseai bn pnbiy of mutual fonds (earried a1 Pakr value through prof ang loss) (Cruobead)
V36 03264 (March 31, 2020: 352052 B4) Uhaii of ICIC] Piudendiad Savings Pesdd (Higulas Diavwih) L 151.%8
136, 190,94 [hdarch 31, 2023: 256 229, ET) ey of Adigyn Bira Sos Lile Low Duralisn Fand (Regulsr Crowih) 1.3 e
141, 16T.AS (March 31, 2023; 86, 950,63) Units of Aditys Birla San Life Lew Danition Fumnd (Divect Growih) 9105 51,19
(ATLEAS4. 3 (harch 31, 202%; 1 60%, 713.54) Units of HDPC Low Duration Pund {Direct Growih) 153,98 1303
A, TR0L0E (Mol 81, 2025 17, 5015.34) Linhs of Kofak Low Duration Fund (Drect Crowth) 154,04 3301
ATIRE 5 (Mlmnch 31, 2033 27,466.4T) Units af Hippen ladia Low Duratios Pand {Deect Gaowih) 154,56 1.4
125,188 0 (Masch 31, 2023; nif) Unks of ICHC] Prodenilsl Savinga Pund {(Direct Growth) 62.53 -
Investmenta In optionally cemvertible redecmable preference skares of Subwidisry (earrled st fais valne
Ihrough profit smd o) (Teguated)
3 933,000 (Mnrch 31, B: 2. 903,0000 Rully paid opticeally converibe redeemable praference shares of IHloaeeds 21130 233,30
luthmLhﬂnlEhmiHuﬂ = ;
Tt 1035.57] 8017

Toial sen-current lmvestment S164, 31.50

& g of rvestmanis and markel valus theseal =

amound viiinicaki 5 2115

| Aggragatn amound 100 3.50
(Total eurrent lovestments

o amound of imeestments and markct value thereal

o amoun &l iR
At s s i
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Viwdls Cliadeal entarch Limited
Motes 1o Standabsse Flnancial Siatemends For e year endeil March 31, Dizd
(ALl amesals in rupess million, unless eflenwise sisted)

Fleanginl aisets

Tnvestmesis (coalinued)

Mabes:

(£} The Company enlered inbo lrvestment agreement with Bicaseds Indis Privale Limited {“Bioneeds™) and jts sharcholders oo July 07, 2621 pursuant to which
company has call oplions o sequire squity sharcholding from the sharcholders of Ricaseds. During the previous year ended barch 31, 2023, the Company
enlered into addenduns daied My 23, 2002 and Decamber 9, 2022 pursuset fo which Compuny soguired sdditional equity by way of primary investmenl in
DBiomeeds md secondary Investmest by way of peqomiiion froe sharcholden of Blonceds, Purther, ay per he afeesald pidendum dwied December §, 2022, the
Compary has an oplion io feiher soquine remaining balance of 13,00% shares on Bully dilubed basis. Fair value of the sforesnid call oplicn b Ha, 4035 pdllice
ug on Mleseh 31, 3003 baved oo the fair valwtion repert from the isdependmt valwer and the resuliant fir valustion gaén of Bs. 1.41 millios kas beon
recogsived in “Chher [acosae™ (refer note 14) for fhe year encded March 31, 2023,

Thuring the year, the company has eniered iato agpoement dated Juby 20, 2023 10 amend the terms of investmost pproement sad subsequont addendums 1o
imvesiment agpecment, a8 per which the company has noguired 205 385 ogeity slares of Blonceds Indls Priveie Limited representing 4% of i iotal ogeily sham
capilal for an sppregaie consideration of R2.235 00 million. Furhes, & per the alceemid pddzndum, the Company hes cal] oplicn o further sequise remaining
0 )0x0%% shaves as oo Manch 31, 3004 on fally diluted basds. Padr value of the aforesaid oall option is Rs. 30083 million es on Sfarch 31, 2034 based on the Gir
valustion report from the indepeadent veloer pad the resultnt fabr valustion ko of Rs, 267 nulllfoe bay been recognized in “Other expesses® (reler note £5).

i) Ax per the lmvesiment agresment with Bleassds Indle Pelwpte Linsdied and iis sharchalders dabed Jely 07, 2021, the Compaay has made investmeni in
Optisaally Converiible Redeemable Prefcresce Shares [(FOCRPS™) for o tolal comlderntion of Ra 33310 million. The sald OCEPS wer issusd on the
fodlorming fersm and conditions:

{n) Mindmmm prefarentinl dividend e of 000 1% pa cumulative preference dividend and the s shall be paid in ull (tegether with dividends
wecrued [Poam paior yeara)L

[} Conversion: 1. Commnion option cas be exarcticd by the Company only aller Bloreods beoomes & wholly evwned sebsidiary of the Company,

2. DCRPS will be covoried isto sech momber of cquity shares of Bioneeds, at the price per sharo qual jo de Trir marksl wilie of the
cquily shases ot The Giss o such comvent iom (MConversion Price™).

(s} Redemplion - Subjéet to the Company”s right io seck conversion, the OURPS shall b redesmed by Blonceds opon easlier of (1) | day priee
exiry o 20 years ni e face value of GURPS; or (if) st the opilon of the Company, s the redemption price which shall be the fice valus of equity shares of
Hienssdy al iho timz of smch redemption.,
fince tha e of pedemsption b mi the option of the Company, the mamgement of tha Comipasy eapests W get the redamplion of OCRPS o fice value before
Plaerchy 31, 2025 nnd socordingly, the invesiment. in the said OCRFS has been oontidored as cumment Investmest,

(i) The Compasy with tho purposs & scuire an Trelasd based target company Health Dam Specialiss (Holdings} Limiicd, incorporsied ity wholly owoed
sbsidisey on December [, 303 viz Vesds Clinical Resewrch Ireland Limited {*Veeda beland™) in brelsnd by mbsoribing | ordinary sham of Bun 1.
Sebscquesdly for the purpose of fusding the acquisition, the Company hes ficther Efised Bure 13,00 milblon equivaloat to TNR. 11B0.53 million iwwands
pebcription of sdditional 1,30,00,000 cedinary sharcs of Eura | cach of Yeedn Ireland which iy based on the fair valuation rapori of the Tadependent Valuer.
Subaequent io the year eod, the company hed Ninker sehecaibed to 1,06,00,000 ordinery shares of Buro | each of Verds Ireland si fice value smeunting Euno
1080 il lion equivalant o TNE 979,17 million,

(v} The Company along with iés whally ovned subsidisey — Vesda Ireland, eatered into the Sham Purchass Agreement [ Agresment”) with the sharcholdars
of Heslth Dats Sgecialisn (Fioldings) Limited ("HEADS™) on Febrery 19, 2024 for scquisiion of 100% shareholding of HEADS from the existing
slerobbders 1 Fasrg 5200 million which b equivebent to Ra. 4,673,809 million and i3 based om the falr valustion veport of B Independant Vabeir, Atcordingly,
Veads Treland sequived 67.3% sinke (606 shares) in HEADS as againit the cash coasiderstion mmeanting (o Baro 35.00 million wisich is equivelent o Rs.
3,145.89 million and the company soquired balanciag 32.7% stake (254 shares) b HEADS as against e SWAP of the compaay™s cquity shares by aliotmont
of 36.32,310 equity shares of the company, laveitmest fn HEADS of 32,79 has been accounted wi Ba. 1,528.00 miltke based oo fair walus repoet of te
indapendenl waluer. Further, &1 per the sema of the agreement, upon fulfillment of the valustios wplifts ssd eam out conditions rolating to the achisvement of
ngreed buyiness milesssacs for tee ongoing alinical trials siody, the above sentioned valestion of Eero 52,00 million shall be uplified to maximurm il vl
of Bure 1190 million (including Esrs 5200 millien) snd the considestion twerds Palldiment of said oplifts and cam cul condifions shall be paid in
socondmee with the kenms of the Aprocssest cither taough eash consideratisn andior is kind thrugh Company’s Bawity Shases.

{¥) The company based on Seemination of joint venlure agreement with the erstwhile IV partner dated April 01, 2033 bas agreed o acquire the balasce S0%
sinkn (3,50, 000 share) for & todal consideralion of Ra. 3.50 million from ithe erstwidle JV pactnes s consequently has galncd the comtrol ever Ingesuity
Bloscanses Privwie Limitsd,

{vil Thee bosard of disecion i hels meetisg held on Juss 13, 2024 spproved investment upto & lkks Ewo by subseribing & lnkh equity shares of suns | esch of
Vooda Clinical Repearch breland Limiled.

[wii) The bosrd ol direeion bs their meeting held om July 26, 2024 approved investment wpio 3 million Buro by sebaceibing equity shares of Veeda Clinical
Rescanzh freland Limiled.

[viif) Porsusst 1o the snes end coaditions of shere purchase agreement dated Febryary 19, 2024 ead on schiovement of uplift 1 conditios, e board of
discebécs in thelr meeting Bald on July 26, 2034 approved wewp of Coenpelssry Coovertible Prefevenca Shases (CCPS) bisued by Yeeds Clinical Research
Iroland Lisniied $o sellers of Mealth Dats Spocialists Fobdings Limited iz, Georglos Kowvalsoas, Leonides Kostagiclss and Okeasca Limited for considertion
of nelievement of Uplilt | condition. The said CCPS will be swapped against the sharas of the Company sed thesohy the Compasy will parchise the
Campulsory Converlible Praforenes Bhases of Veeda CHileal Research Ireland Linsited Froi the sellars of Health Dwta Specialinte Holdings Limited which we
appeaved by the members dn (heir mostisg, beld o Auagust 20, 1034,
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dopasity ae caring inlereal tangiag between B.H0 007, 1006 (March 31, 300%; SA5H 10§ 8006). Deposis with bask wul biarch 31, 2034 amooating bo ull (ksrch 31, 10F%
B 3090 million]) see givm 5y collsersl woonily spaine cash efedil hmits.

An wi filareh 31,

Axad Macch 11,

Mit: Lioown pives L6 tubsaBiry pmsanting o Aa. 1400 o [Misch 1, HA. Bp 0400 sillion ) s baen wrisen off during ihe oty Fear tossile g tha wnivyoebis francil
ool off gairihdabry el Wi suma b Been oaked order othor expenie feoko cota §9)

W basirn sispaird wuder Soc LBE{4} ol b Cimpantes Aol DILD

Ichuatiod i oarrs sl ot B pivedn bsosrorpars depavis the patiodars of whith s Bsclosrd bebis s vageised by Sor |86} of Ba EIT‘.'! A 3010,
Sodwrad § An nk Maarch 3, | As ol Marth B, ]
Mameal e boanm Bowir af Interis Theep diute & A 1034 s
Lcem o moparalds ol e aved of 3 pram
B @i, | Brosn e dald of Bgremeven. | lewover, .
Ty Flimourors Frinss Leniind "':_:I (ot ey o vepali oo st sy ia] Ve
by (B bwmcyasar
i rocim T4 for trmas md conditioes of loas 1o whelly vl toldiliary B whigh e compeTy Wil & s
Dilsir Eaaacial gy —
" As ol March 31, | Asut March 31,
BO24 1413
ronskiaod poosl
depotila LR ] nm
Miinde deparialil WATH Seiiiian g mahaicy [oe mom har |2 menthe{refit nete i belee) At 0L
1 nede 41} _ ot AnEL
Bab-inial 3,36 35700
15534 AT
weith Femaliing mstenty for oy thas |3 masih {reier nslo i belaw )
— Sub-sial
Fatl [




Wiebds (bl Aeie b L il
Hobir b Hndalass il S1elerred bai dhe prai vaded ioegh bb, med
N amcuria i rugeen milllion, ol ofecwin el

CHber Snencial sscls {cantineed)
ool g B do Did ] Aasel!
sl af the I'F!ﬁl
e year o 3 bingriaing of e year (14484
‘writien off duninp dve yeur from Salsrce o (b bagirning of ihe year [EE}]
u—.mmw T4
Hﬂhﬂl’.&' JELEY
Bialed:

i) Thank Aepisits willi remainisg maturily Tor mors thas [T st 08 o Mlaeeh 17, 2004 e As. 7705 milllion Qmeh 31, 700%: B 131 14 million]), Thee deposils seomads
{or a period of mons the 11 months sl v interasl reaging botuoen §.235% o 7,30% (March 31, BOE3; 4 555 1o 7.29%6). Oul el s sbeve, deposiis smseniing o Ha 3030
millice a1t Blareh 35, B2 (Mareh 31, T003: B 0505 million] ave pives o seoorily agasml el drall Caeibses sad tank pearamiee.

iy Dk depasity with origisal mafarity for mora (s 13 months and with remaining mstority Sar lowe tom 12 meotbs 2o of Mareh 31, 202 ore R 326,75 million {(Masch 31,
IR T TEDAE millend. Thass deponits sre made for @ peried of mees than 12 menths end o inlereil sanging betwezn 6.70% i 7295 (Muich 31, 302k 3325% w
T 39%) Depaily wnsaing bo e TO10 mallben is ol Maieh 31, 2004 (dareh 11, 1073 Ra 1916 million) ars givea s collstal security aguiral coak condil Bmigs nod banke:
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Midu:

Balasas with prvermss ssthoriies patsng o smossi pald wmdir profesd ia Sorvios L emeumnling o . 998 mdlion (March 31, 300} e 908 millian ), G5T smowtisg
to Rs. 1,14 millien (harch 31, 2003; ail | advanss poneat of samiem dety amaanting 1o R, 131 million (e ¥, 3103 ol | and (3T bnjeil e oredit recasteable (ael of
litsitiy} mnsnsng v Ra. 17008 million (Ptach 31, 2000 B |90 90 milliow),
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Veeda Clinfenl Research Limited
Hsies io Sinmdalono Financlal Siatemonts for the year ended Morch 31, 2024
(AN anounts im nipees milkion, unbess ctherwise staled))

Dther equity
Pariiculars Aon ag March 31, 2024 | As nf March 31, 2023
Aecurities | 1
Halsnee af the beglaning of (ke year 370348 3, 70348
Chanpes due o sccousting poliey o prior peried ermors ~ -
3 lmunfﬁwm:tuhhﬂ 188501 -
i g P I SRR ain 1T Hﬂf qui Ly Snfne iﬂ.]ﬂ} u
dallznge & givil &l e ye T.536.34 170348
ril A : 3
Dalonce at ile beginaing of the year AG65 (31.2T)
Changes due fo sccousding policy or prior perdod errors # :
fier' fiusin pelained carnings {rfer nole 34) 18.22 2452
1 T ﬂ' 51 T sier nols 3‘} ..I.E?
Balance nt ihe end of the year E_“' m
SNAFE optiong oEistandiang reerye
Hnun il hn;hlh;l of the year BT 19
Changes due o nocosmtivg polley or pricr period aroes - -
M.[mmmull’.ﬂ 10.29) {e4)|
UMthMMh:IM I: iﬂ-ﬂjmghm!ﬂh-wﬂl] 0.0 Qaz
Compontalion for o ear (pefer mole 32) _{o.08)| _A.80)
Ih!.-ih:itl:hn:l ul'lhnlw iR ] .7
113.00
Chmdwhmhunﬁwunhnhdm 5
{213,061
wirpElud in the slalement ol profil pe
Balanee i ihe beginning af the year 116116
Changes due io noceamilag policy or prior period ereors i
Prafit for this year (nel of xes) 3058
Ulh*mptuh:ﬂm} for the year {nel of lnxes) : tiiﬂii!
40.58
{18.27)
1, 20:4.03
_Total sther equity B79444

Matwre and purpose of reserves;

(1) Becuritles prembwm: In enses where the Compary isses shanes ol a promium, wheilser for cash or ofhorwise, a sum equal (o the
npgregate nmessd of the premium recefved oo those shares has been ransferred to *Securities Premiom™. The Company may issue fally paid
up bonus shares o its members oul of the securities premium asvd ta buy-hack of shares,

{2) Share optioss owlstanding reserves Ths share options based payment reserve |5 used 1o recognize the grand date fnlr valoe of options
bssued 1o emeployess under employee stock option plan,

(3 Surplus ln stiatement of profif asd loss: Surplas in ststoment of profil and boss e the profits / (Josses) (hat tbs campany hes esmed |
incusred 101 daie, less amy ansfers 0 peneral rescrve, dividesids or other disisfbutions paid to sharehodders. Relained eamings incliide re-
mensuremenl boss ! (gain) on defined besedit plans, net of taxes Hﬂlﬂhrﬂdﬁﬁdhﬁllﬂﬂtﬁfﬁlﬂtlﬂﬂhﬂ.ﬂﬂm
earminge 18 n fhee reserve mailable 1o the cospasy and eligible for distributlon to shareholders, In cese wihero it i3 having positive balascg
representing el eamings N date.

{4) Caplinl Reserve: Capiinl Reserve is o reserve nrising on busivess combinstion diss to differests betversn eanrying amount of nel sssets
acqudred and conshderation paid.

(5) Sleare Applleation Money Pending Allotment; 1t represents application money recsived on acoount of privale plocement offer agains
which shares has been slloibed durisg the year

s




Maled ta Btandalone Finesclal Sipgeaenis for iba year eaded Blarck 51, 13034
AT armomntn in nepeas Teltion, usbess odserise e

s wb Mlparehy 31,

Tewwms g d woaditiens of the abevs catatmidlag balsnces:
Taaes pyalies mre: esa-irvtearsl bearing e sy marmadly wwithsd i &3-150 dayn,
Fist explarslise oo company's crodit sk pross, fefier sota 2,

st Bérerri o] conadisiony with oliatod party, male 4,

Frmde Pagnbies ageimp schedule ay -mg
Erwm vy bl of i reeesc an §

Usbilled |Lemmisnlyoar| 1.3Vears | 23 Vewry | Morefumd

L mﬂﬂimkﬂhﬂ shave sepeing b comsidared from the dsts of peconbag e liamsetion indlead of e dale. Casequanily, thern sra na sl dug” eoedilers balasce
thnckeand

I Cuber fnsscisl Babdlities

Au i Mlareh 0, | As ot Mareh 3I
Targiulam )
L FL

S —i& i)

rresd
Financial isldkngs oo 5 ams riioed ceal
Credisers For papinel experditane {refes note below) 871 i1
Frisdeyes brachin gayehile . 10743 I
MeFasad liglslity ko custaonss (] b F{ A
(ke pigpillén L] LT
Crmsideration sguined buyiragen poopabitom §refar sooe 34 - (FRE
|Fh-:hlﬂdﬁnmlﬂﬂhknhlmjm-ui-
= 3
Suli-intal 17683 7030
h- T3 170 |
Medr;

Bﬁhﬂ#ﬂiﬂH*ﬂ.hfnﬁnﬂﬂiﬁ.ﬂ.ﬂﬂn‘hﬂli%lhmﬂhlu milion {Mseh 11, 2023 Rs. 119 milioa ) (refar
rea .




12

Veeda Clinfeal Research Limited

Motes to Standalone Financinl Statements for the yenr endel March 31, 1024

(Al ampunts in mpees million, unless othorwise stated)

Crther eurrent Habilities
Particulars As ot Marveh 31, 2024 | As ot March 31, 2023
Contract linbilities
- Die 1o customeer (excess billing over revenue) (rofier nofe 13.2) J68.76 50774
= Afvance from customens 12.23 1295
Sintutory dues payable 36.19 3125
Total 417.38 55104
Pariiculars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March :!-l,iﬂul
Reconciliation of confract lability
[ Balamce af the beginning of the year 520.69 3B5.60
YL:: Revenue recopnized during the year from balance al the beginning of the (4T7.56) (337.19)
{Add: Contrnct liabilities created during the year 337,86 47228
|Bihuu ot the end of the year 380.99 50,69
Provisimig
Particulars Ag al Mareh 31, 2024 | A at Maveh 31, 2023
Mon-current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity {refer note 23) 49.34 39.37
38.60 14.09
E Total 8704 5346
Current
Provision for employee benefil
Gratuity (refer note 23) 1037 945
1130 G40
Total 11.67 1585
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Weedn Clinical Research Limited

Motes to Stnndalone Financlal Statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2024

{All amounits in rupess million, unless otherwise sinted)

Cost of maberial consumed
For the year ended | For the year ended
Evan March 31, 2024 Mareh 3
Opening stock of consumahles B5.T7 T1.21
Purchases during the year 233.62 21430
Addition on sccount of acquisition of business (refer nota 34) 7.58 -
Less : Closing stock of consumahles (91.16) (85.77
Total 23581 199.74
Employes benefit expenscs
For the year ended | For the year ended
Fagionian Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balary, bonus and allowanoes R36.11 T08.92
Employee stock option expenses {refer note 32) (0.08)| 4,80
Contributions to provident aod other fumds {refor note 23) 37.11 30,33
Staff wolfare expenses 17.69 16,29
Total HH0.83 T60,34
Flince cosls .
For the year ended | For the yenr ended
i ki _Mareh31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023
Interest expense on
~Barmrowings 0.17 .
=Dielayed payment of income tax and other statutory dues 1.19 1.53
=Lense linbilities (refer note 31) 54.82 5182
Bank charges and other barmowing cost 2.55 239
Tatil 5873 55,04
* Figure nuilified in conversion of Rupess in million.
Clinical nnd anubytical research expenses
For the year ended | For the year ended
RRI—— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Screening expenses of subjocts 7832 94,83
Subject participation expense 281.42 326,04
Food and refreshment expenses of subjects 29.50 3262
Investigalor charges 159.23 245,48
Data manBEEmEnt GULSHINGS S8rvices 11.52 1835
Bio analytical rescarch expenses 2E.96 359.35
Project approval charges 64,69 48,87
Phlsbotomists, nurses and doctors fass 3589 39.04
Others S0.69 04,95
Total 740.22 039.53 |

L]
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Veedn Clinkeal Research Linaited

Motes to Standalone Finnneial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounis in rupess million, unless otherwise stated)

For ihe year ended | For the year ended
KAty Mreh 31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023
Marketing and business promotion expenses 54.83 4536
Rant cxpenses (rofer node 31) 1.2 0.88
Witter, power and [uel charges 84.99 7006
Legal and professional expenses 126.41 70.69
Contractor expenses 103.86 95.84
Insurance expenscs 11.95 1278
Travelling and conveyance expense 3.76 3.04
Communication expenses 431 304
Repnirs and maintennnce
-Buildings 12.06 10.31
-Flant and machinery 4033 3532
-others 16.55 17.97
Renewal charges ol soflware and Heonos 2571 1121
Rates and iaxes 18.10 2774
Payments to the auditor (refer nots below) 191 1.75
Expenditure towards CSR activithes (refer note 25) 10.8] .73
Printing, stationery and courier expense 1826 2023
Property, plant & equipment writien off 10.09 90
loss on mark to market of owlstanding forward contract - 9.36
Loss on fair value of call option (refier note 4.1) 2.67 -
Bad dobits and contract assel written off 1.5] 13.99
Loan wrilten off (refer note 24 and 4.5) 16.00 34,00
Impairment provision on financial asset (refer note 4.1) 3.50 3.50
IPO expenses 276 10,03
Provision for doubtful debis (refer nots 4.7) 1125 16.68
Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory (refer note T) .64 21,78
Miscellaneous exponses 2254 16.31
Taotnl 1803 570,48
Paymenis to the audilor
For the year ended | For the year ended
i Murch 31,2024 | Muareh 31,2023
As auditor:
- Audit fees 1.91 1.75
- Reimbursement of expenses b -
Total 191 1.75

‘in-capversion of Rupees in million.
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Veods Clinlesl Research Limived

Motes (o Sinndalone Finnnelal Sintements for tlse year emded March 31, 2024

(ATl mmousts in rapeed million, unless otherwise stabed)

Cowmtingend Eablifibes and eapiial convmitmant not provided fer

As mf March 31, 2034 As st Mareh 31, 2023
106,95 147
LA L) 210.01
oS &2 -
4.75 405
4, 546.58 =
6,053,651 =

i} Incosme: tny desmand comprives dessand fram the Indinn lax suthoritios for payment of additional 1, inierest and e
of Ra. 10695 millon (March 31, 2023: Re 10947 million) upon completion of their tex review for the nssesemend
year 2009-10 to 2017-1E The tax demends sro mainly on sccound of dissllowssees reloting fo transfer pricing mation,
deprociation on soffware, interest charged o lomm advanced, eapital expeadinire changed to revonng, eto. claimed by
the company uder the Income tax AL The mailer i8 peading bafane various autharilies. The said demand smounis
heve been alesdy adjusted apaissl eeflind of varioss yesrs by Incons Tax department and honce ned demand s ofl in
respect of such period.

{§) Servics ax demned compriecs demand fom the Sorvice o suthorities far payment of addéticesl tx, interesl and
o of Rs. 4855 million (March 31, 2033; Ra. 210,08 millien), upon complelion of their tax review for the Gnmeial
year 00809 po 301 111, The inx dessends are on sceoun of dizallowancs and reversal of CEMVAT credil under Bals
G{3) anid 6{3), shor payssent of tax and |mbility on accomst of paint of tnxation reles ste. The maiter i pending before
wvarious auhoribics,

11§} Ceeds aiied service tax demand comprises denvand froen the GST authorities for peyment of ndditional taox, Inicrest
and foe af Rs. 105,82 millien (March 31, 2023 nil), upon comgdetion of their (m review for the Goancial yese 2007-15
1o 201E-19, The tre demands are oo secount el DilRerence in ITC & per GSTR-30 viz a vis ITC as per GSTR-2A, Iste
reiums Bilsg, sdvense recsived om cusionwers, usder declaration of cwiput tax as per (5TR-9, excess claim of ITC
el

v} Custom duly demand comprises demand frons COEC for payment of additional (ax of Ra. 4,75 million (March 31,
2023: s, 4.75 mallion}, upos completion of their tex review for the finmnois] year 201 1-12 to 2008-17, The denand Is
om accoant deninl of cestom duty exemplioe benellt dalmed wder b Nodlfication 122002 dated Masch 17, 2012
The matier is pending belore varous ssthorities.

The company iy conbesting (he demands and the management, imcluding it tax advisors, believe thal its position will
Hkely be upbeld in the appellate proccss. Mo tax expenss hes been sccrwed in dbe fimancinl simemvents for the tax
damand raived. The managoment bekieves that the wllimaie colcome of his proceeding will pod have & mmenial ndverss
effect on the company's financial pogition and resulls of opemiions,

Chiber claims nod acknowlodged as dabi

Cluim by & paaty seisog out of a commencial contract: Ra. 101884 million (March 31, 2003 Rs. 1L0OI8.B4 millioa).
The company has not scknowlbedged this claim. As advised by the axiernal legal counsel, the dlaim is mot legally
tenahble. Moreower, the company is sdequately inswred and the matter is intimsed to inswrance company & well, The
company has (iled delniled respoass b the clalm lodged. The neatter is pending sl comanercial cowrt, Ahmedebed. In
view ol these, the company doed nol foresce any losses on this count mnd nccosdingly no peovision b made in books off
accounts,

ial commlimeni

Pariiculars |_As a Mareh 31, 2024
Esfimgied ansownd of comiracls remaining o be cxeowied on 2530




Veeda Clinienl Resenreh Limited

Motes to Standalone Finanelal Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts arc calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity helders of the Company by the
welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EFS amounts are calcalated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average mumber of Equity shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

The following reflects the lncome and share used in the basic and dilwied EPS compuiation:

For the year ended | For the vear ended
D March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

| Prodit after tax fos the year 30,58 243.88
Mominal valus of equity share (Amount in Rs.) 2 2
Total number of equity shares 6,29,00 846 528,03 986
Weighted avernge number of aquity shares 5,75,93,144 5,28,63,986
Effect of dilutios:
Dilutive effect of stock options granted under ESOP 1,15,207 1,2, 896
Welghied avernge number of shares adjusted for ile effect of dilutbon 5,77,08,951 5.30,16, 8582
Earning per equily share (Amonuid in s}
Basic earnings per share 0.53 4.61
Diluted earnings per share 0.53 4,60

* Hestatad a5 per note 14




Yeeda Clinles] Resgarch Limiind
Motes 1o Binndabeas Fluancial Statements for the year snded March 31, 2024
(AR amounts in rupees millies, unless athereiso dakd)

Diisclosmre far employes hens i

{n) Defined comiribution plam
A e pongnived 4% pipede - 5
Purticulars For the year ended Far e year esded
Mareh 30,2034 ) Mprch 31,3033 |
Comiribestlon 1 Provideni fond o] 1984
[ slage L5§
Ahia 2039
(b Ereflmedd Bensfity plan
Thez Coanpany bas follevwing post enyplogment benofit which is in the nature of defined benefit plan:

(Zratulty

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in fndia ax por the Payment of Gratity Aet, 1572, Employoes who 850 in confinuous servies f 5
perizd of 3 years aro oliphle for gratuity. The amoost of graluity puywble on retirementiemsistion is the smployees last drawn basic salary per
maath compuied proparticnately for 15 deys salary ssltiplicd for the number of years of sarvice esleuluted on pehenrial basis, The gratulty ples is &
funded plan to the extest balsaos avaiable in Gratulty account maintxined wich bank. Badance svsilnble in such sceount as ot March 31, 2004 iz Bx.
0.5 milbon (March 31, 2003: B, 007 million).

|, Reconelliatlos ol fi tlom
| I'urticndars An at March 31, D24 As nit March 31, 2003
Dpening defined benehit obligation 18,90 1355
Simrvice Conl B30 A7
1.3 243
ransfer in [ {out) ohligstion .48 L15
s of meimms i) gain / [Yooscs) on obligation
- Thie 83 change in Grancial assumptions (LEX
il oiberests 014
1,7
59,79
i, Bom of the fale
Parficulars _AsstMareh 31,3024 | Asat March 31,202 |
Ohpening value af plan asscly .07 .07
Imeres [meome 00 "
Reten on plin ssots excheding amownis nebaded & interest . 5
v plas avsrty LY 207

* Figmre. rallified in comversion of Rupees in milion,

Aa ot March 31,2024 | As i Miarch 31, 2033 _|

n 4E90
(9,08} [0eT)
0.7 a8

'Eﬂ'l.-l]"l‘ll’l‘l‘ld"lﬂ.l For tle yesr emded

21, 2004 Marsh 2 00+ |
Sorvice cast 5130 AT
inlereal gosd 138 145
il prafully cest Ized bw the sis I 1168 _5.93
v. Cher Comprehensive lncoma -
P L——— For the year ended March]  For the year ended
21, 234 March 31,3003

gain /! {lnssex)
« Duo 4o change in Geancial sssumptions. [l-'l-ﬂ'.ll (397
- Dhig #0 expevicnco adjutmonts 014 (0.26)

on plas assehy, exclediog amoust recognived i el infoies] opeme b s
nalve incame .24}




Wedila Climical Heseareh Limited

HNotes to Stamidalone Fisasclal Sintemesis for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

(ATl amounis in rapoes million, ulews ofberwise siminl)

Discleanre for cmployre bonedits {coaiianed)

A at Morck 31,3003
o

Aps 13 & below: 15% pa,
25 o 35: 25% pa.

|Emsglozpen fumover A5 e 45 159 pa IS 4% 1M pa

43 10 55 10% pa. 45 b 35: 10% pa.

35 & abave: 0% pon. 55 & above: 0% pun.
I”IHII'IH Ihﬁ: All;:'-uil‘ Hﬂhﬂ- Anpred  Lives
Senibtivily analysis for sigeifiesnt assumjithen s ss ander:

[ sérease  (decrense) in defimed benele oblignion

Fer e year emiled March For the yesr entled

31, 034 March 31, 333
(Z.06) {lﬁ

2.0 .70

212 164
{200} (1.56)
{125} (504

141

As ot Mareh 31, 3024 ]

.30
23,00




Vs Climicol Researeh Lim bed
[Hotes 1o Standnlene Financlal Siaiemenis for (ke year endail March 31, 2004
(All sscunts in rupees million, unless othorwise stated)

Refated party tramsaciions
.I'I.rp"hhdhﬁdmﬁ;ihndﬂtmwmwﬂlﬂﬂﬂlmrﬂdmhﬂﬂumnnﬂm:

Masmt of related pariies and thair redatianship

liedding Compsay
Blsai] Privabe Limied

Subsldlary Companies

Bieneeds Indin Privals Limited
wﬂiﬂmhﬁumﬂmmﬂﬂﬂmn.mﬂmm*thuﬂm 1, :023)
Veeda Clinkeal Research relamd Limited {Wholly owaed subwidiary w.e.f. Desember 1, 2023)

Heaith Data Speeialists (Holdings} Limiled {Whelly owned subsidiney w,o.f, harch 28, 2014)

Siep-dewn Subsidiary Campanies
Amihera Life S:iences Private Lisied (Whally owned subsidiscy of Bioneeds bdin Privata Limited]
Health Dats Specialists Singls Member 5.4, Mmamhdmm_wmmmutmnmu

u-nmﬂwﬁihmhw.ﬂwm%iimmmhﬁu-uiunhnhn.mu:
Hlealth Linta Specialisis BLV. (Wially Orwnod Subsidiary of Health Datn Specialists treland linied w.e.f March 36, B034)

HealXS sescarch Dbl (Wholly cwned ssbsidiary of Hewk Data Specialists lrelured Limited w.o . March 26, 2024)

Theads Rescarch AG {Whelly owned Subaidiary of Hoalih Disin Specialists Ireland Limiled w.o.0. March 26, 2024)

Entity with significant ks Nuence sa the Company
Monidwey [nveatmient foc.

Ky managerial prrwanel of ihe Company

wlhrhﬁmﬂrmnh‘m}{ﬁbﬂlmﬂ.ﬂﬂ}

e Seanng Heebt (Indoponders Direter}

br. Jeganmath Samavedem (Mominse Direeian ) {Upto Mach 31, By

Mir. Aptrva, §hah (Divector)

M. By Gardi (Whels Time Ditector - Yice Chabrman (wo.f. Janusay 3, 2024)

M. Ajery Temadon (Munaging Divector - upls May 8, 2034) (Chisf Executive Officer - w.af. May 9, 2024)
M. Mhesh Bhalgat (Chisf Exevulive efficer « from Jamary 3, 3024 upto May 8, 2024) (Managing Divector - w.e.f My 9, H24)
Mr. ¥ivek Chhachbd {Homineo Director)

Me. Manu Zahni (Mosdnes Divocior) (Upto famery 15, 2024)

i Aparajita Jethy Abeja (Meomineo Divector) {Uipls Seplember 15, 203%)

Bir. Chirg Sachder (Memines Director w.o . Seplember 16, 3021}

Mr. Kiesn Marthak (Divecioe)

M, 8, N, Vinays Babu {Direcior

Mlr, Nirmal Tihatia {Company Secrelary) (Chisf Financial Odfecer)

Mes. Tamuhree Agsrwal (Homisce Dircctor w,nE May %, 2024}

Mr, Inarsds Difisidis (Momines Direcics woe. £ July 36, 2034)




Veedla Clinleal Resenreh Limitad

Modes to Standdnbane Fluaneinl Staiensemis for the year emiesd Mareh 31, 2034

(AN amounts in rupees mallion, wxless otherwiss stalod)
Related party transseiions (eantinued)

Matire of transactions wilh related parties For the year ended March 31, | For the year cnded March 31,
104 FI. P
Basil Privats Limiged
l—iumnm nunnlﬂnu m.nhnlhmmpnnd .18 068
n-i-qlmmm.
Reimbamement receivabibe fram selling sharchaldes recognized FR T e
ST pwmed sufasslary (v A QK LN ol Ll il
| 2023]
legenuity Biosclences Private Limited
Roimbersement of exparves incurred . oo
Options granted io swbsidiacy during the year 0.7 .02
Renl imcoine 030 {11
Snle ol service oal .40
Purcisass of service - 4,02
Lot green 29.50 12.00
Roepayment of loan given 13.50 -
Purchass of Business T.00
Inlerest income en delayed paymen iowards MSME dues = oz
Lﬂlmil-uﬂ' 16 G0 34,00
]
ﬂnlllﬂ.l-lldl.l Privale Limited
[svestimend in equity shires - 160,00
Parchass of business 113.50 -
Rt dejosi given 12,19 -
B'.quuq:u-mmrm 81 z
mbasenient foc power and fued expenso 143 -
=l ﬂfmu:-ﬂu .34 [l
nieresi paid on delayed payment iowards MSME ducs . 0z
Reimbussement nrq:uun incumed 0.63 .
'Whally grpe dhary {w,n.l, Decemis 23]
‘I’Hﬂﬂhhlhlumtrmu Limited
Invvastment in coquity shares 1, 180.53 -
Dumnanies Commlaskss meome 1.40 =
ey manngeris] persasingd
Rensimeration {inelsiling perguisiies)
M. Ajsy Tamdon 15.00 15.00
Bdr, Miabesh Bhislpat 1362 ;
Aciqulsilicn of ndditionn] stalo s Biesceds Todin Privace Limjied
Mr, 5. M. Vinnya Habm 235.00 150.00
M'rafewsional foes pabd to pem=execufive director
Mir. Kiren Murthak 360 160
Mir. Mikin Deslamikh 1.50 1.50
ir. Rakesh Blharida 1.50 1.50
brs. Kmviia Siagh 113 .50
drs. Jenres Hochil 132 12
| Salary (ncludisg perquisibes)
¥ir. Mirmal Bhatis 15,10 1349
Heml - expense
Mr. Apurva Shah 1.4
Reimbursement of expenses
M. Ajey Tandion .37
Mir. Kiran Marthnk 017
Mir. Mirmal Bhalin .24
Hr.hllulﬂhdp.t 0,02
ESOP Expennes l
M. Ajuy Tandon (refer mote 4 bekn) {3.E6)
Mlr. Kinan Marthsk Q.13
A Himmeal B 063




Veaila Chinical Research Linlted
Mates to Siandabme Flannckal Sistemenis for the year ended hMarch 31, 2024
AR prsceants i nupecs nadllion, onless otherwise simed)

Related party iranssedbons {eonilaued)

= Outstanding balances at the end of the year AsaiMarch3l, 2024 | AsatMarch3l, 2023 |
1.B4 [[1.0
21.67 1551

legenuity Blaschosces Private Limlicd

Trade payable 0.0 L.75

Enlidiary

Tameeds India Private Lisdied

Invesimant in optionally convertible redesmable preference shares (OCRPS) 23330 23330

Tende Payable 148 .

Trade Receivalblde & .

Conirect Linbilily ENE

Hend Deposil Reczivable 1210

| Whilly awaed mbsidiary (vnf Deoember 1, 2023

Vierdn Clalden] Research Drelund Limined .

O recefvabile bovinds guisanies commsbition AL L] -

ey mansgerial personmel

Reminnerilion payabde (inclading peryuisines)

M. Ajay Tasden 1. 104

M, hmhesh Blalgai 1.98 -

Prafessfanal Fers pagable { (recehvable] o nomexeeutive director

e, Kiran Marthok 027 -

. Mitin Desbmuilch &l -

Idr. Rakish Bartin (0,01} =

Mes. Jenrme Heck 083 =

Satury paymbde (inebwillug perquisioe)

e, Mirmal Bhatia 0599 0491

Retmburiement of expemses payalde ! {receivalle)

M. Ajury Tandon (0.03) {0.02)

Mr. Kiran Marthak (0.02) nog

7. Iiaheah Hhalgst [0.18) | =

Termis and conditisns of tramssetbes with related pariies

(1) The Company’s transactions with related partics are at arm's lengih. Management belioves that the Compasy's domestic and inlomationst
transactions with related partien post March 31, 2023 conlimue to be al arn's length and ihat (he trensfer pricing legislntion will nod have sy impact
o (he finsscial stabemients priticelarly on (he amouist of the tnx expense for the yenr and the mmownt of the provision for tocation sf the year end.

12} The Boture lebdity for gentuity aod compensaied abeente i provided on aggragated basis for all the employees of the Company telken as & whole,
ihe amssusl pestaining io key mansgerial personned is not ascerfaingble sepamataly and thensfore sed included sbove,

(3} Loom i wholly owned subsidisry (oref Aped 1, T023) in which the company was & venbarer (upio March 31, 2033):

The lsan grimicd b2 Iagenuity Biosciences Privaie Limiled b intended fo fimd ils working caphial requiremests. The loan i ussssured ond is eepayable o the end
of 3 years from the dale of agresmest. Hewever, the loan may be repdid carlier al any Sima by The bormowsr. L.oan carrics inberes! rabe of B.00% pa. (P.Y. 6.00%
P} composnded anmally. Tha lean has been otilized for the purpose For wivich it was pranted. Refer note 4.5 for futher details.

(4} Thm company has gramied optho jo Mr. Ay Tandon under noessd 3 and 4. There i reverssl oF oplion axpeneds anvounting lo R22.81 million for poend 3 and
R 105 miftices Bor ronesd 4 respoctivaly due o adjstment of opthons lupsed durisg the year.

Cammitment with related party
The eompasry has ret provided my commitment bo relaled paty os ot March 31, 2004 (March 31, 7033 Nil),
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16 Deetalls af diei 4o mbcro sod small esderprises se por MEMED Aci, D4
The Ministry of Micrs, Small snd Medium Bnterprises has fsued 55 affice menorandum daied August 26, 2008 which recommends
that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their comespondence with it custamers tho Erdrapreneurs Memormnium
Weamiber as allocoted afler filing of the Memerandum in nocerdance with the “Micr, Small ind Mediom Erserprises Development Act,
2006 i MEMED Acl).
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Fimegial statemnents based o infmiation recoived nod available with the Company.
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AT TR A S T N
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REDORY

To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the tlolding
Company and i{s subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the consolidated
Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the conscolidated financial statements,
including & summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred {o as "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
hased on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financiat statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Aci”) in the manner
so reguired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consclidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, their
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis fer Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs}, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are refevant to our audif of the consolidated financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and ithe Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of [thics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consclidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Staternents and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Helding Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do net express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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I connection with our audit of the censolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
concludle that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the
assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irreqularities; sefection and application of appropriaie accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
conseolidated financial statements thal give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective
companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going cencern basis of accounting untess management either intends to
liguidate the respective companies or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Those respective Board of Directors of ifte companies included in the Group are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Vinancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

=3

We

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis
for our opinion. The risk of not deteciing a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the i1olding Company has adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to consotidated financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Fvatluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
reiated to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncerfainty exists, we are required
to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obiained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
ltowever, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern,

lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose
financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the consclidated financial statements of such entities included in the consclidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consclidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We

also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail
refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
LeZFWnere applicable, related safeqguards.
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Ovher Matior

(a)We did not audit the financial statements and other financiat information, in respect of 12
subsidiaries, whose financial statements inciude total assets of Rs. 10,903.83 million as at
March 31, 2024, and total revenues of Rs. 54.51 million and net cash inflows of Rs. 662.59
miflion for the year ended on that date. These financiai statement and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statemenis, other financial
information and auditor's reports have been furnished o us by the management. Our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it refates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is hased solely on the reports
of such other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located cutside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective couniries. The llolding
Company’'s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries lecated
outside india from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in india. We have audited these conversion
adjustments rnade by the llotding Company's management. Our opinion in so far as ii relates
o the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of
other auditors and the conversien adjustments prepared by the management of the tiolding
Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Cther Legal and
Regutatory [Reguirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect io
our reliance on the worl done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements
and other financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 1tequirerments

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order™), issued by the
Centrai Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, based on
our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in
India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter' paragraph we give in the "Annexure 1" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi} of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have refied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpeses of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors, except for the matters
stated in the paragraph (2XiXvi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) and with respect to

o _certain subsidiaries, the back-up of books of account was not kept in servers physically
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{c)

(d)

(e)

(1

{g)

(h)

®

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Helding
Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of
the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group's companies,
incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3Xb) and
paragraph (2)(i}(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Folding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in
India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India, the managerial remuneratien for the year ended March 31,
2024 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule v
te the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the '‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consclidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements -
Refer Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2024;

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries,
incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2024,
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iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are

b)

)

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of its knowiedge and belief, as disciosed in the note 45
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the lolding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with fthe
understanding, whether recerded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or eniities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective tlolding Company or any of
such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on hehalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 45
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
respective lolding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, ithat the 1iolding Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
¢*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the likke on behalf of
the WHiimaie Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice
that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (a) ang (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the IMolding Company, its

subsidiaries companies, incorporated in India.
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vi) Based on our examination which inctuded test checks and that performed by the

respective auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statementis have been audited under the Act, except for the instances
discussed in note 46 te the Consolidated financial statements, the Holding Company
and subsidiaries have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective auditors of the above
referred subsidiaries did not come across any instance of audit trail feature heing
tampered with except with respect to 2 subsidiaries, we and respective auditors of
one subsidiary cannot comment whether there was loss of audit trail data incfuding
logs on account of errors encountered during the data repair exercise carried out by
these subsidiaries as described in aforesaid note,
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the consolidated financial

statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

Qualifications or adverse remarks by us and the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consclidated financial statements

Name

CIN

——

Holding
company/
subsidiaries/
associate/ joint
| venture

1.| Veeda Clinical | U731006J2004PLC044023 | Holding
Research Company
L Limited ] e _
2. Bioneeds India | UD1409KA2007PTC042282 | Subsidiary
L Private Limited o | Company

ForSsRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrui Mehta
Partner

Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 24101974BKERZS2987
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad

Date: October 25, 2024

| Clause Gii)¢)

[ Clause number of the |
CARO report which is
qualified or is adverse

Clause (X)(b)

Clause (iXa)A)

_| Clause (x}Xdy |
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated financial
statements of Veada Clinical 1tescarch Limited.

fleport on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sul-seciion 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Mithe Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research
i.imited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company') as of and for the year ended March
31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference o consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Indernal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controis
nased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the IHolding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Instituie
of Chartered Accountants of India (CAD. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adherence to
the respective company's policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and compleieness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the tlolding Company and its subsidiary companies’
internal financia! controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
hoth, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial conirols with reference to these consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these
consolidated financial statements included obiaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these consoiidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditor in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controis with reference
to these consofidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Conirols With Reference to Consolidated Financial Staternents

A company's internal financiat control with reference to these consolidated financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of these consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on these consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, inciuding the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
camponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matiers

Our report under Section 143(3)() of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, in so far as it relates to this one subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India,
is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such subsidiary incorporated in India.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number; 101974
UDIN: 24101974BKERZ52987
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: Ocichber 25, 2024
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(Al emousts i tcizn nupees million, untess otherwise staled)

. Yenr ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
A Cosh flow Trom operniing aclivities
erofil before pax 32.59 504.50
Adjustusent 16 reconcile profit befors ax fo net cash flivs
Share of loss from a joint vontine - 1667
Depresiation and Anemizeion cxpense 53357 38324
Employee slock aption cost{neversal] (008} 430
Finunce ¢ost 14595 138,72
Net (paniioss on imark 1o masket of awistanding fonvard contisct 1620} 936
Rad dobts writien off {oer of provision) 4.75 -
Loss f (Gair) on fir value of call eption 267 L1413
130 gapenses 2.5 B0
Net inlepe st mcome {113 3% {15.26)
Net gain o sale and estarensmt of nwuzl fimd {4543} 401y
Loss on sule of propeny, plant and equipment {ret of gain) 1845 [LE
Ligbilisies no longer required wrinten bagk (17.00) {10.49)
Provasion For doubiful debts 13.26 2292
Cost inturred for Acquisition of subsidiaries 17.41
Provision for slow maving and non-movieg awentary a9 048
Property, plant and equipment wiites off i6.0% [ER k3
Gain o lease tenninauon {24y {74%)
Umealized foreign exchangs gaiv(loss) (1% BG) 4.72
Comratt asset written off - 1399
__ Ovlier reggivables writien oft — - 0.1% .88
Operuting profit belose working capital changes 583.33 147078
Woxlung .:u|nml weljus eraenis:
En ) 3 1o trade eeetvakb 14 22 (RN LY
{Intaease) in invenlories (15330 {i13.05}
Orecocase in tinancial assels 1B.64 1503
{Intrease} iy other aysels {HB.58) a1y
| ecrenze Y e trade pavebl 25316 {15653}
increase in othes fnancial lishilitics kY Ik 59.23
{Drecteatscnee2ase in other cumrent Tiabulisies {17100 21845
IncTense in Provisions 1232 375
Cush generated frous operalion &56.00 1, 24f.91
L¥rget taxes paid {nsr of refunel) {6719 (192213
Net cash fow generated Trom sperating activities (A 55591 1,056.70
B Cush fows from tevesting activities
oo e plawt .““ld — assels assets undet {833.30) 75900
Proceetts fron sube of property, plant and equiprsent 1.80 062G
{mierest teceived 12275 1417
1 in fixed teposits {Net of p ds} (14621 (323.2G)
inyestmznt in mutwal fonds (394992} L38.00)
Proceeds from sale of nutug] fands W00 41524
Laag piven 16 subisidiary - {1200
Barmarked balance of ghase application money peading allatment and ulilizadis - {213.00;
Purehue of stake of idiary fooan Now Iliss friercsy 1238500 (350.00)
Cost i d for Acquisiiion of subsidiari (740 -
tweshinent in enuily shares of subsidiaries {3,157.62) -
Met cushy Nows (used in} investing actalies {B) £4,469.07 (1,263.34)
¢ Meteasl flow Froin linaneing aclivitics
Proceeds from timp-tenmn boreowing: 2,004 34 -
R ol lang-term b W . {12631
Provends Bom shot-lenm homowing (i) 1 aY 105,23
Futance cost paid (hI8.3%) 1103.65)
Paymneat of IPO oxpense (ned) [6.%2) (8711
Proceeds fromn shire application money peading alleimscas . 21500
Share issue expenses for Besh issee of shares [{ et e
Payment o8 printipal pocion of l-ase Katabi {96 RE} {1
Proveeds trotn isstie of shares (including seturifies prendum aod uf ESOPs) 216121 -
Mel Cash Aow generated from J used in) finuncing wciivitles {C) 399650 {11.69)
Nl {decrease) nerense in cash and cash equivalems (A + 0+ 116.35 [21E.15}
ool R \9

G @)



Veedn Clineu Besearch Tuited

Statemvnt of Consphidated sash flows for the year ended dMarch 31, 2824
(AN aimerwts in Tndias copees million, unless cllwrwise siated}

Sastement of Cask Fieows (Continuedin
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the ye

i. Group information

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (“the Company” or “Holding Company
with its registered office at Shivalik Plaza — A, 2nd Floor,

Assoctation, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 u

ar ended Marvch 31, 2024

"} is domiciled in India
Opposite Ahmedabad Management

nder the provisions of the Companies Act

applicable in India and is carrying on the business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals

Companies. The Company is & one oo
development of drugs with state-of-the-art
services in phase [ and II clinical
cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceut

The Company has become a Public Limite

f service global CRO specializing in the early clinical
facilitics in India. The Company provides a full range of
research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and

ical and Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

d Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently

pursuant to approval from Registrar of Companies (“ROC”), the name of the Company has changed

from Veeda Clinical Research Private

The consolidated financial statements comp
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company
(including step-down subsidiaries) (together referred to as the Group).

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the y

in accordance with a resolution of the directors on October 25, 2024,

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company,
Clinical Research Limited and the followin

Limited to Veeda Clinica} Research Limited.

g subsidiaries / step-down subsidiaries:

rise the financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research
» or “the Company™) and its subsidiaries

ear ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue

Veeda

Name of the Company

Nature of relation with the

Percentage of voting
Power as ot

USA Inc.

{w.e.f. March 26, 2024}

company March March 31,
31, 2024 2023
Ingenuity Biosciences Wholly Owned Subsidiary (w.e.f. o o
Private Limited April 1, 2023) 100.00% ) 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Subsidiary 91.00% |  87.00%
Limited
Arpthera _Lit_“e Sciences St}bgzdlary of Bioneeds India Private 100.00% 100.00%
Private Limited Limited
Veeda Clinical Research Wholly Owned Subsidiary (w.e.f. 100.00% i
Ireland Limited December 1, 2023) o
Health Data Specialists Wholly Owned Subsidiary {w.e.f 100.00% i
(Holdings) Limited * March 26, 2024) e
. N Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
g‘."’aifh ﬁ“igpeg‘i‘s‘b Data Specialists (Holdings) Limited |  100.00% .
ingle Member 5.4 (w.e.f. March 26, 2024)
_ _— Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
?‘*fgﬁﬁfﬁ%"c'a“s“’ Data Specialists (Holdings) Limited | 100.00% :
reland &4 (w.e.f. March 26, 2024)
’ - Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
Flealth Data Specialists | Py Specialists Ireland limited 100.00% .
e (w.e.f. March 26, 2024)
_ , R Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
Health Data Specialists | g Specialists Ireland limited 100.00% :
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Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
Data Specialists Ireland limited 100.00% -
{w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
Data Specialists Ireland limited 160.00% -
{w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
HeaDS research GmbH Data Specialists Ireland limited 160.00% -
(w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Health
Heads Research AG Data Specialists Ireland limited 100.00% -
{w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

* Out of total 32.67% held by the holding company and balance stake has been acquired by Veeda
Clinical Research Ireland Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of the company).

Heath Data Specialists
Australia Pty Ltd.

Health Data Specialists
B.V.

2.1 Material accounting policy information
(A) Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“lnd AS") as prescribed under section 133 of Companics Act, 2013
{*"the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Act (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 11, 1s amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value / amortized cost {Refer note 36).

The Consclidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the functional
currency of the Holding Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees are rounded
to the nearest Rs. millions, except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 5,000 has been
indicated as “*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupees in million.

(13) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the
company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to
variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specificaily, the Group controls an investee if and only if the
Group has:

Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the Investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

The coniractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the invesiee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
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‘The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes o one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of & subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consclidated financial statements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
evenis in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that the Group member’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with
the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the Holding Company, i.e., year ended on 31st March. When the end of the
reporting period of the Holding Company is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary
prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the
financial statements of the Helding Company to enable the Holding Company to conselidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable te do so.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income {(OCI) are attributed to the
cquity holders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Consolidation procedure:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenscs and cash flows of the
holding with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

b} Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each
subsidiary and the Holding Company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

¢} Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to femporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

if the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets {including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of arty non-controlling interests
Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
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Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group's capacity as owners

Reclassifies the Holding Company’s share of components previcusly recegnised in OCI to profit
or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or habilities.

Investments in Joint Venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar
to those necessary fo determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in is joint venture are accounted for using the equity method, Under the
equily method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The camrying amount
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint
venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of
the joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions betwecn the Group and the joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture,

[f an entity’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture
{which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment
in the joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the proflis equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the
statement of profit and loss.

The Financial Statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporiing period as of the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those
of the Group and its Joint Venture, uniess it is impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an impairment loss on ifs investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investiment in the joint venture is impaired.
If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as
“Share of profit of a joint venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference beiween the carrying
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amount of the joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

{C) Summary of material accounting policy information
a. Current versus non-current ciassification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a hability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

B =

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:

1. Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at jeast twelve months
after the reporting peried.

The Group classifies alt other liablities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is alsc
the Holding Company’s functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign
operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or tess reflects the amount that arises from
using this method.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot
rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the
Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at {he date of the transaction.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of entities
within the Group at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Exchange differences arising on the
seitlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. In the
financial statements that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated

ey

on
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financial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such cxchange differences are
recognised initially in OCL These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal of the net investinent,”

Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are {ranslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-menetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Exchange differences arising on monefary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
CGroup’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment
15 disposed of, at which time, the cumuiative amount is reclassified o profit or loss.

Foreign operations

Foreign cxchange gains and losses arising from a monetary item receivable from a foreign
operation, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, are
considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation and are recognised in other
comprehensive income/{loss} and presented within equity as a part of foreign currency translation
reserve (“FCTR"}.

In case of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the Holding Company’s
functional currency, the assets and liabilities of such foreign operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising upon acquisition, are translated to the presentatien currency at exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of such foreign operations are translated to the
presentation currency at the monthly average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Resulting
foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) and presented
within equity as part of FCTR. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant
amount in the FCTR is transferred to the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

¢. Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

{1} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset tukes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 4s a whele:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as 2 whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of asscts and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies.
For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the infonmation in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting poticy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36}
(b} Quantitative disclosures of {air value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

{¢) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) {note 36}

d. Revenne from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the
customer.
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The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided int Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group's contracts with customers include promises o transfer multiple services to a customer.
Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the
contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
commilted to perform their respective obligations under the coniract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized on these
identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is
satisfied. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment
for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

For the majority of contract performance obli gations, the Company has determined that an output
method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the
performance completed or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures
utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance
obligation identifted in the coniract.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any
types of warranties and related obligations to iis customers.

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenuc earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
frade recetvables.

Conlract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section {p) Financial mstruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional {(i.¢., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
CXists.
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f. Taxes
Current income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to sitnations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profits for the years. Current income tax is
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-
tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group reflects the cffect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatinent by using either most likely
method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the
treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between ihe tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
daie.

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused fax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

i} When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

i1 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised enly fo the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Defeired tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off seited if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority. The deferred tax assets (net) and deferred tax lisbilities (net) are determined
separately for the Parent and each subsidiary company, as per their applicable laws and then
aggregated.

g, Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, nct of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced st intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its usc is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accuinulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of propesty, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the cstimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful fives (in years)
Plant and Equipment S5t 15

Office equipment Jtol

Computers and equipment ol

Furniture & fixtures 3t0 10

Vehicles 5to8

Building 5 to 60

Blectrical instaliation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life
whichever is lower.
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Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding
company and as per the straight-line method by certain subsidiary companies which reflecis the
patiern of consumption of those future economic benefits in separate financial statements of the
respective companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derccognised.

The residual valucs, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

k. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and aceumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
atnortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense 01
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of ancther assct.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecogaition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and Joss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group's intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Usefnl lives Amortisation method nsed
Computer software 3 years Straight line method
(a.‘;:s;tt(;mer Relationship and related 5 to 8 years Straight line method
Patents 2 to 4 years Straight line method
Development expenditure 4 to 5 years Straight line method

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also inciudes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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j- Leases

The Group assesscs at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use asscts are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Land and Building - up to 60 years

If ownership of the Ieased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the fease term or the cost
refiects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the assct. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impaimment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the ease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made aver the lease teom. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
Jease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of 2 purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or 2 rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that iriggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing raie
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments {¢.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applics the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment and office premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of twelve months or
tess from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
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low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
foliows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for siow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage
pattern.

1. Impairment of nen-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to iis recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present valuc using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation maodel is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods,
a long-term growth rate is calculated and applicd to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts,
the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries
in which the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventaries, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss, except for propertics previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surpius.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses ne longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
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the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had ne impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
company of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses refating to
goadwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions, contingent liabilities and confingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a
possible obligation or 2 present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources
is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defmed contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related
service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a scparately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts inciuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the carlier of:
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i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
ii} The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit hability or asset.
The Group recognises the following chenges in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in
the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i} Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine setilements; and
ii} Net interest cxpense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are prescnted as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months afler the reporting
cdate.

o. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment fransactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate aiso requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stack Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 39.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
xception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which

-
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the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Growp inifially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing compenent or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, 1t needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SFPL)
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assefs or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash (lows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, 1.¢., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequem measyrement
For puposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

1} Financial aysets at amoertised cost (debt instruments)

i1) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and Josses (debt instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of curnulative gains and
losses upon derecognition {equity insfruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The assct is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

i} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured 2t amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is inciuded in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The
Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other reccivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financia) assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with
ret changes in fair value recognised in the statement of prefit and loss.
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This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controiling interest of
subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activitics

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Dorivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with profit/loss
being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered
into call options in respect of its investment in ifs subsidiary which are initially recogitised at fair
value with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financial assets/other financial liabilities”.
Profits and losses arising from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded detivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
categoty.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

1) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

i) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has ncither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred contro! of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liabilily are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the assct and the maxinmum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

_ g
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS (09, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECLY) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies a simplified approach in caleufating 1iCLs, Therefore, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises 2 loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss cxpericnce, adjusted for forward-looking [actors specific to the debfors and the economic
environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for witich there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that resuit from
defauit events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.c., a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives desi gnated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Altfinancial labilities arc recognised initially at fair value and, in the casc of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilitics are classified in two categories:

1} Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
1)) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as heid for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losscs on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
ed as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses atfributable to changes in
are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
nt of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
I other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit an
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loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or foss
exeepl contingent consideration.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and fosses
are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilitics arc derecognised as wcll as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and [oss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the hability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new hability. The differcnce in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comptise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three mouths or Iess, that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

$. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating dituted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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t. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquirec. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquirec at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

‘Fhe Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activitics and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing
outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
i the ability to continue producing outputs,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the labilities assumed include contingent liabilitics
tepresenting present obligation and they are measurcd at their acquisition fair values irvespective of the
fact that outflow of resources em bodying economic benefits is not probable..

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilitics assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent condilions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquirce.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCl, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be fransferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within

equity,

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesscs whether it has cotrectly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilitics assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumuliated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
o CpNallocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,

N, ‘i}‘f spective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquirce are assigned 1o those units.

'(ﬂ,f
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A cash generating unit {o which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed i subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has becn allocated to a cash-gencrating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the cnd of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilitics are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

u. Scgment reporting

Based on management approach as defined in Indian Accounting Standard 108 — Operating Segment,
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker for evaluation of Group’s performance.

v. Dividend

The Group recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Group when the distribution is
authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the local regulations, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assum ptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs,
cxpenscs, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertaintics includes:

i) Capital management notc 38
i) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 37
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Judgements, which have the most si gnificant effeet on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated

Einancial Statements:
\&“&
(:g \ﬁ‘
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Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group uas a
lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the feasc if' it is reasonably certain 1o be exercised, or any
petiods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include cxtension and termination options. The Group
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. T hat is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal ot termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or chan g¢e in circurnstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option fo renew or
to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to
the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amotmts
of asscts and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on paramctcrs available when the Consolidated Financial Statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assum ptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the Group uses a DCF model for employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for
estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexitics involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
cach reporting date.

Fair value measarement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measurcd using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of Judgement is required in
establishing fair vahues. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatifity. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.
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Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the leasc, therefore, it uses its
incremental botrowing rate (IBR) to measure fcase liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a simila term, and with a similar sceurity, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to rcflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates).

2.3 New and amended standards:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the [oflowing [nd AS which are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2023, The Group applied for the first-time these
amendments.

{I) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful
by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entitics
apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(iiy Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under ind AS 12, so that it
no longer applies to transactions that give risc to cqual taxable and deductible temporary
differences such as teases. The Group previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net
basis. As a result of these amendments, the Group has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in
relation to its lcase liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since,
these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no
impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at |
April 2023.

2.4 Amendments not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Capital work-in-progress and Int ibie asseds wnder develppment

Particutars Cupltal worli-in- Intangible rssefs Total
Progress under development

Cast

AL Aprit 01, 2022 19818 1372 10350

Addililions 540.02 9.76 569,78

Capilalization 543.25 219 545,44

Digletion - 1.54 1.54

At March 31, 2023 1%6.95 30.75 226,70

Additions 3,35 4.91 713.26

Additions on account of acquisition of

subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) 10.28 ’ 10.28

Capitatization 570.68 47.54 £18.22

At March 31, 2024 32%.90 .12 332.02

CWIP ageing Sehedule as at March 31, 2033

Amount th CWIP for o period of

o Total
Less than 1 year I-2 yenrs 1-3 years More than 3
_vinrs

Project in propress 151.55 3540 - - 186.9%

Project completion schedule for vverduc projects as &t Mareh 31, 2024 {refer aote H below)

Tu be compieted in

WIP
¢ Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3
years
Project in progress 44 64 - _ .
CWIP npeinp Schidule as at March 31, 2024
Aunoarnt in CWIP for & peried of
cwIr Tokal
Lss then T year 1.2 years 2-3 years More than 3
YesLS
Project in progress 258.66 47.59 - 23.65 120.90

Mote:
{i} Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 of Rs.329.90 million {March 31, 202} Rs. 18695 million) comprises expenditure for the property, plant and equipment which are
under developinent aad nol yei put for use,

{ii} In casc of Holding Company, there are 2 projucts duc in terms of timelines ond budget as at March 31, 2024. The projects were started between November 2022 to Seplember
2023 and were planned 10 be completed during the year. Due to complexilies involved in instalistion aad performance qualification tustiug, the projects were not completed during the
year, The projeets are now on trick and are vapected to be capitalized in FY 24-25.

{iii} There are ne projeets lor the year ended March 31, 2624 and March 31, 2023 which arc tomperarily suspended ard honce ao disclosure is applicable thereal for capital work - in -
Progress.

Intangible ussets under develo t{IALD) ngelup Schedule as at March 31, 2024
Amount in TAUD fer » period ol
List: ts snder devel H Todzl
ntangible ussets under developmen: Less than 1 yess 12 years 2.3 years Mu;::r:n 3
Praject in progress .12 .00 - - 212
Intangible assets under develoy t (1AUDY ageing Schedule as at Mareh 31, 2023
Amount in IAUD for » period of
tangiblc 5 leved Total
Intaugtble gssels under developmient 135 then 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thay: 3
YLOTS
Praject in progress 1.57 545 1.66 507 3975
Profect completion schedule for sverdue projects as at Mareh 31, 2023
Tu be completed in
Int sets under developnient
ntrngile essets under developnien Less than 1 year 1-2 years 23 yenrs ﬁfl};::il:ll 3
Project in progross {refee nobe bolow) 15.27 - - -

Notes:

(i) Intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 2.12 million {March 31, 2023; Rs. 39.75 millien) comprise expenditure for the developnient of soflware not yet put o
use.

fiy The project of devclopment of ceonos suflware relating to Holding Company was started in March 2017 and was planned lo be completed by May 2018. The said software is g
custamized software which is being devaloped by the third party vendor, There has been delay in this projeet on aceount of izali qui of the Compaiy, resignation of
employee whe was handling the said project from the Holding Company’s side. The delay was alse an account of COVID-19 from March 2020 anwards. Vhe project is now on track and
fias been capitalized in June 2023,

(i} There are no projects for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 which are temporarily suspended snd ience no disclosure is applicabie thereof for intangible assets
utider developnient,

Ry
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itipht of use assets {refer note 35)

nts for the year ended Marvch 31, 2024

Particulars Land Office Premises Total
Gross Block
At Aprtl 01, 2022 BLYS 520.74 o02.4%
Additinng RO.14 19936 279.50
Detetion / termination - 7376 7276
At Murck 31, 2023 161.5% 647,33 804922
Additions 7765 21517 29282
At March 3, 2024 23954 862.50 L102.04
Accamalated Depreciation
At April 01, 2022 513 148,27 194.00
Cherge for the year 15.24 96,01 111.25
G deletion [ lermination - 16.84 16.84
At March 31, 2023 2096 16743 441
Cliarge: for the year i8.16 9747 115.63
At March M, 2024 kLA b 364.90 404,02
Met block
Al Mareir 31, 2023 140.93 376.00 520.82
At March 31, 2024 20042 497,60 698.02
Goordwill aud Other tangible ossels
Farticutars Cowmputer soltware Customer Patent Development Guudwill Tuotal

- refationship .o oo Eaneuditere ..
Gross Diuche
At Apri 01, 2022 26.00 231.50 - - 1.6E0.54 1,325.0%
Additions kY - . - - 3727
Disposals 3.34 - - - - 334
At March 31, 2023 5993 231.50 - - 1,080.58 LALA2
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary
{refer note 41 () and 41 (b) 211 4,580.45 s 022 5,350.40 9,942.32
Ciber additions 152.00 - - - - 152,00
Fercign currincy translation adjustments - (14.98} - - {12.85) {2383}
Disposals 5.57 - - - - 557
At March 31,2024 208.44 450097 .15 0.22 642713 [1,436.04
Accumulated Amurtizeilan
At Apri 01, 022 13.10 20.53 - - - 33.63
Charge for the year 11.65 28.94 - - - 40,59
On disposals 116 - - - - 316
Al Mareh M, 2023 21,59 4547 - - - TLO6
Charge for the year 47.74 44,00 - - - 41
On disposals 415 - - - - 4.5
At Mareh 31, 2024 65.18 9347 - . - 158.65
Net bluck
At March 31, 2023 3534 182.683 - - 1,060.5% 1,300.96
At March 31, 2024 143.30 4.696.62 0.15 .22 642713 11,267.29

The Group ftas elected to continue with the carying velues as at April 01, 2019 ie., date of transition 10 Ind AS under previous GAAP for sll the items of other intanible assets and
accordingly, the ned block on that date has been carried as its deemed cost.
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4.1 Investnent In Foint Ventore
Particutars As at March As al March
A1, 2024 35, 13
MNou-eurrent
Investment In equity sharca of Joint Venture (subsidiary w.e.l. April 01, 2023) {Unquoted)
708,000 (March 31, 2023: 150,000} fully peid cquity shusey of Ingenuily Biosciences Private Limited having face valun of Ry. 10 cach
{subsidiary w.e.f, Aprit 1, 2023) {refer note 40) . :
Less: Provision for impai: on t invesimen - -
Totel non-current invesimenis - -
Tatal npnecurrent bvesiment
Aggrepate amount of quoted mvestments and market vadue thereofl - -
Agaregale amount of unquoted ipvesiments - .
Aggrepale armaunt of impairmen - -
4.2 Currenl lavesiiments
H AsalMarch  As at Merch
Particulars 31, 2024 31,2003
Current
Tnvestemants in unita of mutal fundy (carried at fair velue (through profit and loss) {Quoted)
186.932.64 {Maurch 1), 2023 132,052 843 Unats of ICICT Prudential Savings Fund {Regular Growth) 9226 i51.91
136,190.94 (March 21, 2023: 256,229.87) Unils of Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Dyration Fund (Regular Growih} 3185 143.9%
141,167,453 {March 31, 202% 86,990 63} Units of Aditya Birla Sun Lile Low Duralion Fand {Direet Growth) 93.05 5319
716,494,135 (March 31, 2023 1,00%,713.94) Units of HOFC Low Durebon Fund (Direct Grawth) 153,98 33.03
46,730.32 (March 31, 202): 17,339 34} Unitz of Kotak Low Duration Fund {Birect Growth) 15404 330
42,385.54 (March 31, 2023; 27 464,47} Units of Mippon India Low Duratisn Fund {Direct Grovah) 154,56 9] 74
125,1B8.81 (Merch 31, 2023: Nil} Units of [CICT Prudentin) Savings Fund {Direct Growth) 62,53 -
Tolal curreni investments 79227 545,87
‘Fotrl currenl Investmenty LRk 546.87
Aggregate amount of quated investnents and markel value thereol 9227 546 87
Agpregate pnount of unquoted investinents - -
Aggregate amount of imparment - -

§  Trade Receivatiles

Particulars Asal March 31,  As al Merch

2024 a1, 2003
Trade reccivables
Secared, conmdered good . -
Unsecured, considersd good 1.28900 1,051.24
Trade ivables which have signifl [ in eredit risk 2605 2550
Trade receivables - credit impaired 41.0% 5¢.50
Imprirment allowance (allowance for bad and doubrful detits)
Unsecured, considered good . -
Trode receivables which have significant increase in credit sisk (46.05} (25,50}
Trade receivalibus - credit impaired (41.05) (50,50}
Total trade receivables 209, 1.2
Nales:

Trade receivables are non-intecest bearing and are generatly on terny of 7-90 days.

For information abeaut eredit risk and market risk refated 1o trade receivable, please refer note 37,

NMa trade o other receivable are due from di or other officers of the holding company either severally or joiniy with any oliter person. Nor any trade oF other recervable are dug from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is n panner, a ditector or & member,

For terms and conditions related to related party receivables, refer note 31,

“Fhe fallownng table summanizes the change in impai 1] d uging {he bife time expected credit loss model

Particulars Asat March31, As at March

2024 31,3023
At the beginning of the year 16.50 5308
Prawision made during the year 1326 292
Uilized / reversed during the year £2.16} -
At the end of the year 37.10 16,00
ey Reeeivabies ngeing schedule s ot March 31, 2024
Outstanding For Illuwing perisds from the due date ol peyment
. Total
Particulara Not due Less than § § months - § 12 yerrs 2-3 Yeers More Ihan 3 ol
maonths yenr yeAars
{i} Undisputed Trade recoivables — considered pood 605,52 A4 58 129,74 6%.16 . - 1,209 00
Y Lindi N Reroivablet = vehi e
{ii) Undisputed Trade which heve significen! . 467 i 80 1292 319 0.52 4219
lincrense ip credit nisk
{iit} Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired . 074 - 13.76 o - 24.23
vy Disputed Trede Receivables—considercd good B - . - . . .
{v) Disputed Teade Receivables — which have sigificant increase } N 224 062 . ; 286

n credit tisk
F\n[ Diséulcd Treds Receivables - credH impaired . - - - .20 i6.62 16,872
Tatal 606552 10%.99 133.87 L1646 13.12 17.54 1,296.10

Trade Receivables nycing schedule as af Macch 31, 2023
OCutslanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Parth . Tatst
articulers Not due Less then & & manths - 1 12 years 2.3 Yerrs More then 3 ctal
manths year yeury
{i} Unedisputed Trade receivaistes — considered wond 60815 401 64 13.66 379 - . 1,051.24

i) Undisputed Trade Recetvables — which have significant

: _— . - 11.61 13.04 035 . 255G
increase in credit Hisk
iti} Undisputed Trade Reccivablea = eredit impaired - 187 413 19.92 3.65 B.42 41,99
iv) Disputed Trode Receivables—considered goad . . - . . . .
“[CeyDigputed Traje Reorivables — which have rignificant increase . B R . i . B
rade Receivables - credil impoired - - - - 041 5.90 651

Tatal 428.15 40%.55 51,40 3875 11 14.32 1,127.24




Veodu Clindcal Research Limited
Notes to C Itdnted Financini 5: for tire year ended March 31, 2024
(All emounts in Indian rupees million, unless othenvise stated)

Cash and cash cguivelents

Asat March 31, Asat Merch

Partieulars 2024 31, 2023
Batance with Banks
- Cm curcent accoutls 836,39 36790
- Deposids with original maturity of less lhan three months 1K.05 -
Cash on hand 2.12 081
Tote! cash and cash equivelents _938.56 36871

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of Jess than 3 months as 2t March 31, 2024 are Rs, 100.05 million {March 31, 2023 Rs, Nil). These deposils ane gaming imterest ranging beiween 3.00% Lo
4.80% {Mareh 31. 2023: Ni)

OQther Bank balarces

Parilculars Asut March 31,  Asat March

2024 31, 2023
Deposits with Griginal maturity of more than Ustee months bt iess than bvelve months {refer rote below) 389,71 3100
Share application money aecount - 21340
Total other hank balances 389.71 44 00

Note:

Deposits with original matudily of more than three months bul less then twelve months as st March 31, 2024 are Rs. 389.71 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 31 million). These depasits are caming
interest ranping between 6,50% to T.10% {March 31, 2023: 5.45% to 6.30%). Deposits with bank 25 2t March 31, 2024 amounting to nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. 31.00 million] are given as collaierel
security against cash credit limits. These deposils are made for & varying period for 3 months to 12 months end cams interesl of 5.45% to 6.80% {March 31, 2023).

Loans
Asat March  As at March
Fertlculers 31,2024 31,2023
Nor-Current
Upseeured, considered good
Loan to Joint ventuce in which the company is a venturer {refer note 2 below) (Subsidiary we.f Agpnil 01, 2023 - -
Totel non-current loans - st
Naore:
1) Since: the above loan given to joint venture (Subsidiary w.e.L. April 01, 2023} is d and idered good, the b ion of loan in other categories as requircd by schedule 1T of
companies Act, 2013 viz: 2) Securcd b) Loans which have significant inereas in eredit risk end ¢} credil impaired is nol epplicable.
2} Loan given to joint venture {Subsidiary w.e.f. Aprii 01, 2022 amounting to nil {Match 31, 2023: Rs 14.00 mitlion) has becn writien off during the p T0us year sdering the uni; bl
finaneial condition of joint ventre {Subsidiary w.e.f. Aprit 01, 2023} {rofor nole 40,
Piselosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Conipanies Act 1013
Inctuded in toans and advance are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as reguired by See 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Secured / Asal Aot
Neme of loance Rate of Interest Due Date Unsecured Mazr‘;:;::l. March 31, 2023

Laan is repayable at the end of 2

years from the date of agrecment.
[ngenuity Pioscicnces Private Limited? 8% p.adl.Y. 6% pa)  |However, the loan may be repaid nsccured - -

carlier at any time by the

BOIOWET.

*Newed sharc of loss emounting to Rs, ail (Marck 31, 2023; Rs, 26,67 million) and loan written off amounting to Rs. nif {(Marek 31, 2023: Rs. 34.00 million}.
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Yeedn Clinieal Resesrch Limited
Nutey te Consntidated Financial Stateinents for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amgunls in fndian nepees million, unless othervise siated)

ther financial sssels

Perticulars As at March  As ng March

31,2024 31,2023

Unsecured, Consldered pood
MNon-Current
Security Deposils 66,59 5573
Bank deposits with remaining maturily for more (han 12 months {refer note § below) 12084 Er AN
Fair valuee of cali option {refer note 41 (b)) 0.6 4088
Total other non-current financisl asscls 218.02 421.85
Unsecurcd, Constdered pood
Current
Contracl asset

- Bue from customer {zecrucd revenwe) {refer note 22.2) 1,201.55 240,76
Seeority deposits .80 (-]
Inserest seerued on gocorily deposits Q.98 0.8
Export incentive receiveble - 49.36
Baok deposils with remaining maturity for tess than 12 months (refer note ii befow) 326.73 123.18
Ferward Contract 0.62 -
Employee Benefit receivable 0.06 .
Receivable from setling sharcholders {eefer note 3t} 41.72 37.5%
Total other current Bnancal esscts 1,573.46 45303
Total ather financhal assets 791,47 376,88
Reconcillation of contract Assel:
Balance &t the beginoing of the year 240,76 188.06
Addilions on of acquisition of subsidizry {refer note 41 (a)) LAYAT] -
Less: Invoicing during the year from balance al the beginning of the yea (20060 (148.33)
Less: Writien off during the year from balance at e beghining of the year (4.75) {13.99)
Add: Conlract Asssts ereated during the year 289,03 215.02
Belance at the end of the year 120155 240.76

Notes:

i} Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than §2 months as at March 31, 2024 are Ry, 120.79 million {March 31, 2023: Rs. 321.24 million). These depasits are made for a period of more
Hhan 12 months end com interest ranging between 3.30% to 7.30% {March 31, 2023: 4.55% 1o 7.25%). Out of the ghove, deposits amounting te Rs. 94.14 million as w1 March 31, 2024 (March 31,
2023 Bs. 81,49 million) arc given a5 security against loans, ovee dradl facilitios snd hank guaranice.

i) Bank deposits with original matunity for more than 12 momths and with remaining maturily for iess than 12 months ag al March 31, 2024 are Rg. 326.71 mitlion (March 31, 2023: Rs. 12018
million). These deposits ar¢ made for & period of more than 12 moaths and cam intercst ranging between 6.70% 1o 7.25% (March 31, 202%: $.25% to 7.25%). Deposits amounting to Rs, 79.10
million as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 19.16 million) are given as colfalcrat security against cash eredit lirmits and bank guarntes,

Other assels
Ay gt Marck 31,  As atMarch

Particulers 2024 31,202
MNon-current
Unsecured, Considerced good
Balance with government sutharitics (tefer note briow) 47.82 s
Capilal advances 1648 3997
Preprid expenses 5.13 4.61
Total other non-current sssets £3.41 30,31,
Current
Unsecared, Consldered pood
Prepaid expenses 16,37 .76
Advanee to creditors 17.18 15,82
Less: Frovision for doublful advances . -
Employes edvances 4.67 491
Balarce with govemment authoritics (refer nate below) 374.29 i51.50
Qihers - -
Total other current assels 502.50 206.9%
Total other asscts S71.93 287.36
Naote:

Halanee with government euthorities perieing W amgunt paid under protest in Service 1nx amoutiling 1o Rs. 9.08 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 9.08 miftion ), GST omounting t¢ Rs. 3.14 million
(March 31, 202X nil }, edvance payment of custom duty amownting te Rs, 131 million {March 31, 2023: ni) ) and GST input tan credil receivable (net of ability) amounting to Bs. 140.66 million
{March 34, 2021: Rs. 61.41 milfion).

incorme tax assets (net)

Asnd Mareh 31,  As af March

Particulars 2024 1. 2073
Non-current
Advanee payment of Incoine tax (et of provision) 21802 23628
Current
Advanee payment of Income tax {nct of provision} £5.18 -
Total Income tax nssots (net) 307,12 _ 23628
Inventorfes (volued st dower of cost and net realizable velue)

As at March As ef March

Pariiculers 31, 2024 M, 2023
Consumables .29 $7.54
Less : Provision For non moving & slow moving inventory (33.39) £26.46)

Total inventorics 77.90 LS,
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Veeda Clinieal Researeh Limited

fotes to Consoliduted Finnnicinl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All ascunts in Tndian mipees million, unless othenwvise stated)

Equity share capitel

. Equify sharcs
Particulars No. of Shares Armount
Authorised equity shares of Rs. 2 each
As at March 31, 2022 18,22,03,400 364.41
Change duriny the year . -
As at March 31, 2023 18,22,03,440 364.41
Change during the year - ~
As at March 31 2034 _ _ 18,23,03,400 36441
_ Equity shiares
Partleulars No. of Shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 2 each
As at March 31, 2022 5,28,93,986 105,78
Changes due to prior period ermmors B -
Change during the year - .
As ot March 31, 2023 5,28,93,085 105.78%
Changes due 1o prior period etrors . .
Change during the year 1,01,05,860 20.21
As at Magch 31, 2024 ] 629,99 846 125.59

Yerms/ righis sfteched to equity shares

Tn respect of ordinary shares, voting rights shall be in fhe same proportion os the capital paid upon such ordinary share bears to the total paid np ordinury capital of the holding
comparty. The dividend proposed by the bourd of directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the enseing Annual General Meeling, except in ¢ase of
interim dividend. In the cvent of liquidation, the sharcholders of Ordinary sharcs are eligible lo receive the remaining asseis of the holding company afler distribution of all

preferential amounts, i proportion to their sharcholdings.

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% Equity shares in the Holding Company

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2623

Mo, of shares % holding | No. of shares % holding
Equity sharcs of Rs. 2 each {refer above note)
Bagil Private Limiled 2,22,51,7112 35.32%) 22254712 42.07%
Bondway Investment Inc. 1,28,80,580 20.45%|  1,31,30,580 24.82%
Sabre Partniers ALF Trust 27,60,840 4.38% 27,600,840 5.22%
Shares held by Ilelding Company
. ) As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder No. of shares Amount No, of shares Amgunt

Basi! Privarte Limiled
Equity shares of Rs, 2 each {refer above note) 222,51, 132 44,50, 22251712 44.50]

immediately preceding the reporting date:

Aggregate number of equity shares Issued =5 bonus, shares issued for conslderation other than cash and shares beught b

ack during the perind of five years

For the yesr

ended Mareh

For the yeer
emded March

For the year ended

For the year

For the year

Particulars March 31, 2022 | ended March 34, |ended March 31,
31, 2024 31,2023
H » 2 b
(Number) (Number} {Number) 202] (Number) | 2020 (Number}
Issuc of fully paid equity shares of Rs. 2 each as bonus shareg - - 4,24.35910 -
[ssue of equity share of Rs 2 each for investment in | calth Data Speciatists
_ S 3632310 - -
{Uoldings) Limited
- - — e
Is'squ: of equily share of Rs 2 each fur investment in Bionceds India Private ) 28,39.864
Limiled
Equity Sharcholding of Promoters as at March 3, 2023
No, of shares Change
» ‘ at the No. of shares at the |, o %% change
Promoter Nume Class of share beginming of dnri::rlhe end of the year % of Total shares during the year
the vear ‘
Equity shares
Basil Private Limited of Rs. 2 each 2,22,51, 12 2225112 42.07
fully paid
Tolal 2,22,51,712 * 222.51,712 42.07 -




13.5

13.6

14

Veeda Clinfeal Wesearch Linsited

Nntes {0 Consolidited Financizl Statements for the year ended Marcl 31, 2024

{ANL amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated}

Equity Shareielding of Promoters as at March 31, 2024

Mo, of shares

Change 1 % change
Promoter Name Class of share ?t the during the No. of shares at the % of Total shares! during the yesr
beginning of ) end of the year .
the yepr year
Equiiy shares
Basil Private Limited of Rs. 2 each 222,51,7112 - 2,22,51,712 35.32 {6.75)
fuily paid
Teotal 222,501,712 - 2.22.51,712 35.32 (6.75)

* % change is on account of new shares issued to sharcholders other than promotors.

Employees Stock Option Scheme

1,191,094 equity shares (March 31, 2023: 1,289,970 cquity shares} of the face value Rs.2 each are reserved under Employee Stock Option Plan of the company which are

outstending as on reporting date. (refer note 31 and note 39).

Other Equity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Securities premium
Balance at the beginging of the year 3,203.48 3,703.48
Changes due 1o sccounting policy or prior period emors - -
On issue of equity shares during the yoat 3,385.01
Utilized towards expenses on fresh issue of equity shares {62.16) -
Bajunce at the end of the year 7,526,313 3. 1348
Capital reserve
Balznce at the bepinsing of the year {1,077.35) (730.49)
Changes duc to accounting policy or prior period errors . .
Change on accounl of additional siake purchased from non-controlling interest of subsidiary (234.70) {346.90)
Capital reserve generated on account of acquisition of subsidiary {refer note 41(b)) 2.14 -
Balance at the end of the year {1,309.95) (1,077.3%)
Share options cutstanding reserve
Balance 2t the beginzing of the year 28.39 24.21
Changes due o accounting policy or prior period ¢rors - -
Adjustment on forfeiture of ESOP (0.29) (0.64)
Options granted to joint venture during the year {refer note 31 and nole 393 - 0.02
Options granied to subsidiary during the year (refer note 31 and nate 39) (0.08) -
Compensation for options granted docing the year (refer note 39} {0.07) 4.80
Balance st the end of the year 27.95 28.39
Sharc application money pending ellotenent
Balance at the beginning of the yesr 213,60 -
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - .
Share application money received - 213.00
Share application meney utilized for allotment of sharcs {213.003 -
Balance at the end of the year . 213.00
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the heginning of the year 1,598.34 1.J98.62
Changes due to accounting policy or prior periad crrors - -
Profil / {loss) for lhe year {nct of taxes) (221 401.15
Other comprehensive profit / {foss} [or the year (net of taxes) {3.209 {2.08)
Adjustment on forfeiture of ESOP 0.29 0.64
Balznce at the end of the year 1,593.23 1,598.34
Foreipn Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at the bepinning of the year - -
Changes due to accounting pelicy or prior period ervors -
Exchange differcnces on lranslation of foreign operations 11.36 -
Balance at the end of the year 11.36 -
Shares to be issued on account of business combination
Balsance ai the heginning of the year B -
Changes due to accounting policy or prior peried errors -
Addition {Refer to note $1{a}) 2.624.79
Balance at the end of the year 2,624.79 -
Total other equity 10,473,730 4,465.82
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Other Eyuity {continued)

As at As at

Partigulars March 31, 2024 Mereh 31,3023

Non-controlling interest

Balance at the beginning of the yesr $7.73 .22
Profit f (Joss) for the year (nel of taxes) {1.30) 2308
Olher comprehicnsive Income / (loss) For the year (net of taxes) (C.3) 022
Change ¢n account of additioral stake purchased from non-conteolling interest of subsidiaries (5.75) £36.79)
Bulance at the end of the year 50.31 5173

Naoture snd purpose of Feserves:

{1} Securities Prembum: In cases where the holding Company issucs sharcs at & premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum cqual o the aggregate amount of the premium
received on those shares has been ramsferred 10 “Securities Premiwm” The holding Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members out of the securities
preminm ard to buy-back of shares.

{2} Capital reserve: It represcats rescrve created on acquisition of additional stake of Bionceds India Private Limited and Inpenuity Biosciences Private Limited dudng the
year ended March 37, 2024 of 4.00% (ycer caded March 31, 2023 - 11.90%) and 50.00% (year ended March 31, 2023 - Nil) respectively ffom not-controlling sharcholders,
The amounl is not available for distribution to shareholders.

{3} Share cptions ouistunding reserve @ The share options based payment reserve is used to recognize the grant daie fair value of options issued to employecs under
employee stock oplion plan.

{4} Surplus in statement of profit and less: Surpivs in statement of profit and loss are the profils / {Josses) that the Group has eamned / incurred Kl date, less any transfers o
general reserve, dividends or other distribulions paid to sharcholders. Retained earnings include re-tneasurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not
be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Retained camings is a (Fee reserve available to the Grounp and eligible for distribution to sharcholders, in case where it is
having positive balance representing net eamings il date.

(5} Shure Application Money Pending Allotment: It represents application maney reccived on account of private placement offer against which sharcs has been allolted
during the year.

{6} Fereign Currency Transiation Reserve: Exchange differcaces arising on translation of the foreipn operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as

deseribed in accounting policy and accumulated i a separate reserve within equity.

{7} Shaves to e issued on account of business combination {refer note 41(n)): The Shares to be issued on account of business combination represenis the equity shares
that will be issued in future as a scttlement af purchase consideralion for acquisilion made during the year,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
Nutes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless othcrwise stated)

Financial liabitities

15 Borrowings .
. As at As uat
Particular
Arficnars March 31,2024 __March 31, 2023

Non-current borrowing

Secured

Term Ioans from bank

Indian Rupee loan from bank {refer note | below) 14.86 3103

Foreign currency loan from bank {refer note 2 fo 5 below) 217.81 343 .46

Term loan from other parties

Foreign currency loan from other parties (refer note 7 below) 2,267.25 -
2,499.92 380.49

Less: Current malurities of long term borrowings clubbed under "Current borrowings™

Indian Rupee loan from bank (refer note 1 below) {14.86) {22.18)

Foreipm currency loan from bank {refer note 2 fo 5 below) {B5.28) (99.19)

Total non-current borrowings ... 239998 259.12

Current Borrowings

Secured

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Term lozns from banks

Indian Rupee loan from banks (refer note 1 below) 14.86 22.18

Foreign currency loan front bank {refer note 2 to 5 below) 8528 99.19

Loatts repayable on demand

Cash credit [rom bank (refer noie 6 below) 116.93 10525

Total current borrowings e 2207 23662

Total borrawings : ' _'_ 261685 .._:..-._‘1.327_4,

- Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023

Aggregate secured loan 2,616.85 485.74

Aggregate unsecured loan “ -

Details of terms and seeuritics for the above borrowing facilities are as follows;

! {The term Loan amounting to Rs. 67 million from Canara bank is taken to build up current asscts and mect operational liabilities. The term loan is
secured by assets created out of the credit facilities extended. The outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2024 is of Rs. 14.86 million
(March 31, 2023: Rs. 37.22 million).The loan carries interest rate linked fo one year RLLR (Repo Linked Lending Ratc) plus spread of 0.60%. The
effective interest rate is 9.25% (March 31, 2023: 9.85%). The loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments commencing from December 2021.

2 The term Loan amounting to Rs. 270 million from Canara bank was taken for purchase of undertaking expansion of Pre-clinical and Che-;n-igrr;

Services located at Devarahosaili and Peenya by way of construction of building, purchase of equipments, seiting up of Kilo labs ete. and was secured
by hypothccation of utilities, lab furnitures, plant & equipment, furniture, computer and scientific instruments at Devarahosalli - Sompura hobli,
Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangaiore unit. The lvan carried interest rate linked MCLR plus spread of 1.15%. The cffective interest rate was 10.50% till
the conversien in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term ioan of Rs 267.67 million has been liquidated by obtaining the forcign currency
term loan of USD 3,561,760 from the Canara Bank. The said loan carics interest rate linked to six months LIBOR + 350 bps. The ioan is also seourcd
by personal guarantee of Dr. S.N Vinaya Babu (KMP of subsidiary company), Mr. Kiran Kumar {KMP of subsidiary company) & Smt. H.N Sowmya
{rclative of KMP of subsidiary company)and cellateral security of lund & building.

The outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2024 is USD 1,960,946 equivalent to Rs,162.38 million (March 31, 2023: USD 2,671,586
cquivalent to Rs. 219.65 million). The ¢ffective interest rate for the borrowing post conversion 1o foreign currency term loan is 8.97% (March 31, 2023
3.65%}. The foreign currency term loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments commencing from January 2022,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2024
(All ainounts in Indian repees million, unless otherwise slated)

Financial liabilitics

Borrowings {continued)

The term loan amounting to Rs. 56 million frem Canara bank was taken for purchasc of Scientific equipments & lab fumiture. The term loan was
secured by hypothecation of utilitics, lab furnitures, plant & equipment, furniture, computer and scientific mstruments at Devarahosalli - Sompura
hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit. The loan carried interesi rate linked to one year MCLR plus spread of 3.15%. The effective interest
rate was 8.50% 1ill the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term ioan of Rs 8.15 million has been liquidated by obiaining the foreign cwrency
term loan of USD 108,463 from Canara Bank. The said lean carrics interest rate linked te six menths LTBOR + 350 bps. The same is sccured apainst
hrypothecation of land, building, plant and equipment of subsidiary company. The loan is also sccured by personal guarantee ofDr. §.N Vinaya Babu
(KMP of subsidiary company), Mr. Kiran Kumar (KMP of subsidiary company) & Smt. HN Sowmya {relative of KMP of subsidiary company)} and
collateral security of tand & building of subsidiary company.

The offective intercst rale for the barrowing post conversion to foreign currency term loan as on March 31, 2023 is 3.65%. The same is fully repaid by
the subsidiary company during the year cnded March 31, 2023,

The term loan amounting 1o Rs. 90 million from Canara bank was tuken to finance the project for expansion of the subsidiary company's business in the
Biophanmaceutical sector and is secured by hypothecation of utilities, lab furnitures, plant & equipment, furniture, compuier and scientific instruments
at Devarahosalli - Sompura hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit. The loan carried interest raic linked to one year MCLR plus spread of]
1.15%. The cffective intcrest rate was 8.50% till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loar of Rs 59.11 million has been liguidated by obtaining the foreign currency
term loan of USD 786,381 from Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked to to six months LIBOR -+ 350 bps. The same is secured against
hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment, fumiture & computer of subsidiary company. The loan was also secured by personal guarantee of]
Dr. S.N Vinaya Babu (KMP of subsidiary company), Mr. Kiran Kumar (KMP of subsidiary company} & Smt. H.N Sowmya {relative of KMT of]
subsidiary company).

The outstanding balance of the term toan #s at March 31, 2024 1s Nil (March 31, 2023 : USD 550,657 cquivalent te Rs. 4527 multion). The effective
intercst rate for the borrowing post conversion to foreign currency term loan is 8.85% (March 31, 2023: 3.65%). The same is fully repaid by the
subsidiary company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

The term loan amounting to Rs. 110 miliien from Canara bank was taken to meet working capital requirements of the subsidiary company and is
secured by stock and book debts, hypothecation of utilities, lab furnitures, plant & machinery, lab equipment, furniture, computer, land & building and
scientific instraments at Devarahosaili - Sompura hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit. The loan was also secured by personal guarantee of]
Dr. S.N Vinaya Babu (KMP of subsidiary company), Mr. Kiran Kumar {(KMP of subsidiary company) & Smt. H.N Sowmya (rclative of KMP of]
subsiciary compary). The loan carried intcrest rate linked to one year MCLR plus spread of 1.00% and term Premia of 0.40%. The effective interest
rate was 8.50% tilt the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 103,82 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency
term loan of USD 1,381,491 from Canara Bank. The said loan carrics interest rate linked to to six months LIBOR + 350 bps. The same is secured
against hypotheeation of plant & machinery, lab cquipment, furniture & computer of subsidiary company. The loan is also sccured by personal
guaranice of Dr. 8.N Vinaya Babu (KMP of subsidiary company), Mr. Kiran Kumar (KMP of subsidiary company) & Smt. H.N Sowmya {relative off
KMP of subsidiary company) and collateral security of land & building of subsidiary company.

The outstanding balance of the term loan as al March 31, 2024 is USD 664,821 equivalent to Rs. 55.43 Million (March 31, 2023 USD 983,086
cquivalent to Rs. 80.83 miliion). The effective intcrest rate for the borrowing post conversion to forcign currency lerm loan is 8.97% {March 31, 2023:
3.65%). The foreign currency term loan is repayable in 52 monthly instalments commencing from January 2022.

Cash Credit from Canara Bank amounting to Rs.125 million is secured by Hypothecation of stocks & Book Debts, Plant & equipment, Furniture &
Fixture and 2 Cicher Buses of subsidiary company. The outstanding balance of the facility as at March 31, 2024 is Rs.116.93 miltion (March 31, 2023:
105.25 million). The cash credit facility carries interest rate linked to one year RLLR of 9.25% Plus spread of 1.60% (March 31, 2023: RLLR of 9.40%
Plus spread of 1.60%). The effective interest rate is 10.85%. (March 31, 2023: 11.00%).

Loan from GLAS Trust Corp as at March 31, 2024 amounting fo Rs. 2267.25 million (March 31, 2023: Nil} is sccured by way of corporate guarantee
(refer note 32) & carries interest rate linked to quarterly EURIBOR of 3.92% Plus spread of 3.50% and is repayble over the tenure of 5 years till

March 31, 2029,

&
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Yeeda Clinical Research Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateinents for the year ended Murch 31, 2024
{All amounis w indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Trade payables _
; As at As at
Particul
Armears i March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Total outstanding ducs of credilors 634.82 221.70
Total _.G54,87 221,70

Terms and conditions of 1he above outstanding balances:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30-180 days.
For explanalion on company's credit osk management process, refer note 37.
For terms and conditions with related party, refer note 31,

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction#
Particulars |
' Unbilled Lesi::::n 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | More than 3 years Total
(i} Trade Payables - others 484.43 170.37 0.9} - 654.82
{i1} Trade Pavables - disputed - - - . -
‘Fotal 484.43 170.37 0.01 - 654.82

# Considering the availability of data, the above ageing is considered from ihe date of recording the transaction instead of duc date. Consequently, there

are no 'not due’ creditors balance disclosed.

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Cutstanding for'-ﬁ;ll.u_\\:i_ng periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Total
il Unbilled Les:{::l:‘m 1 1.2 Ycars 2-3 Years | More than 3 years o
(i) Trade Payables - others 80.54 140221 093 - 221.70
{ii) Trade Payables - disputed . - - - -
Total 80.54 | 140.22 I A2 L. - 2170

* Figure nuliified in conversion of Rupees in million.

# Considering the availability of data, the above ageing is considered from the date of recording the wansaction instead of due date. Consequently, there

are ao 'not dud’ creditors balance disclosed.

Other financial liabilities

Particulars

Non-Current
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost
Security deposils

Financial liabilities carried at fair value throupgh profit & loss
Consideration payable for business combination (refer note 41{b))
Total non-current other financial liabilities

Current

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings
Creditors for capital poods (refer note below)
Eraployee benefits payable

Other payables

Refund habifity to customers

Financial Habilities carried at fair valuc through profit & loss
Consideration payable for business combination {refer note 41(b}}
Forward contracts

Total current gther {inancial liabilities

Total other financial liabilities

As at

Asat

o Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

0.50 0.50
705.04 -
=== 705""54 _:(.}.?35.:‘.]3
13.17 0.12
80.68 54.35
150.17 118.97
1.02 Q.72
55.38 5614
2,177.20 -
- 9.36
LATT5 7366,
, 3.183,16 23416
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Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Miayeh 31, 20724
(All amounts in Indian rupees rmillion, unless otherwise stated)

Other current Habilities

Particulars As at AS at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract liabiliiics
- Dug to customer {(excess billing over revenue} (refer note 22.2) 1,560.00 941.28
- Advance from customers 12.50 16.27
Statutory dues payable 62.57 39.19
Others 0.25 (.25
Total other current liabilities 1,6353_2 997.19
Reconciliation of contract liability:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 957.55 749.36
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41(a)} 791.25 -
Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at the beginning of the year {791.52) (637.88)
Add: Contract liabilities created during the year 615.22 846.07
Balance at the cnd of the year 1,572.50 I37.58,
Provisions
Partlcu[ars-“ “ R o Asac Asal
Warch 31,2004 . Mpuch 312023,
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 30) 67.38 52.74
Compensated absence 38.60 14.0%
Tetal non-current provisions , _105.98 66,83
Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 30) 1694 14.14
Compensated absence 12.65 7.60
Pravision for indirect taxes 0.38 0.39
Total current provisions 2_9._9‘7 ___:g?,.l.’!"__
Total provisions ., 13898 871—96 .
Inceme tax kiabilities {net)
Particulars As at As at

"[ncome tax liability (net)
Total income tax Habilities (net)

e Mareh 31,2024 Maeeh 31, 2023
23.00

7.58

7.58

e

2300

T T—




Yeedn Clindeal Resenrcli Linsited
Nutes to Consolidated Financinl $tatements for the year ended Mayeh 31, 2024
{A amounts in Indian rupees willion, unless otherwise stated)

21 Tax expensc

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are;

(A) rofit and loss section

Year cnded Year ended
Particulurs March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Current income t2y charge:
Current income lax 9798 192.79
Adjustment of tax relating & earlier years (8.19) (2.93}
Deferred tax
Relating 1o eripinution and reversal of temporary dilferences {33.62) (19.29}
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 36.17 170,57
(B} Other comprehensive income (QCT) section
Particulers Yesr ended Yeur ended
March 31, 2024 Mazch 31, 2023
Deferred tax related to items recogrized In OCI during the year
Net logs on remeagurement of defined benefit plans 1.18 0.62
Deferred tax charged to QCI 1.18 0.62

Recanciliation of tax expense and the aceounting profit maltiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for year ended Maych 31, 2024

e aid March 31, 2023

Particulars Yeur ended Year ended
_ Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax 32.59 594.80
Tax using the Company's damestic tax rale 25.17% 25.107%
Expected fnconie 18X expense us per applicable taxes 8.4 149.71
Adjustments
Nen-deductible expenses 16.22 20.01
Adjustment of tax relaking to earlier years (8.19) 293
Income / {Loss) chargeable at different tax raic 231 -
Chlers {3.29% {2.08)
Tux expense us per consolidated st t of profit and Isss 36.17 170.57
{D} Balance Sheet section
. Asat As at

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income tax assets {net) (Nom Current) 218.02 236,28
Income 12x assits (rew) (Current) 8910 -
Income lax lizbilities (net) (Curront) 23.00 7.58




Veeda Clinical Research Limitted (Torimerly known as "Veeda Chnienl Resenrch V'rivate Liunited™)
MNotes to Conselidated Financial Statemends for the year conded Mared 31, 2824
{AI smounts m Indian mpees million, unless afhervise stafed}

21 Tax expense {conthzued)

(T} Deferred tax

Balance sheat Stat t of Profit and Loss ocCt
Fur the year  Fer the year | For the year  For the year
Parteulars As &t As at ended ended ended ended
March 31, March 31, K
3024 7023 March 31, March 31, March 31, Marel 31,
2024 2013 2024 2023
Deferved tax refates to the fellowing
Difference between deprecisble assets as per books of accounts and 2250 3093 18 (0.45}
wrilten down value for tax purpose
Employee benefits 3412 2229 {10165} 1.21 (1.18} {2.62)
Right of use assels (169.81) {162.4M 7.32 6.4 - -
Lease liabilities 208.24 19717 (il.17) (11.62)y
Restatement of mutual fund {15.60% {9.16) 644 6.26
Provision for doublful loans, reimbursement teceivable and capital 3032 2797 {2.35) (1247 -
advances
Fair value pain on investment {78.06) (78.06} - - -
Fair valuation on properly, plant and equipment and intangibbe assets on (41.75} (66,56} (24.81) (9.34) -
acquisition of subsidiary
Addition on account of acquisitien (refer note 41 ¢ad) (572.56} - - - -
FCTR of deferred {ax on farcign operations 2.55 - - - -
Deferred tax on losses of subsidiary 2214 - {22.14) - - -
Others 4.93 0.49 (4.44) 0.79 - -
Net deferred tax agsets / (Hiabilities) {552.58) {3790 153.62) {19.29) {1.18) {0.62)
Mot deferred tax assets f (linhililies) :
As nt Asut
Particulars Mareh 31, Mnrch 31,
2924 2023
Deferred tax Assels (nel} 122,58 -
Drefirred tax liabililies (net) (675.16) [37.37%
Net deferred fax assets / (lishilities) (552.58) 373N
Reconcilintlon of deferred tax assets £ (lHabilivdes) {net)
’ As at As at
Yarticulers March 3, March 31,
2024 2023
Opening balance as at beginning of the year 313N (5730}
Tax income / {(expeonse) during the year recognized in statement of profit 33.62 19.29
and loss
Tax income f {expense) during the year recogmzed in OC! 118 062
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary {refer note 41 (a)) {572.56} -
FCTR of deferred lax on foreign apemtions 2.53 -
Closing batance 6s at end of the year {552.58) (37.37)
MNote:

‘The Group offsets 1ax assets and Habilities if and only if it s 2 legally enforceable tight fo sct off deferred tax assels and deferred tax iiabilities that relate to sncome taxes
levied by the same tax authorily.




Veeda Clinicsl Researeh Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financinl Statements tor the year ended March 31, 2624
(All amounts in Indian rupees miilion, unless otherwise stated)

22 Reveaue from operations

Particulars Year ended

Yrear ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 3,882.63 4,086.13
Other operating revenue
Export incentives revenue 5.14 9.65
Tetal revenue frem operations _ _3,887.77 4,095.78
22.1 Revenue from contract with customers
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contract with customer
i Geog:‘aphical location of customer
: Year ended Year ended
Particul

_ om0 ) __March 31,2024 ‘March 31,2023
india 1,224.98 LIT1.06
US 427.15 865.63
Crecce 473.00 404.44
Others ] 1,757.50 1,704.98

Total — 388263 408613
.G} Timing of revenue recognition e e N B _ . .

Particulars Year ended Year ended

. _ N o R - ) . March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Services transferred over time 2,960.96 2,961.53
Services transferred at a point in time 92167 1,124.60

Total —_— _3,882.63 4,086.13

22.2 Contract balances

The below table provides informaticn about trade receivabics, contract assets and coutract liabilities from the contracts with customers:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade reccivables (refer note §) {,209.00 1,051.24
Contract Assets (refer note 9)

« Due from customer {accrued revenue) 1,201.55 240.76
Contract Liabilitics (refer note 18)

- Advance from customer 12.50 16.27
- Due to customer {excess billing over revenuc) [,560.00 941,28

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the

number of clinical services at the end of the year.

Trade reccivables arc recognized when the right to consideration becomes uncenditional. These are non interest bearing generally on the
terms of 7-80 days. Group has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. In March 31, 2024: Rs.13.26 Million
{March 31, 2023: Rs. 22.92 million} is recognized as provision (net of reversal) for si gnificant inerease in credit risk and credit impairment

of trade receivables.

Contract liabilities includes short-term advances received for providing clinical services and excess billing to customer based on invoice
raised for which clinical services are yet to be rendered. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group satisfics the

performance obligation.




Veedn Clinical Researeh Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

22 Revenue from operations {continued)

22.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and Laoss with the contracted price

Part; Year ended Year ended
articulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 4,009.70 4,250.87
Adjustments
Rebate payable to customer (4.80) {9.24)
Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation {122.27) (155.50)
Net revernte from contract with customers 3,882.63 4,086.13

22.4 Information about Group's performance obligation are summarized below:
The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satisfied. The Group considers indicators such
as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right
to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer, ctc. For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company has determined that an
output method is appropriate measute of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed or delivered
to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the

225

performance obligation identified in the contract.

Information about major cusfomers:
For mformation abou{ major customers, refer pote 34,

23 Other income

4

Particulars Yeur ended Year ended

. - } — March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on

-Bank deposits 114.64 15.41

-Security deposits 3.67 299

-Income tax refund 2.12 (.88

-Others 2.93 0.01
Net gain on sale of investment it mutual funds 4542 40.13
Liabilities no longer requircd written back 17.06 10.47
Net Gain on foreign currency transactions 3.40 26.41
Net gain on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 0.20 -
Gain on leasc termination 024 7.48
Government Grant income 1.41 0.17
Rent income - 0.70
Gain on fair value of call option . 141
Miscellaneous income 1.04 025

Total 192.13 106.32
Cost of material consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock of consumables 97.56 84.51
Purchascs during the year 388.13 342.92
Add :- addition on account of acquisition of business (refer note 41(a) and 41(b)) 7.58 -
Less: closing stock of consumables {111.29) {97.56)
Tutal _.381.99 329.87




Yeeda Clinical Research Limited
Notes to Consolidatedd Financial Statements for the yeay ended Maich 31, 2024
{All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

25

20

27

Employee benefits expenses

- Year ended

. Year ended
Particul
articutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salary, bonus and allowances [,170.48 1,003.59
Employee stock option expenses (refer note 39) (0.08) 4.80
Contributions to provident and other funds {refer note 30) 54.48 47.9G
Staff welfare expenses .. 35.52 35.33
Tota) 1,264,40 1,091.82
Finance Cousts
- Yeur ended Year ended
Particulays

March 31,2024

March 31, 2623

Interest expense on

-Borrowings 52.69 25.31
~Delayed payment of income tax and other statutory dues 279 8.29
~Lease liabilities {refer notc 35) 80.23 66.32
-Others - 0.02
Exchange differences on borrowings 4.61 33.50
Other charges {processing fees, bank commission) e 5.63 3.38
Total 3 145.95 138.82

Clinical and Analytical research expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024~ March 31, 2023

Screening cxpenses of subjects 77.41 04 83
Subject participation expense 281.42 326.04
Food and refreshment expenses of subjects 29.50 32.62
Investigator Charges 159.23 245.48
Data Management outsource services 11.52 18.35
Bic analytical research expenses 2896 39.07
Project approval charges 64.69 48.87
Phlebotomists, nurses and doctors fees 3589 39.04
Others 50.70 94.85
Total 739.32 939.25




Veeda Clinical Research Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amowmts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

28 Other expenses

Particulars Yeur ended Year ended
iviarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Testing charges 6.48 388
Marketing and business promotion expenses 58.94 5273
Travelling and conveyance expensc 13.43 12.66
Rent expenses (refer note 35) 3.67 0.97
Water, Power and Fuel Charges 133.16 101.64
Lcgal and professional expenses 270.64 95.2¢
Contractor expenscs 103.86 95.84
Insurance expenses 15.05 15.70
Communication expenses 71.25 6.08
Repairs and maintenance
-Buildings 16.83 14.56
-Plant and machinery and lab cquipments 71.33 62.45
~others 3141 30.00
Renewal charges of software and licence 34.0% 16.8%
Rates and taxes 89.19 39.50
Donations 0.29 0.14
Expenditure towards CSR activitics 14.21 9.31
Printing, stationery and cowrier expense 5.31 2574
Bad debts and contract asset written off (net of provision} 4.75 13.99
Loss on disposal of property, plant and cquipment 4.16 045
IPO expenses 2.76 10.03
Provision for doubtful debts 13.26 2292
E.oss on fair value of call option 2.67 -
Technology Transfer & Advisory Scrvices 11.92 -
Loss on sale of assets 14.30 -
Provision for non moving & slow moving inventory 6.50 26.48
Property, plant and cquipment and capital work in progress written off 16.08 14.45
Other receivables written off 0.15 0.79
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract - 9.36
Miscellaneous expenses 29.99 18.80
Total 982.08 . 790.62
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Vet Clienl Resenrels Limlterd

Nelos fa O Ihidated linancial § nis for the yenr eded darel 31, 2028

{All amoums i Bndian rupees million, unless otherwise suled)

Laraings per shere

Basic EPS are catculated by dividing e profit for the year aurtbutable to cquity holders of the Holding Conspany by the weighted average wanber of Equity sharcs

outstanding during the year,

Difwied EFS amounts are cateulated by dividing the profit attrituiable w cquity halders of ihie Holding Company by the weighted averuge number of Eguity shares owtstzading
during the year plus the weiglted average munber of Equity shares that would be issucd an conversion of all the ditutive potential Equity shares into Fyuity shares.

The following table relects ihe income and camings per share data used it the basic and dituted EPS computation:

Year ended Yeer ended

Particuturs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit / (loss) after tax atbributable te eqoity shereholdors for the year {231 401,158
Nominal vaiue of equity share (Amouat in Rs.) 2 2
Tolal nuinber of equity sharcs 6,29,95.846 5,28.93.986
Weighted average number af cquity shares 57592, 144 5,28,93,986
Effect of diution:
Dilutive elfect of stock options granied under ESOT 1,15.807 122,696
Welghted sverage nomber of shares adjusted for the effect of Silution 5,77,08,951 530,716,582
Earning per equity shure (Amtuct in Rs.}
BDasic eamings per share {004} 756
Diluted ings per sharg {0.04) 7.57
Disclosore for employee henefits
A. Defined contribution plan
Amaunt recogniced as ¢xp and included in note 25 "Employee benehil exponses”

Year ended Year ended

Purticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution to Providea Fund 38 29.76
Cantribulion to Employec staie ingurance 213 . 248
Total 33.76 32,22

B. Defincd benelid plan

The Group has feliowing post employment benefit which is in the natere of defined bonefit plan;

Gratuity

The Group provides for grawity for emptoyees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Emplayees who ere in continous service fira period of 5 years are eligible for

gratuity. The of gratuily pay any ination is the

last drawn basic salary per month compnted prapertionately Tur 15 days salary multiplicd for

the wumber of years of service calculated on actuarial basis, The gealwity plan is o funded plan to the extem bakines avaitable in Gratuity Account maintained wilh bank and Life
Insurence Corporation of Indis. Balance availuble in such accounis es 2l March 31, 2024 is Rs. 25.54 million {March 31, 2023: Re.20.37 million}.

I. Reconelintion of defived benefit obligatt

Farticutary Ag et March 31, 2024 As ot March 3, 2033
Opening delined bonefit abtigation 8726 14.30
Current service cost 1385 11.86
interest cost 2.69 4.68
Compongits of actuarial gaindlosses) an obligntion

- Dute b Change in Bnzngial agsumplions {0.213 {240}

- Due o experence adjustecnls 542 {0.57}
Bene s ppid i.1§ 6.57
Closing defined benefit obligath 109.87 8726




Veedn Clinical Reseneh Limbted
Notes to C dated Fronacial St
(AR amowmts 1 Indian rupees million, wiless ollienvise stated)

Biselosure for employer benefis (continued)

1i. Reconcliiation of the Falr yvalue of Fluan assels

for the yenr endold Mareh 31, 2024

Particulars

Agat March 31, R4

As at Merch 31, 2023

Opening value f plan assels 20.37 12.92
Inlerest income 1.53 0.91

Retum gn phan assets excluding amounts included in intcrest income 0.22 0.50
Contribuiions by employer 3.97 Bi6
Renels paid H.35 2,12y
Clpslng value ef plan essets 25.55 037

ifl. Net linbitiry 7 {Asset} recognized i the Balance Sheet

Partivalurs Ag at March 31, 2024 As st March 31, 2023
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations 109.87 8126
Fair Valug of Plan assels {25.55) (2037}
Net Hability ¢ (Asset) recognized i the Delance Sheet 54.31 66.89
iv. Exp recognized in Stat t of Profit and Loss
Yeor cnded Yeer ended
Particul
areeulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Current service cost 13.85 11.86
et intercat cost 1.16 37
Net Gratuity cost recopnized in the St of Profit and Loss 15.01 1563
v. (her Comprehensive [neome
Year ended Year ¢nded

Particubars

March 31, 2024

March 3, 2023

Actuanial pains / (losses)

= Dhue tg Chonge in Buancial assumptions 0213 {2.40)
= B to experience adjustments 52 {0.59)
Retem gn plan assets, excluding amount recognized in pel merest cxpense e e i (0.23) .50
Comp of defined heaeflt costs recopntzed in other comprehensive income - 4.68 (2.48)

i, The major categories of plen assets a3 & percentage of the folr value of tota! plom nssets

Particulars

As ot March 37, 2024

As ot March 31, 2023

Baik balance {eserow account} 0.31% (.34%
Policy of i 99.6%% Y605
Total 100.00% 100.00%

‘Fhe principal assumptions used In determining gratutty obligations for the Company'a plan are shown below:

Particulars

Ayt March 31, 2024

Ag at March 31, 2023

Diseount rare

Fulure solary increase

7.30% p.a.

10.80% p.a

7.35% p.a.

18.00% p.a.

2000% - 25.00% pa.at 20.00% - 25.00% p.o, at

Employes tuiover younger apes reducing i younger ages ceduging to
0.00% - 10.00% p.a. &t 0.00% - 5.00% p.a. ot older
older ages agos

Mattality rate

Heasitivity analysis for significant {5 a3 under:

Indian Assured Lives
Maortality (2012-14}

Tndian Assured Lives
Wartality {2012-14)

Portleulors

Seaslevity leved

increase f (deerease} in defined benefit obligatlon

Yeur ended Year ended
March 31, 2324 Wlarch J1, 2023
Discount rale ¢.5% increase {2.44) {2.72)]
0.5% deercase 366 ¢
Salary incrense 0.5% increase 354 281
0.5% decrease {3.37} {2.66)
Employes wirmover Change by 10% upward {2.02) {1.56)]
Change by 10% downward 2.28 1.78
The following are e expeeted Mithre benefit payments for 1he defined benefit plan (Undi 1
Partizulars As of Mareh 31, 2024 Ag at March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 menths (pexi annual reporting period) 1819 i0.42
Belween 2 and § yeass 46.05 42,72
Belween 6 and 10 years 41.26 33.13
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Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financia) Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated}

Related party transactions

As per the Indiam Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” (Ind A8 24), the related partics of the company are as follows:
Nante of relzted parties and thelr relationship

Holding Company
Basil Private Limited

Subsidiary Companies

Bioneeds India Private Limiled

Ingenuity Bicsciences Private Limited (Joint venture upte March 31, 2023) {Wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f April I, 2023)
Veeda Chinical Research Ireland Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary w .e.f. December 1, 2023}

Health Data Specialists {Holdings) Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

Step-down Subsidiary Companies

Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited {Wholly owned subsidiury of Bioneeds India Private Limited)

Health Data Specialists Singte Member S.A. (Wholly owned Subsidiary of Health Data Speciatists (Holdings) Limited w.e.f. March 26, 2024}
Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited (Whetly owned subsidiary of liealth Data Specialists {Holdings) Limitcd w.e.f. March 26, 2024}
Health Data Specialists S.1.L. {Wholly owned subsidiary of Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited w.c.£. March 26, 2024)

Heaith Data Specialists USA Fnc. (Wholly owned Subsidiary of Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited w.e.f. March 26, 2024}

Heath Data Specialists Australia Pty Lid. (Whoily owned subsidiary of Health Data Specialists Ircland Limited w.c.f. Merch 26, 2024)

Health Data Specialists B.V. (Wholly Cwned Subsidiary of Health Data Specialists Yreland limiled w.c.{. March 26, 2024)

HeaD$ rescarck GmbH (Wholly owned subsidiary of Health Data Specialists Ireland Limited w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

Heads Research AG (Wholly owned Subsidiary of Health Data Specialisis Ireland Limited w.e.f. March 26, 2024)

Entity with sipnificant influence on the Company
Bondway Investment Tne.

Kcy managerial personnel of the Parent Company

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh {Independent Director)

Mr. Rakesh Bhartia {independent Director)

Mss. Kavita Singh (Independent Director) (Upto December 31, 2023)

Mrs. Jeanne Hecht (Independent Director)

M. Jagannath Samavedam {Nominee Dircctor } (Upto March 31, 2024)

Mr. Apurva Shah (Director)

Mr. Binoy Gardi {Whole Time Dircetor - Vice Chairman) (w c.f. January 3, 2024)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (Managing Dircctor - upto May 8, 2024} (Chiel Executive Officer - w.e.f. May 9, 2024)
ir. Mahesh Bhalgat (Chief Executive officer - from January 3, 2024 upto May 8, 2024) {Managing Director - w.e.f. May 9, 2024}
Mr. Vivek Chhackhi (Mominee Director)

Mr. Manu Sahni (Nominee Dircetor) (Upto January 15, 2024)

Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja (Nominee Director} (Upto September 18, 2023)

Mr. Chirag Sachdev (Nominee Director w.e.f. September 26, 2023)

Mr. Kiran Marthak (Director)

Mr. 8. N. Vinaya Babu {Director)

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Tanushree Agarwal (Nominee Director w.e.f. May 9, 2024}

Mr. loannis Orfanidis (Nominee Direstor w.e.f. July 26, 2024}

Relatives of key managerial personnel
Mr. NagarajaM S
Mis. Soumya HN

Entity over which key managerial personnel or thelr relatives are able to exercise significant influence
Tumker Trade Center Private Limiled

Adita Biosys Private Limited

Maedvice Private Limited

Peenya Food and Drug Testing Lab Private Limited
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Related party transactions (continued)

. ) . Year ended Year ended

Nature of transactions with related parties Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Holding Company
Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable from sclling sharcholder i.18 0.68
Lutity with sipnificant influence on the Group
Bondway Investment Inc.
Reimbursement receivable from sclling shareholder 2.16 1.24
Wholly owned subsidiary {w.e.f. April I, 2023) (Joint Venture Upto Mareh 31,
2023)
Ingennity Bicsciences Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses incurmed - 0.01
Liability of employee stock options transferred to the company - 0.02
Rent income - 070
Sale of servige - 240
Purchase of service - 4,02
Loan given - 12.00
Interest incomic on delayed payment towards MSME dues - 0.02
Loan writien off 34.00
Entity over which key managerial personnel or thelr relatives ave able o
exercise significant influence
Adita Biosys Private Limited
Purcliase of consumables 13.48 24.28
Tumkur Trade Center Private Limited
Rent paid 419 18.18
Sccurily deposit given 2590 -
Key manaperial Personnel
Remuneration {including perquisites)
Mr. Ajay Tandon 15.00 15.00
Mr. Malcsh Bhalgat 13.62 -
Security deposit given {rent)
Mr. SN. Vinaya Babu - 7.84
Acquisitien of additienal stalie in Subsidiary Company
Mr. 8.N. Vinays Babu 23500 350.00
Professtonal fees paid to non-execufive director
Mr. Kiran Madhak 3.60 3.60
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh 2.60 2.10
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia 2.63 230
Mrs. Kavita Singh .13 .50
Mrs. Jeanne Hecht 332 122
Salary (including perquisites)
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 15.10 13.49
Mr. S.N. Vinayz Babu 2593 2593
Rent - Expense
Mr. Apurva Shah 1.20 0.60
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 6.48 10.19
Mrs. Sournya HN 4.76 9.26




31

Veeda Clinieal Reseavch Limited
Notes to Consolidated Floancial Statements for the year ended Marel 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, untess otherwise stated)

Related party transactions {continucd)

Nature of transactions with related partics

Year ended
March 31, 20624

Y car ended
March 31,2023

Reimbursenient of expenses

Mr. Ajay Tandon

Mr. Kiran Marthak

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia

Mr. Mahesh Bhalgat

Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu

ESOP Expenses

Mr. Ajay Tandon {Refer note 4 below)
Mr. Kiran Marthak

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia

027
0.17
0.24
0.62
0.04

(3.86)
0.13
0.63

1.34
012
0.24

027
2.79

024
0.48

Outstanding balances at the end of the year

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Iolding compan
Basil Private 1 imited

Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder

Entity with significant inflnence on the Group
Bondway Investment Inc,
Reimbursement receivabic Trom selling sharcholder

Key managerial personnel

Remuneration payable (including perguisites)

Mr. Ajay Tandon

Mz, dahesh Bbalgat

Professional fees payable/f{recefvable) to nor-execufive director
Mr. Kiran Marthak

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh

Mr. Rakesh Bhartia

Mrs. Jeanne Hecht

Salary payable (including perquisites)

Mr. Nirmal f3hatia

Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu

Security deposit given (rent)

Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu

Reimbursement of expenses payable f (receivable)
Mr. Ajay Tandon

Mr. Kiran Marthak

Mr. Mahcsh Bhalgat

Trade payables {rent payable)

Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu

Relatives of key managerial personnel
Trade payables (rent payable)

Mrs. Soumya IT N
Security deposit (rent)
Mrs. Soumya II N

Entity over which key managerial persenngl or their relatives are able to

exercise sipnificant influence
Security deposit

Tomkur Trade Center Private Limited
Rent payable

o Fosikur.Trade Center Private Limited
Zi{ade Dy
Al

N
ita 'Bib‘s,y{pn\\alc Limited
NS

'

11.84

21.67

1.08
7.98

0.27
0.20
0.19
0.83

0.9%
1.34

0.03)
0.02)
©.18)

43133
4.46

L 062

10.66

19.51

1.04

0.07
0.14

0.91
1.32
7.84

(0.02)

0.84

4.00

17.50
1.66

1.82
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31 Related party transactions (continued)
The following are the details of the transactions eliminated during year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023;

\ . . ¥ ear ended Year ended
MNature of transactions with related parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bioneeds India Private Limited h
Investment in cquity shares - 100.00
Sale of consurnables - 0.28
MSME interest income - 0.02
Loan written off - 8.34
Reni Deposit 12,10 -
Rent Expense 581 -
Power and Fuel Reimbursement 1.45 -
Purchase of consumables 0.34 -
Reimbursement of expenscs incurred 003 -
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited
Security deposits writen off - 0.02
Loan written back - 8.34
Loan given by Dioneeds india Private Limited 0.20 0.20
Interest incorme on loan given 0.03 -
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Liability of vraployee stock options transferred to the company 007 -
Rent income 0.30 -
Sale of service 0.91 .
Loan given 25.50 -
Repayment of loan given 13,50 -
Loan written off 16.00 -
Veeda Clinical Rescarch Ireland Limjted
Guar'mtcc Commzssmn rcccwablc 246 o
The following are the details of the balances climinated durmg the year ct:dcd March 31, 2024 and March 31 2023:
Year ended Year ended
QOutstanding balances at the end of the year March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bionceds India Private Limited
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Prelerence Shares (OCRPS) 233.30 233.30
Trade Pavable 1.48 -
Trade Reccivable 372 -
Rent Deposit Reccivable 12.10 -
Contracl Habiliiy 313 -
Veeda Clinical Research Ireland Limited
Guarantce Comntission receivable 2.40 -
Ingenuity Blosciences Private Limited
Trade Payabic .80 1.75
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited
Loan given by Bioneeds ndia Private Limited 0.23 -

Terms and eonditions ¢f transactions with related parties

(1) The group’s transactions with related patties are at arm’s length. Management believes that the Parent Compeny’s domestic and international
transactions with related partics post March 31, 2023 conlinue to be at anm’s length and that the transfer pricing legistation will not have any impact on the
financial staternents particalarly on the amount of the tax expense for the year and the amount of the provision for taxation at the year end.

(2) The future liability for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on aggregated basis for all the employecs of the group takea s a wholc, the amount
pertuining to key managerial personnel is not ascertainable separately and therefore not included above.

(3} Loan to wholly owned subsidiary (w.c.f. Aprii 1, 2023) in which the company was a venturer (upto March 31, 2023):

The loan granted to Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited is intended to fund its working capita) sequisements. The loan is unsecurcd and is repayebie at the
end of 2 yoars from the date of agreement. [lowever, the loan may be repaid carlier at any time by the borower. Loan carries interost rate of 8.00% p.a.
(PY. 6.00% p.a.) compounded annually. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it was granted.

{4) The company has granted options to Mr. Ajay Tandon under round 3 and 4. There is reversal of oplion expenses amounting to Rs.2.81 million for round
3 and Rs. 1.05 million for round 4 due to adjustment of options lapsed during the year.

with related party
ot provided any commitment Lo refated party as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).
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Centingent liabilities not provided for

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:
{1} Income tax * 106.95 109.47
(i) Service tax ** 76.24 23771
(1} Goods and service tax *** 463.74 -
{iv} Customs # 475 4.75
(v) Corporate Guarantee given to lenders against credit facilities availed by

o 4,546.98 -
wholly owned subsidiary
(vi} Corporaie Guarantee given to the selling shareholders of Health Data 6.053.6] )
Specialists (Holdings) Limited towards valuation upliftment e

* Income fax demand comprises demand from the Indian tax authoritics for payment of additional tax, inlerest and fee of Rs 106.95 million {March 31,
2023; Rs 109.47 million} upon completion of iheir tax review for (he assessment year 2009-10 to 2017-18. The tax demands are mainly on account of
disallowances relating to transfer pricing rmatters, depreciation on soflware, interest charged on loan advanced, capital expenditure charged to revenue, elc.
claimed by the company under the Income tax Act. The matter is pending before various authorities. The said demand amounts have been already adjusted
against refund of various years by Income Tax depariment and hence net demand is nif in respect of such perioad.

#* Service tax dermands comprise demand from the Service tax aushorilies for payment of additional tax of Rs. 76.24 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 237.71
willion), upon completion of their {ax review for the finuncial year 2008-09 to 2017-18. The tax demands are on account denial of delermination of placc of
supply for export of service under Rule 4 of Place of Provision of Services Rules, 2012 read with rule 6A of Service Tax Rules, 1994, reversal of CENVAT
credit under Rule 6(3) and 6{5), short payment of tax und liability on account of point of taxation rules, etc. The matter is pending before various authorities.

o Gonds and service tax demands comprise demand from the GST authoritics for payment of additionsl tax of Rs 463.74 miflion {March 31, 2023: ail),
upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2617-18 10 2021-22. The tax demands are on account of Difference in ITC as per GSTR-1IB vis a
vis [TC as per GSTR-2A, late returns filing, advance received from customers, under declaration of output tax as per GSTR-9, excess claim of ITC ete.

GST demand also comprises of demand from the GST Department for payment of additional tax of Rs. 349.98 million (March 31, 2023 Rs.Nil). The tax
demands are on account denial of cxport of service under Section 13(3) of 1GST Act, 2017 during the period between April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2023,
The matters are pending before various authorities.

# Custom duly demand comprises demand from CBEC for payment of additional tax of Rs 4.75 miliion (March 31, 2023: Rs 4.75 million}, upon
completion of their tax review for the financial year 2011-12 10 2016-17. The demand is on account denial of custom duty exemption benefit claimed under
the Notification 12/2012 dated March 17, 2012. The matier is pending before various authorities.

The Group is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process.
No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the uitimate cutcomc of this
proceeding will nol have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position and results of operations.

Other claims not acknowledged as debt

Claim by a party arising out of a commcrcial contract: Rs. 1,018.84 mitlion (March 31, 2623: Rs. 1,018.84 million). The Holding Company has nol
acknowledged this claim. As advised by the external legal counscl, the claim is not legally tenable. Moreover, the Holding Company is adequately insured
and the matter is intimaled to insurance company as well The Holding Company has filed detailed responsc to the claim lodged. The matier is pending at
comnnercial court, Ahmedabad. In view of these, the Holding Company does not foresee any losses on this count and ascordingly no provision is made in
books of accounts.

Capital commifment

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracis remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for (net of advances) 102.44 262.3%
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Segment reporting

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of Clintcal Rescarch and pre-clinical research for various Pharmacenticals Companies. The
Group's business falls within business segment of *Clinical Research' and *Pre-clinical Research’ and all the activities of the Group revolve
around this main business. The Chief Operating decision maker (CODM) moenitors the operating resulis of the business as 2 whotle for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, management views Group's business
aclivity as a singic scgment and there are no separale reportable segments in terms of the requirements of ind AS 108 "Cperating

Segments” as notified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013.

Geographical segment

For management purposes, the Group is organized into two major operating geographies India and outside Indiz. More then 25% of the
Group's business is from India. The segiment revenue is disclosed based on geographical location of customers in the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Revenue from external customers

Yoenr ended March 31,

Year ended Marcl 31,

2024 2(}_2_3
India 1,224.98 1,111.06
us 42715 £65.63
(reece 473.00 . 40444
Others 1,789.80] . 1,70498)

The following is an analysis of the camying amount of nen-current assets, which do not include deferred tax assefs, income fax assets and

financial asscts analyzed by the geographical area in which the asscts are located:

Carrying smount of nen-current operating assets

As at March 31, 2024

As at Mareh 31, 2023

India

14,270.96

3,745.62

Ouiside India

Informatien abeut major customers:

The Group has assessed that there are no extemal customers from which the revenue from wansactions is 10% or more of the Campany's

fotal revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
Leases

Group as & Lessee:

The Group has operating lease {or various premises which are renewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at its optien. The leage terms
of premises are between 3 to 12 years. The Group has availed the exemption of low value of assets, Lease payments evaluated by the
Group are fixed payments in nattre with Group not exercising any fermination or renewal options to terminate or extend the original iease
term. Useful life of right of use asset for computation of amortization expense on right of use assets is assumed to be the term of the lease
and muthod used is Straight-fine methed.

The Group has taken cerlain premises on lease wherein lease rent is of low value amounting to Rs. 3.67 miltion for the year cnded March
31, 2024 (Year ended March 31, 2023: Rs. (.97 million). The company applies low value lease rent exemption for these leases.

The carrying vatue of right of use znd depreciation charged during the year

Particolars As at As at
 March 31, 2024 o March 31,2023

Land end Office Premises

Opening balance 520.82 408.4%
Additions during the year 202.83 279.50
Termination ducing the year (net of accumulated depreciation on termination) - {55.92)
Depreciaticn charged during the ycar {refer note 3) {115.63) (111.25)
Closing balance 698.02 520.82
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1,204

Leases {continued}

The movement in lease labilities during the year

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Opening balance 645.64 515.86
Additions during the year 279.04 270.33
Termination during the year - {62.83)
Payment of lease liabilities (including intercst on lease liabilities) {177.09) {14404}
Inlerest expenscs (refer note 26} 80.23 66,32
Closing balance 827.81 645.64
Balances of Jease liabilities
Particulers As at As at
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2823
Current lease liabilities 83.24 10§.06
Non-current leasc liabilities 744,57 544,57
Tetal 827.81 645.64
Amount recognized n the Statement of profit und loss during the year
Particulars -‘ As at As at ’]
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Drepreciation cxpensc on right of use assel {refes note b - - ' T Tis63 - m_S.
Tnterest expense on lease liabilities {refcr note 26) 80.23 66.32
Expenses relating to low value leases (included in other exponsc) {refor note 28) .67 0.97
Gain on lease termination {refer note 23} e e et (.24 e {148
LTotel o e m mmm e e e o weasl L o TLO3)
Muturity analysis of lease Hsbilities
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 3024

March 31,2023

Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounied cash flows

Less than one year §3.24 101.06
One to five years 342.86 315.02
More than five ycars 401.71 229.56
Tatsl — U 827.81 645.64
Amount recognized 1o cash flow Statement
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 3, 2023

Fayment of principal poriion of lease Tiabilitics 96.86 T2
Payment of intcrest on lease liabilities §0.23 66.32
Total 177.0% 144.04
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Financta] instrument - Falr value hlerarchy o ) _
The material accounting policies, including the criteria tor recognmon, lite basis of measurement and Hie basis on which income and expenscs are

recognized, in respect of cach chass of Mnancial sssct, financial liability and equily instrument are disclosed in note 2 1o the cunsolidaied financial
statements.

Fair values
A. Catepory-wise classification of financial Instruoment
The carvying vaiuc of fimancial instrurmenis by categories as al March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

As at As at
Farticulars Notes March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Financial assets:
At amortized cost
Loans (non-current} 3 - -
Trade reccivables b 1,209.00 1,051.24
Cash and cash cquivalcnis 6 938.36 36R.71
Cther bank balance ki 38974 244.00
Other financial assets (current} 9 1,572.84 453.03
Other financial asscts (nou-current) 9 187.39 382.87
Sub-totat 4,297.49 2,499.95
Fair value through profit and loss
Call option on non-controling interest of subsidiary company 9 30.63 40.58
fnvestments 4 792.27 546.87
Forward contracis 2 0.62 -
Sub-total $23.5% 587,75
Total §,121.01 3,087.70
Finsncial Habilities
At smortized cost
Romowings 15 261685 A85.74
Trade payables 16 654,82 221,70
Leasc liabilitics 35 827.81 £45.64
Clher fimancial linbilities fcument) 17 300.42 224.30
Other figancial liabilitics {(non-current) 17 0.5¢ 0.50
Sub-total 4,400.40 1,577.88 |
At fair value throuph prefit & loss
Contingent consideration payable {non-curreat) 17 705.04 -
Contingent consideration payable {currcnt) 17 2,177.20 -
Forward confracts 17 - 9.36
Sub-total 7.882.24 9.36
Total T,282.04 1,587.213

The management asscssed that carrying valucs of financial assets i.c., cash and cash cquivalents, trade payables, trade reccivables, current investments and
other financial assets and Habilitics as at March 31, 2024 and March 11, 2023 arc reasonable approximations of their fhir values largely due to the short-
rerm maturitics of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and Liabilities is inchuded at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing partics other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

Tajr value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hicrarchy for delormining andfor disclosing the fair value of Financial mstraments by valuation techniques:

(i) Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical Asscls or Liabilitics.

(i} Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level ) that are observabic for the Asscts or Liabilitics, either directly (i.c., s prices} or
indircctly (i.c., derived from prices).

(iii) Level 3. inputs for the Assets or Liabilitics that are not based on observable narket data (unobservable inputs).
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16 Tinancial Instrument - Fair valoe hierarchy {coniinued)

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement erarchy :

Falr Value
Particulars As at As at l’]‘s;ll;::ﬂne b iif:ﬁgfﬂl?: ut
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 ! Y observaie p
Tavestment in muiual fands al Fair value through profitand logs {roler NAY Statement
aote 4.2) 792217 54687 Level-1 provided by fund
' manager
. - s Third party
F t
g}all option on non-controliing inleres of subsidiary company {refer note 30.63 40.48 Level-3 independent
valualion report
Mark to market Tiability on forward contracls {refer note 17} - v.36 Level-2 MTM St:::;“cm by
Mark to rarket asset on forward contracts (refer note 93 .62 Level-2 MTM S;z‘:!? ent by
Thivd party
Conmiingent consideration payable (refer note 17) 2,882.24 - Level-3 independent

valuation report

Financlal instrument measured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amorl
their Tair values since the Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values 1

received or scitled.

TReconciliation of level 1 fadr values

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balanee to the closing balanees fo

liguid mutual funds.

iecd cost in the financial staloments are 2 reasonable approxination of
hat would cventually be

¢ Yovel 1 fair vaiues representing hivestment in short teri

Particulars Asat As
Marck 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Openiig balance 546 87 $83.98
Net gain on mvestment in mutual funds 45.42 40.13
Purchases 395.98 3800
Sales 200.00 41524
Closing balance 22T 546.87
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Finangial risk monpageaent ehjectives nnd policles

The Group's principal inancisl liabilities camprise loans and borrowings, trade end other paysbles. The main pumpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Gravp's operations. The Group's
peincipal finencial assets inplude trade and other coesivables and cash zad eash equivatents that derive dirgatly from its operstions.

e Group is exposed to markel risk, eredit nisk and kiquidity risk. The Group's senior IRanagement pversees the management of these Tisks and ensures that financial risk sctivities are govemned by
approprivte policies and procedures and that fal risks aee identified d and 1 in accord with the Group's policies and risk objectives.

{n) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Fair velue of future cash flows of 4 financial instrument will ] ie b of changes in market prices. Markel risk comprises two types of risk: interest cate risk and
y rigk. Finangiat i alfected by muarket risk include borrowings, Teceivables, payables and deposis.
The seasitivily analysis in the following scutions relate Lo the position as at March X1, 2024 and March 31, 2023, Thie sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that he amount of ret debt
and the proponion of fnancial i in forcign ¢ ies are all ‘The analysi judes the impact of movements in market variadles on e carrying values of gratuity and other post
i obligations and provisi
The sensitivity of e relevant peofit or loss item is the effect of the 4 changes in rospective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial lizbilities held at March 31, 2024

and March 31, 2023,

Exposurs to interest rate risk

Group's inicrest rate risk arises fram bomowings obligations. Borrawings issued expose to fair value interest rate risk. ‘The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-braring Fizancial Instroments a3
reported to the management of the Graup is as follows.

Yarioble-rate instraiments Ay st ;::;:ch 31 Ag st Merch 31, 2023
Mon-current BOTOWINES 239978 2592
Current barrowings 2i7.07 226.62

Interest rate sensitivity:
A reasonatly possible change of 100 basis poiats in interest rates ot the reporting date would have increased HKdecrensed) equily and prolit of loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all ather variables, in particular forcign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Prefit or foss} Foquity, net of tax
Particutars
140 bp tnerense 104 bp deerease 100 by Incrapse 100 hp decreuse
W¥arcl 31, 3034
Non-current bomowings (24.00) 2400 (17.96) 1796
Current borrowings (2.17) 217 (1.6 162
Totat ) (26.17T) 1617 (19.58) 19.58
March 31, 2023
Nog-guerent borrowings {2.59) .59 {1.94} 194
Currenl borrowings — (2.27 227 {1.70} 1.70
o I “Fotal {4.96} 486 {3.64) 3.64
Forcign currency rish
Forcign currency nisk is the risk that the fuir value or future cash Nows of an exposure will f 1 of changes in foreign exchange rotes. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
Fareign ¢xchange rates majorky relates 1o the Group's operating activities & inated in United States Dollar (USD), Euro {EUR), British Pound Sterling (GHP) and Canadian Lollar {CAD).
The following table scts forth ink ion relating to wahedged foreipn y exposure s at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 22%
(i) Foreign currency recgiva bles:
As gt March 31, 2424 Ag ot March 31, 1033
Particulars
In Foreign currency Ampunt in forelgn currency Amaunt
Tradg receivalles:
-UsD 41,79.384 19847 58,015,547 47814
-EUR 2559978 23056 30,61 057 21429
- GRP 1,494,622 1521 586 0.06
-CAD 12999 202 21993 170
Otler rocelvahle:
-EURQ 26612 2,40 - -
il cyyjvalents ;
Natances with Banhs:
- On cugment Accounits
usp 534,421 4456 1249677 165274
EUR 482,111 43.50 390,537 15.00
GOP 1,214 319 1,821 ni9
Casly on hand
usp 5.5 .46 986 0.08
EUR 2488 §.22 3307 030
Ghp 266 0903 £6 0.0
CAb 289 002 289 .02
CHF 8 * . -
AED 276 091 - -
YUAN 4,236 003 - -
Tatol 741.22 492.43

* Figute nullificd in conversion of Rupees in millien,
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{11} Forcign curcency payobles:

As nt Nuorch 31, 2024 As af March 31, 1023
Parlicuiars
In forelga eurrency Amsunt Ta farcign curcency Armpunt

Trade paysbiss:

-0sD 17100 1.43 46,370 381
-EUR 22,350 .02 40,063 3.59
Borpowings:

-UsD 26,253,141 213,70 42,05,328 345,75
Interest aceryed hut nol due:

-LsD 1.57434 13.13 - -
Capital crediturs;

-Ush 560,132 46.70 3.30.678 43.63
Conlingent ponsideration payahh

-EUR 31947558 2.882.24 . -
Refuyml linhility lo cushomiy;

- 8D 252,006 2101 2,802 23.04
- EUR 3,608,988 332¢ 300,745 26,95

Total 3,116,852 446,78

Foreign currency sensitivily
The following tables demonsieste the sensitivity to & reasonably possible change in USD, Fura, SBP snd CAL exchange rates, with ell other variables held constant, The impact on the Group's profit
before tnx is due bo changes in vhe Fair value of manetary assets and liabitities.

Parlicylars Profil or (Joss) Equity, net af tax

Effect in 1 Strenpthening Weakening Strengtheatng Wenkeninp
Msrehr 31, Hi2d

5% Wlovement

Usn .13 {7.12}) 5.3} (533
EUR (132.02) 132.02 {98.80) 9850
GRP .93 (0.93) 069 {0693
CAD 6.10 {0.10} 0.08 (0.08}
Marcl 31, 2623

5% Maovement

Us §.24 (8.24} G146 (6163
EUR 13.95 {1395 ifdq (10,44}
Gope .01 0o .61 {00
CAD 0.0% {0.0% 0.06 {0.06}
* Figure nuttificd in conversion of Rupees in mithion.

Derivatives
The Group is exposed 10 connin risks relating 1 its ungding b eperations. The primary dsks d using derivative instr are forcign cumeney risk,

The derivalives are taken to cover foreign exciange risk ol highly probable furecasted sales ransactions oecuring in forcign currencies and foreign cumency receivables.

Dierivetves nat designated as hedping instruments

“The Growp wses forcign exchangs forward to ge some of ils fransaclion exposuces. The foreign exchange forward contracls are not dusignated as cash (tow hedges and arc entered inlo
fur periods consisient with loreign cutrency exposure of the vaderlying tens, g Iy within 12 h
o] ding derivatives i arg 25 fotlows:
Maturity
Particulers
T.cus than 1 monik I 1o 3 months 3 to 6 months § to & months 9 to [2 montha Total
As et March 31,2024

¥oreign exchenge forward contracts (highly probable;
forecast sales)

Molional sroupt 54,08 - - - - $4.08
[Averape forward rate [RsSUSDY 23,54 . - . N

HNotions! 30.68. - - - - 33,68
Averape forward rane (Rs/BURCY 9116 - - - -

As ot Mareh 31, 2633

Forelge exclange forward contracts (highly probable
forecost sales)

Motionsl 53.57 99.91 147.46 B5.64 - 369.78
Average forward rate {Rs/USD) 83.61 8150 8141 83.63 -
|Hotional 373 68.34 91.64 58.2% - 26211

Average forwan rate (Re JEUROY LEE]| £4.09 86,31 #93.95 -
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kL]

Tt impact of the hedping instruments on the balance sheet ds, as follows:

Particulors 1 Notieaal nimoune 1 Currying amaunt i Line ttem iy the balance sheet
Az of March 31, 2024
Foreign eachange forward conirncts (highly probable ferecast sales) l 8475 l {0. 62)[M3'k t.o.r?f::f:}: nafl:{:i::;:ée\ssc:) on forward contracts under ourrent
As at Mearch 31, 2023 - .
Forcign exchange forward ¢ ghighiy probabls forecast salus) ' 65189 l 9.36 |::::;iIT?;;:&E“?:K;’;;?“”') on forward contracts under current

(B) Credit risic
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will oot meet s obligations uader a financhl instrinent of custamer contract, teading to & financial loss, The Group is exposed to eredit rigk fram its operling
activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and [ ial forcign exch tr and other i wati

Trade Receivahles

Trade Reccivables of the Gronp are unsecured. Credit risk is managed through periodic monitoring of the creditworthiness of customers in the normal course of business. The aliowance for
impairment of Trade receivables i5 created to the extent and 45 and when required, based upon the expecied collectability of accounis recivables. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with
respech to trude reeceivables as low, as its Customers are group of repute,

The maximum exposune to credit risk as at year end for trade ceceivable by geographic region are as Follows:

Particulars As ut Msrch 31, 2024 fAs ot March 31, 2023

Domestic 31329 373.05

Other regions 932,20 754,19

Tatel 1,256, 14 1,127.24

Age of trade receivables {Gross)

Partlevlars As#t March 31, 2024 | As ot Merch 31, 2023

Not due 605.52 #0815

L.£ss than & months 49259 40%.51

6 monihs - | yoae 13387 5140

1-2 years H 646 3875

2.3 years 13.12 5

Maore than 3 years 17.14 14.32

Total 1,296.10 LI

Fiirnctal insiruments ond cosh deposits

Credit risk [Fom balances with barks and Ninancial i [ ged by the Group's treasury department in accordanee with the Group™s palicy. Investinenis of surplus funds are made only with

approved counterparties ond within credit tinits assigned o each counterparty, Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and sy be updated
thrgughout Lhe year subject to approval of du: seaior management, The limits ace sex to minimize the concemeation of risks and theeefoee witigete Fnantial Toss through counterparty™s potential filure
10 Mk payments,

(e} Liquidhy visk
Liguidiy risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to mecl its present and future cash and coliateral obligations without incurring unacceprable losses, The Group's objective is to, a1 all times

waintain optinum levels of liquidity 1w mect s cosh and collateral requiremenis. The Group clesely manitors its liguidity position and deploys a robust cash system. it
adequate squrces of financing through variows shorl term and long term lomns at an optimized cos1.

Tha tabla below summarizes the matarity profife of the Group's financial liabilities as at Merch 31, 2024 snd =5 at March 31,2023

Particulsrs On demand Less thae [ year 1 year to 5 years More than % years Total

Az at March 31, 2024

Borowings 116.93 306,29 105460 - 347782
Tride payables 654 432 - - 654.82
Lease liabiinies - 8324 34286 4H. 7 g27.81
Orther ial liabilities - 2477.62 T05.04 0.50 1.181.16
Total 11693 152197 4.102.48 40221 814162
As at March 31, 2623

Borrowings W 105.25 134.52 ] 1 - 51105
Trade payables - 22070 - - 270
Lcase liabilites - 101.06 315,02 229.56 645,63
Other Ginancial liabilitics - 233.66 - 0.50 234.16
Total 105.25 690,94 586.30 230,486 [,612.5%

# includes committed interest payment on borowings.

Capltal mensgement
The Group zims to manages iis capital efficiently so as 1o safeguard s abilily t continue a5 a going concers and 1o aplisdze retems 1o the sharchalders,

The capital structure of the Growp is based on management's judgernent of tie appropriate balance of key elements in geder o meet its sirategic and day-lo-doy needs. We consider the amount of
capilal in proporion W risk and manzge e capiial sinctere in light of changes in economic cunditions ewd the risk cheracteristios of the underlying assets, In order to mainiain ar adjust the capital
structure, the gronp riny adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, rerurn capitel to shareholders or itsee new shares.

Tie Group's policy is o malalain 2 stable and strong capital struciuce with a focus on Fotal equity 50 as o mpinoin investor, creditors 2nd 10 sustain funire development and growth of its Business.
The Group will ke appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if recessary adjust, its capital structure,

Mo cianges were made in the obisetives, policies o | far £ing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
Farticulnrs At ot March 31, 2024 | Ax at Merch 31, 2023
Debl {refer betow note} 344463 1,131.37
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 03856 168.71
Net debt 2,506.07 762.66
Equity shate captial 125.99 10578
Gther cguity 10,4330 446582
Total couiry 10,598.69 4,57 L.60
Net debt ke squity rolin 21.64% 16.68%

ings, shont-term borrawings {excluding financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration) and lease linbilities,
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Employee stock option plans

Under ESOP 2019, the board of directors of Holding Company is authorized to grant aptivns exercisable inte subscription of shares of the Holding Company. Each option shall be convertible
into one equity share and the aggrepate nunmiber of options subscribed tite shares shail not exceed 3% of the paid-up capial of the Holding Company. The optivns granted under ESOP 2019 will
be exercisable at an exercise price of Bs. 17749 per share for round § ko 3 and Ry, 213.70 per share for round 4 and [s. 367 .22 per share for round 5 & round 6. [f the options expire or become
uaexercisabie without having been exercised in full, the unexercised options, which were subject theruto, shall become available for fulvre grnt,

The fair value of the share options is estimated al the grant date using Black-Scholes model, izking into account the terms and conditions apon which the share options were pranted. However,
the zbove performance condition is oRly considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

The contraciual term of each eption granted is varying rom §5 months o 181 mombs. There are no cash settlement aliemnatives. The Holding Company does not have a past practice of cash

sedtlement for these share options. The Folding Company accouits for the Veeda Employee Stock Oplios Plar 2019 {VESP) ay an eouity-settled plan.

The expense recognized for erployee services received during the year is showa in the fellowing labie:

Partleutars Yesr ended Year ended
March 3, 2424 March 31, 2023
Expensci{Income) arising from couity-seitled share-based paymenl lransactions {008} 4.80
Tots! expense/{income) erising fror share-based payment fransactions (0.08) 4.80
There were po cancellations or medifications to the awards during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 21, 2023,
Movements during the year
The following table iRustraies the number and weighted average prices (WAEP} of, and moverents in, share options during the year.
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Farticulars I wary {Hs.) 367.22 WAED (1ts.) 17740 WAEP (Rs) 213N WAEP (lis.} 177.40 WAEF (Hs.) 213.70
Mumber of E3OF Nwunber of ESOP Mumber of ESOP Nupbier of ESOP MNumber of ESOP
Ouisianding at the beginning of the year - 1,56,060 533810 811,680 6.80,160
Granted during the year 1,06,207 - - - -
Forfeited during the year 10,893 1,24 058 10,140 55620 1,416,250
Exercised during tie year - - - - -
Expired during e year - - - - -
Oulstanding at the cad of the year 43,314.00 £,32,010 4,637 1,56,060 533910
Exercisable at the end of the year 11,57490 5,850,380 335,820 5,949,040 2,66,160
TFhe following tables st the inpuis to the models nsed for the year ended March 31, 2024 rnd March 31, 2023 :
Barticulnrs WAEP (Its.} 177.40 WAEP (Rs) 21370 WAEP {Rs.} 367.22 WAEP (lis.) 367.23
Round1-3 Round-4 Round-5 Round-fi
Dividend yield (%) - - - -
Expeoted volalilivy (%} 22326 2114 13.38 1338
Risk-free interest rate (34) 5482 632 708 708
Expected life of share oplions {years} 575 6.50 176 401
Weighted average Fair values at the incasureiment date 30.97 493 77.57 §2.52
Weighted average share price {Rs.} 184.47 20132 36722 361.22
Iefpgdel used RBlack-Scholes Hack-Schioies Black-Scholes Black-Schol

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the hisiorical volatility over a period similar to the fife of the opticas is indicative of future trends, which may nat necessanly be the sotual
outemne.
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Interest in joint venture (subsidiary w.e.f April 81, 2023)

The Group had a 50% shareholding in Tngenuity Bioscicnces Private Limited, a joint venture invalved in the busincss of clinical research for various
pharmaccuticals companics. The Group's interest in Ingenuity Bioscicnces Private Limiled was accounted for using the equity method in this
Consolidated Financial Statement. The holding company based on termination of Joint venture agreement with the erstwhile joint venture partner dated
April 01, 2023 agreed o acquire the balance 50% stake from the erstwhile joint venture pariner and consequently bas grined the control over Ingenuity
Biosciences Private Limited with elfect from April 61, 2023. Summarized financial information of the joint venture, based on its ind AS financial
stalemenls, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial stalement is sef out below

Sunnnarized balance sheet as at March 31, 20624 and March 31, 2023;

Conipany’s net earrying amount of the investmentd

# Considering the above exceeds value of investment, i is disclosed as Nil.

Sunmarized statement of profit and loss for the year ended Marel 31, 2024 and March 31,2023

Particulars As at As af

March M, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non current assets (A) - 16.77
Current assets {B) - 45.83
Total Assets (A+B) . 62.60
Non-current liabilitics {(C) - .40
Current liabilities (D) - 54.91
Total liabilitics {(C+D) - 51.31
Tatal Equity - 11.29
Contingent liabilities - v
Cepitel Commitvent . _ - __ ol e
Company's share fn total equity: 50% ' ’ ' ; ' - 5.64
Goodwwill - -
Company's Gross earrying amount of the investment - 5.64
Less: impairment provision for carrying amount of investment - {5.64)

Year ended March

Year ended March

Particulars 31,2024 31,2023

Revenue from contracts with custorners - 30.60
Other income - 40.24
Total income - 70.84
Cost of raw material consumed B 5.34
Employee benefit expense - 11.48
Finance cosi - 1.47
Depreciation & amortization - 264
Other expense - 14.67
Total Expense — - - - 35.61
Profit before tax — - - 3524
Tax expense - 9.29
Profit for the year - 25.94
Other comprehensive income for the year -

Total comprehensive Income for the year - 2594
Compagy’'s share of Profit for the year (50%} - 12.97
Loys: carrying amount of the foan given to joint venture written off / impairment provision for caying - (39.64)
ainount of investment :

Company's share of (Losg) for the year (50%) after elimination - {26.67)

Notes;

L. Since the [lolding Company's interest in joint venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are recognized only fo the extent that Holding

Company has incurred legal or constouctive oblipation.
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41 (a) Acquisition of Health Data Specialist Holding Limited (*Herds®™)

The Holding Company along with its wholly owned subsidiary — Veeda Ireland, entered into the Share Parchasc Apreernent (“Agreement”) with the
sharcholders of Health Data Specialists (Holdings) Limited (“HEADS™ on February 19, 2024 for acquisition of 100% sharcholding of HIEADS from the
existing sharcholders, Acvordingly, Veeda trelund acquired 67.3% stake (606 shares) in HEADS as against the cash consideration and the holding company
acquired balancing 32.7% stake {294 shares) in HEADS as against the SWAP of the company's equity shares by allotment of 36,32,310 cquity sharcs of the
holding company. Further, as per the tenms of the agreement, upon fulfillment of the valuation uplifts and eam out conditiony relaling to the achicvement of
agreed business milestones for the ongoing clinical trials study, the purchage consideration shall be uplified 2nd the consideration towards fulfiltnent of said
uplifis and eam out conditions shall be paid in accordance with the terms of the Agreement either through eash consideration and/or in kind through issuance of
Shares.

On March 26, 2024, the Holding Company completed this zcquisition and appointed majority of its nomince directors en the board, thereby making Heads
Group its wholly owned subsidiary. Accordingly, acquisition of shares has been accounted under Ind AS 103 Business Combination,

The fiir vaiue of the identifinble assets and liabilities of Heads as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Particulars Amount
Assets
Noa currvent assets
Propenty, plant and cguipment 3.79
Other intangible assets 4,580.82
Current assets
Trade Receivables 288.17
Cash and cash equivalents 451.27
Other current assets 59.69
Income tax assets (net) 89.32
Other current financial assels 937.14
LisbHitics
Trade Payable {156.39)
Other current labilities {811.06}
Income tax lisbilities (net) (11.24)
Deffercd Tax Liabilities (net) {572.56)
MNet assets sequired ) . 4,858.96
Calculation of Goodwill . o ) .

Particulars Amount
Purchasc consideration (refer table below) 19,218.36
Total corsideration 10,218.36
Less: Fair value of net asscts acquired 4,858.96
Add: Share of non controfling intercst (refer noie 2 befow) -
Goodwill (refer nete 1 below) ) i . . 5,359.40
Purchase consideration:

Particutars Anount*
Consideration paid in cash 3,165.17
Consideration paid by issuing shares 1,537.37
Contingenl consideration - to be paid in cash (Refer note 3 below) 2,884.76
Contingent consideration - to be discharge through shares (Refer note 3 below) 2,631.06

Total 10,218.36

* Based on exchange rate prevailing on the date of acquisition.
Analysis of cash flows ¢n acquisition:

Particulars Amnunt
Met cash acquired with the subsidiary 451.27
Transuction costs of the acquisition {17.41)
Net ensh flow on acquisition 433.496
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41 (a} Acquisition of Health Data Specintist Tkolding Lindted {"Heads™) (continued)

Notes:

Goodwill is atiributable to {uture growth of business out of synergies from this acquisition and assembled workfurce. The goodwill is not deductible for income
tax purposes.

2 The group has acquired 100% shares of Heads, cansequently, there is no Non-controlling interest which has been recognised.

3 As per SPA, the conlingent consideration payable to Heads will be discharge by Veeda Clinical Research Ircland Limited. On the date of discharge of
contingent consideration, Veeda Clinical Rescarch Ircland Limited will Tirst jssues Compulsory convertible preference shares {CCPS) to the seiling sharcholders
at facc value immediately and thereafter, the selling shascholders will mandatorily swap the same with holding company’s eguity shares.

From the date of acquisition, Heads Group has contributed Rs. 35.79 million and Rs. 3.66 million towards revenue and loss before tax of the Group,
respectively, Had the entity was acquired from April G1, 2023, it would have contributed Rs. 2,438.08 million and Rs. 260.87 million towards revenue and loss
before tax of the group, respectively.

5 As per Tnd AS 103 on Business Combination (“the standard”), purchase consideration has been allocated on a provisional basis, pending final determination of
the fair value of the acquircd assels and linbilitics. The holding company expects to complete the allocation of fuir value of assets and liabililies acquired within
the measurement period of 12 months as per the requirement of the standard,

& Pursuait to the terms and conditions of share purchase agreement dated February 19, 2024 and on achievernent of updift | condition, the board of directors of
holding company in their aweting held on July 26, 2024 approved swap of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) issued by Veeda Clinical
Research Irefand Limited to sellers of Health Data Specialists Holdings Limited ie., Georgios Kouvatscas, Leonidas Kostagiolas and Okeanos Limited for
consideration ol achievement of Uplilt 1 condition. The said CCPS will be swapped against the shares of the holding company and thereby the holding
Company will purchase the Compulsory Canvertible Preference Shares of Veeda Clinical Rescarch freland Limited from the sellers of Health Data Specialists
Ueldings Limited which was approved by the members in their meeting held on August 20, 2024,

7 Impact of Deferred tax liabilities amounting to 572.56 million, has been recognised on business combination, en acquisition date fair values and adjusted in
Goodwill as per Ind AS - 12 Income Taxes.

41 {b} Acquisition of Ingenuity Bioscicnces Private Limited (*IBS")

The holding company based on termimalion of joint ventuie agrecment with the erstwhile JV partner dated April 81, 2023 has agreed to acquire the balance 50%
stake from the erstwhile JV partaer and conscquently has gained the conirol over ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited ("IRS") and accordingly has been
accounted under Ind AS 103 Business Combination with effect fiom April G1, 2023,

The fair vaiue of the identifiable assets «nd liabilities of IBS as ai the date of acquisition i.e. 0lst April, 2023 were as follows:

Particulurs ) Amount ]
Asyets
MNon current assets
Praperty, plant and cquipment 3.26
Capilal work-insprogress 10.28
Ctirer intangible assets 2.1
Deferred tax assels {nei} .1
Current sssets
Inventorics 7.58
Trade Receivables 29.60
Cash and bank balances 2405
Other Financial Assets 0.87
Other Current Agsets 573
Not; « Current Liabilities
Pravigions (0.40)
Current Liabitities
Trade pavables (28.91)
Cthrer Financial Liabilities {7.53)
Other Current Liabilities {12.33)
Provision G087
Income Tax Liabilitics (Net) — {2.08}
Met agsets acguired 11.27

e
e

%
o) &y

s Ahmedabad §
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41 {b} Acquisition of Ingennity Biosciences Private Londted ("IBS"} (continued}

Culeulation of Goodwill / Bargain Purchase Gain

Partleulars Aniount
Fair value of existing 50% stake Purchase consideration 3.50
Total consideration 3.50
Less: Fair value of net assels acquired {11.27)
Add: Share of non confrolling interest (refer notc 2 below) 5.63
Goodwill{Bargain Purchase Gain) {refer note I below) {2.14)
Purchase consideration:

Particulars Amount
Consideration paid in cash (3.50)

Total {3.50)

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Particulars Antount
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 2.05
Transaction costs of the acquisition -
Net cash flow on acquisition 2.05

Nates:

The Bargain Purchase Gain generated on acquisition of IBS is majorly on account of changes in group structure and termination of joiat venture agreement with
the erstwhile JV pariner. Accordingly, the excess of fair value of assets and Habilitics acquired over the purchase consideration is recorded as capital reserve.

2 The non-controlling interest recognized at the acquisition date was measured at proportionate share of 138 's fair value of net assets acquired.

From the date of acquisition which is April 81, 2023, IBS has contributed Rs. 18,71 million and Rs. 23.47 million towards revenue and Loss before tax of the
Group, respectively.
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Materin} partiy-owned subsidizries

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling intcrests is provided below;

Proportion of equity interest hield by non-controlling interests:

The summarized financial information of this subsidiary {before climination) Is provided helow;

Sumunavized statement of profit and loss:

' 'lliioneed's Indin Private

Bioneeds Indis Private

Summarized balance sheet:

Name of the subsidiary Limited Limited
Particulurs Year ended Year ended
. L — March 31, 2024 M_:I:rch 31,2023
Revenue From Operations 1,138.87 1,134.52
Other income 2510 14.72
Total Income 1,163.97 1,149.23
Cost of material consumed 147.43 151.61
Employee benelil expenses 33897 35121
Finaoce cost 92.63 85.53
Depreciation and amortization cxpenses 178.77 168.92
Other expenses 189.49 178.71
Tetal Expenses 997.30 935.99
Prefit hefore tax 166,67 213.24
Tax Expense 45.09 56.11
Profit for the year 121.58 157.14
Totzl ether comprehenslve income for the year (3.13} L3
Total comprehensive income for the year I . 11845 158.45
Attributable to non-cuntrolling interest 1236 23.37

Bioneeds India Private

Bionceds India Private

Namie of the subskdiary Limited Litmited
Particulzrs As at March 31, 2024 As af March 31, 2023

Maon-current assels 1,686.25 1,563.22
Cumrent assets 560.7) 546.38
Total Assets 2,246.96 2,109.60
Non-curent liabikities 549,18 484 98
Current tiabiiities 1,045.76 1,078.97
Tutal Habilittes 1,594.94 1,563.95
Total equlty 652.02 545.65
Attributable ty:

Equity helders of parent 601.32 487.50
Nou-controlling interest 50.70 58.15

o Amedabad) o

Name Country of incorporation Asat As at
and operatton March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bienceds India Private Limited India 9.00% 13.00%
Information regarding non-controlling knterest
As at As at

Accurnulated balances of materisl non-controlling interest March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bionecds India Privaie Limited 50.70 58.15

N - . Ay at As st
Profit f (Loss) allocated to materizl non-controlling interest: March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Bioneeds India Private Limiled 12.36 23.37

o
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43 Statutery Group Information

mm};:;;::::“s s Share in profis und foss Share ir: other Comprehtnabve inzome | Share in 191! Compreheasive inconte
Mame of the eatity in the Group
As %ol As % af A3 % of comsotidnicd As % af tolad
eansolidated nzr Aniount consolidated profie Amount other comprehensive Aumaent . Amonnt
s comprelicnsive income
nitety and fosa income
Farent
Veata Chinical Bescorcly Limited
Batance a5 at Margh 31, 2024 B, 6% R.920.43 -B53 8% 15,58 -4.T1% {0.37) 6. 308 ezl
Batnnce s at Masch 31, 2021 112.58% 521180 G1.17% 25052 170.63% [EN D] $0.69% 25635
Subsidiaries
i Bloneeds India Private Limired
Balance as ot Macea 31, 2014 4.69% 499,96 400,574 143.39 -39.94% (3.14) ATE IR i40.2%
Dalastce as a1 March 31, 2023 T 35971 4Z.88% 181,90 «70.52% 1.31 41.38% iA3.21
2 Amthers Life Sciences Privare Linited
Balance as at March 3, 2029 G019 .66 0.84% (0.03} 0.00% 0. 70%%| {0.41)
Ratance as at March 11, 2421 0.62% By 2.05% £ 0.00% - 2.06%, 871
3 Ingenuity Biostfenoes Private Iiinited
Bafance as at darch 11, 2028 0.01%% 1.04 285.42% (1023 o 0% - 19T (12.23)
Dulance as at dMasch 1§, 2623 0.00% - 00 - DA% v 0.00% +
4 Veeda Clinizal Researeh Treland Limited
Dalance as 2 blaich 31, 2024 34,16% 165801 431 M8% {156.95) 00, . -3668.49% f136.91},
Balance as o) March 31, 2023 G0% - 0.80% - ¢ 00% - 4400% .
S Henlth Datn Specinlists (Hofingy) Limited
ialarce a5 af March 31, 2029 t1X% 1407 =134 914 355 9.06% - 129 Bo%% 3.5%
Balance as ot March 31, 2023 0.00%% - 00080 - 0000 - 100%, -
& Health Data Specialists Iretand Limited
Patance us at March 31, 2024 . 4B%| 69021 ~229.49% 823 0.00%. - 192.31% 521
Balance as at Masch 23, 2023 0.00% - 110 1 - 000% - 0.00% -
T Heatih Daix Speciafists BV,
Dalwce a8 March 31, 2024 $.035% 5.40 =1.11%) {04 {+00% - 0.92% G.0d
Balance as ar harch 31, 2023 T06% - 0.00% . T.00% - 0.0He -
% Heads Research GmbH
Balauce ax af Mach 31, 20249 Q058 596 0.50% 10.03} 0.00% - D6 1003
Balonce as ot Masch 31, 2023 0.60% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 2.00%: -
¢ Herlth Pata Speclatists S.r.d
Batwice as at March 39, 2024 6.08% a6 -9.47% 0.34 6.00% - 7.94% Q.31
Balanco as at Macch 11, 2023 D.00% - X Vi) . .00 - 0,00%] -
10 Jfeads Resenrch SMSA
Belance a5t Masch 1, 2024 b 24% i3nag 18, 13%] 1.37 T00% - 11.95% 117
Ualance as at idarch 31, 2023 .08% - D.40% - 1005 - 0.065% i
1! Hends Reserrch AG
Gajance as ar March 31, 2024 0.69% 8.5t 0.09% (090} 6,00% - -0.08% (0.00)
Balance s at harch 31, 2023 0.00% - 0.00% - 00084 - {.00% -
12 Hexlth Data Speciatista USA Bre
Talence at at March 31, 2014 0.03%. 329 0.01% (0.0 0.0 - P {0.00y
Batance as at March 11, 2023 0.00% - [ - {0, 1HI% - {.00%% -
13 THealib Darx Spechatisis Austrnlia Led.
Unlance as nt Maech 13, 2024 £4.03% LR -0.83% 0 400% - 0.70% il
Balance as o March 31, 2023 0.06% - G.00%| . 1.00% . 0.00% -
Jain venture
V' Ingesnity Blostitases Private Limited
Balance as at Moch 31, 2024 0.60% - 0.00%% - 0,007 - 0.00% i
Balmee as ot March 31, 2023 -0.51% (3140} -6.29% {26.67} 0.00% - -6 3% {26.67}
MNanscontralfing interesis in all sulsidiayies
Balenee as at March 31, 2624 0.47% 50.34 1B.22% {1379 -3.82% {030} 39 055 (6T
Balance a5 at March 34, 2023 1.25%] 13 3.44% 23.08 -1i 65% 0.2z 551% 224
Iatescatifrany ¢limi and T Adl
Balace as o barch 31, 2004 -30.25% (333279 HR459% {24.54) 148, d6% .67 <300, 80%, {1287)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 -21.04% 9707 -7.92% {31.58} 1.93% {0.64) =7 965 {33.62)
Tutal
Balance as al Maech 31, 3024 190.80% 10,650.00 100 0% {3.58) 100,000 186 190.00% 428
Balance as ar Mesch 31, 2023 100.00% 462933 1D 424.23 $90.00% {1 86} 160.00% 42237
i
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Government of Tndia's Code for Social Security 2020 (1he ‘Code') received assent from the President in September 2020, However, the dme
from when the Code will become applicabie and rules have not yel been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code and account for
the same onge the effective date and rules are notified.

Qiher Statutory informaution:

a. The Group does not have any Benamni property, where any praceeding hes been initiated or pendivg against the Group for haldmg any
Benami property under the Benami Trangactions (Pruhibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

b. The Group do not have any transactions with Companies Struck oft

<. The Group du not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet (o be registered with ROC beyond the slatuory period.

d. The Group have noi traded or invested in Cryptocuriency or Virtual Cuirency during the financial year.

e. The Group have not advanced or loaned of invested funds 10 any other persun(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entives (Iimermedianes)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(1) directly or indirectly lend ar invest ip other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{{Neimate Beneliciarics) or

{i1) provide uny guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Oitimate Bencficiarivs,

[ The Group have not reecived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), inclnding forcign entities (Funding Party) wath the understanding
(whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that the Group shall:

{i} directly or indirectly lend or tvest iy aiher persons or entities identificd in any manney whatseever by or on beball of the tuading Pacty
{1 Hurate Beaeficianus) or

{i1) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimare Beneficiaries.

g. The Group have nol any such Iransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thai hes been surrendeced or disclosed as meome
during the year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax Acl 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevam provisions of the
Incame Tax A, 1961).

1. The Group has not entered info any scheme of arcangement in termy of sections 230 10 257 of the Coinpanies Ac, 2015

i. There is 1o immavable property wiose title deed is not held in the pame of the Group.

i- The Group has nol been declared a wilful Defanlters by any bauk or financial institution or consorifum thereol in accordance with the
guidelines on wil ful delaulters issued by the RBL

k. The Group has complicd with the number of layers prescribed under ¢laise (87) ol section 2 of the Act read wili the Companics (Restriction
on number of Layers) Ruoles, 2017,

l. The Group has availed loans from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Group fHies statement of current asseis witli the bank,
on periedical basis. There are no malerial discrepancies beiween e statements fled by the Group and {he buoks of accounts of the Group.

m. Growp has not defaubted on repayment of borowings and interest during the year,

‘I Holding Company and (he subsidisrivs which are companies incorporated in India and whose finamcial statements have been aundited under
tire Act, have used accounting software for maiaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edul log) tacility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded iu the software. Further, the Holding Company and abgve
referred subsidiaries did ot conie aerass any instance of andil trail {eature being tampered with excopt wilh respect o 2 subsidiarics, whether
there was loss of audit trail data including logs un account of envors encountered during the dati repair exercise carned out by these
subsidiarics during the period.

As per our repert of even date

For SRBC & Co. LLP For and on Behaif of the Board uf Directors of
Chartered Accountants Veedn Clinical Research Limited
ICAI FRIN: 324982E/6300003 (CIM : 1I73100GI2004PLC044023) }Yu--
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per Subkrat Mehrz Nitin Deshmuokh Maubesh Bhalgat Nirptal Bhatia
Partaer Chairman Managing Director Cotapany Seeretary & CFQ
Munbership Na. 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN: 07233670 ICS) Membership Nn.125351
Date: Qutober 25, 2024 Dage: Ociober 25, 2024 Date: October 23, 2024 Lhaie; October 235, 2024
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